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North American Coals last under

ground bituminous coal mine is

sold and its corporate headquarters

Western Division office are

Ito Dallas Texas
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Hamitton Beach
le gourmet chef

the third quartel The North American

Coal Corporation Nil Coal under

went transformation of its own br

rmentering the bituminous coal business

through the acquisitio of companies

which comprise the op rations of Reed

Minerals an Alabama producer of steam

and metallurgical coal \\ ith this acqui

sition NACoaI is posit oned to expand

in the domestic and in ernational met

allurgical coal busines in addition to

the gvantli expected its domestic

lignite mining operatb mis

Coal deliveries at NACoaIs lignite

mines increased in 2012 as more den

trical demand at customers powei

plants translated into ugher cuetomer

requirements during re first half of

the ear however an extended power

plant outage in the Ia ter half of the

ycar tempered those nptovements

Limeiock customers ii creased require

rnents as result of significant demand

related primarily to one large project in

the Florida construction market The

consumer market continued to be soft

as the ruassmnarket consumer which is

Hamilton Beach Brands tHI3B and

Kitchen Collections primary customer

remained under pressure in 2012

Additionally customer ssits to stores

in both indoor and outlet malls dropped

in 2012 espetially durmg the fourth

quarter holiday selhng season In

this highly challenging eniiroriment

revenues and profits improved at IBB

as result of increased placements and

promotions at its largest customers

Kitchen Collection continues to make

adjustments to attract customers but

was not able to overcome the unfavor

able effect of the decline in customer

isits to its stores

Given 2012 market conditions the

acquisition of Reed Minerals and gains

on sales of assets at NACoal revenues

increased and strong operating results

wem achieved at HBB and NACoal hut

operating results were disappointing

at Kitchen Collection Consolidated

revenues for NACCgms to $8 i3.4

million in 2012 from /90.4 million in

2011 with the increase primarily

driven by increased dehveri at NACoal

and higher sales solumes of higliem

priced products at HEll Income fiom

contmuing operations decreased to $42

million or $5.02 pci diluted share in

2012 from $79.5 million om $9 46 per

diluted share in 2011 Howevgn income

from continuing operations for 2011

included the receipt of $60.0 million or

$39.0 uulliori after taxes of $21.0 milhon

related to the Applica litigation settle

ment in 2011 This settlement wa

partially ofThet litigation costs of $2

million or $1.8 md ion aftem taxes of $1.0

nullion also incurred in 2011 Excluding

the settlement and the corresponding

litigation costs acjusted income from

contimung operations was $42

million or $5.03 per diluted hare tin

the year ended 1ecember 31 2011

In 2012 strong returns on capital

employed HO FCF on net debt

Consoidated adjusts deco ire from continuing operations in the suer refers to income from so itinurng operations that ex lude the Applica sottonrcnt and related itigat

costs For roconciliations Iro sr GAAP results to the adjusted non AAP results see page 21 Managemcnt bclievs discussion of adjusted income horn continu opc ritions

is morc reflectrvc of NACCO underlying hcrsrness operations and sssrsts inss stors better understand ng the results of operatro of NACCO and its sub diaries

Sos page 24 for thc calculati ii of return on capit cmployed
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truck/shovel operation wor into the night to uncover coal at the Mississippi Lignite Mining ornpany/ Red Hills Mine in Missisappi

11JIIIL
North American Coal

2012 Results NACoal has dcliv

ered strong stable per ormance over

the years 2012 was no exception In

addition few significant transactions

contributed to the imt roved results

in 2012 1uring the yeas NACoa sold

certain assets which resulted in pretax

gains of approximately 37.0 million Also

on August 31 2012 NACoa1 acquired

Reed Minerals which esulted in an

increase in deliveries and contributed

$1.5 million of operating profit during

the balance of the yean Additional

increases in net income were piovided

by MLMC as deliseries incxeased to

the customers power plant which

ran more consistently in 2012 than

in 2011 by increased deliveries at the

limerock dragline mining operations

due to customer demand for supply to

large construction prqect in southern

Fbi ida and by higher royalty income

Higher employeei elated expenses

largely related to longterm incentise

compensation associated with achieving

significant new business opportunities

for North American Coal arid acquisi

tiomrelated costs as well higher

income tax expense mostly offset these

iniprovemnents As rcsult NACoal

reported net income in 2012 of $32.8

million compamed with $29.4 mill ion

in 2011

Whilc NACoal generated crnh f1o

from operations of $50 maUl ion am 201

11
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are in development ibeity Fuels

is eventualil expectec to produce

approximately 45 mill on tons of lignite

coal annually for Miss issippi Power

Companys new Kemper County

Energy Facility currei tly being built

in Mississippi The project is on track

for initial coal deliveri in mid2014

in February 2013 th mining permit

needed to corn inence nining operm

tions at the Caddo Cr ek Resources

Company project in exas wa0 issued

Cacldo Creek expects to mine approxh

mately 650000 tons of coal annually

with initial deliveries xpected in early

2014 In January 2013 the mining

permit needed to commence mining

operations at the Can mo Real Fuels

project in Texas was issued Camino

Real Fuels expects initial deliveries in

the third quarter of 2014 and expects

to mine approximately 27 million tons

of coal annually when full production is

achieved in addition in October 2012

North American Coals subsidiary

Coyote Creek Mining Company entered

into new agreement with the co

owners of the Coyote Station generation

plant to develop lignite mine in Mercer

County North Dakota Coyote reek

Mining Company expects to dliscr

approximately million tons of coal

annually beginning in May 2016

North American Coal also expects

to continue to incur additional expenses

in 2013 to pursue ne project opportm

nities In par ticula the company

continues to move forward to obtain

permit fur its Otter reek resersc in

North Dakota in preparation for the

anticipated construct ion of new mrnm

Overall North Amns mmcmin oal

expes ts net income in 2013 to decrease

slightly from 2012 primarily dus to the

absence of pre tax gains of approxi

maR ly $7 million from asset sales

during 2012 Eixcludmg the eff bet of

the asset sales opei ating results are

expected to increase compared with

2012 mainly result of increased

delis cries and lower operatmg expenses

Cash flow helix financing activities for

2113 is expected to be higher than 2012

but not at the lesels of 2011 due to an

anticipated increase in capital experidi

tures to support opei ati ng imp ros

nients at the Reed Mineral operations

North American Coals Liberty Mine is being developed odjocent to Mississippi Power Corn pony new Kemper

County Energy Focility currer tly being built in Mississippi The new mine once completed will use voriety of

equipment to uncover ond in inc the lignite cool in the oreo

13





LongerTerm Perspective

In 2012 NACoals Saiine Mine

which opened in 1984 delivered its

100000000 ton of coal tribute to

the companys objective of being

long-term partner witd its customers

NACoaI expects to continue its record of

operational excellence in safety environ

mental stewardship and production at

each of its mining operations and over

time to deliver profitability that exceeds

its financial objectiven

NACoa1s vision is to continue to be

leading low-cost mm er of coal for its

customers and to provide selected value-

added mining services fbr companies in

the aggregates husinesn NACoaT expects

to continue to pursue opportunities

for new domestic coal mining projects

However the prospects for the develop

ment of new coal fired power generation

in the United States are uncertain at

best As result the company has put

in place four additional strategic growth

initiatives to help achieve this olAective

The company considers its acquisi

tion of Reed Minerals as the first step in

metallurgical coal strategic initiative

which includes coal exports NACoa1s

full integration of Reed Minerals will

increase capacity and lower costs

providing enhanced opportunities to

increase both domestic anti export sales

The company is also pursuing

opportunities to expand through mining

activities that serve the international

mining arena such as new opportunities

to provide value-added mining services

outside the United States similar to its

current relationship in India

In addition the company is inves

tigating number of non-coal mining

opportunities both domestically and

internationally

Finally strategic growth may

come from projects developed out of

new technologies that utilize coal such

as coal-to-liquids integrated gasifica

tion combined cycle power generation

and production of alternative fuels

made from coal as well as other clean

coal technologies and non-traditional

products derived from coal NACoaI

is working with range of technical

experts and potential partners who

might help develop projects based on

these advanced technologies However

any significant growth in domestic

opportunities is largely dependent on

the United States adopting balanced

energy policy in which coal continues

to play key role including through

these new coal technologies

NACoal believes that large

majority of consumers in the United

States want domestic energy policy

which balances affordability energy

needs and environmental responsibshty

The company believes that coal must

remain an integral part of the nations

total energy mix for the United States to

continue to be competitive in global

economy NACoal will continue to atone

tor pending regulations and legislation

and will work to take leadership role

to help ensure that reasonable actions

are undertaken by the government

Importantly NACoal expects that cur

rently anticipated changes to domestic

environmental regulatogy requirements

will be effectively addressed by working

with its customers

Overall NACoal anticipates reason

able prospects for growth over the next

few years as the companys new mines

currently in development reach bill

production This enhanced financial

perfbrmance is expected to provide

solid base for NACoal to attain its

strategic objectives and achieve its

long-term financial targets

At loft and top loft to right Shovels load overburden into one of fleet of dump trucky which carry the overburden to areas of the mine that are being reclaimed

look beyond reclaimed lana used for growing pine trees to the mining pit at the Red Hills Mine in Mississippi One of North American CoalS environmental specialists

tests water samples in reclaimed wetland

Bottom The Kress haul truck Ant delivered the oOOOooOg ton of coal at North American CoalS Sabine Mine





Hamilton Beach Brands

2012 Results HL3B came back

strong in 2012 following challenging

2011 While weak consumer demand in

2011 continued to reduce sales volumes

in the first half of 201k primarily at

the US massmarket consumer retaik

ers HBBs success at selling products

with higher price points offset these

volume declines in the latter part of

the year The companv gained further

ground during the fourtluquarter

holidayseiling season with strong place

inents and promotions at key retailers

that increased volumes substantially

ending 2012 with substantially higher

sales volumes in the U.S consumer

business than in 2011 Sales of highen

margin products throughout the year

and moderating commodity costs in

the back half of the year allowed the

company to offset some of the margin

pressure created by higher product costs

in the first half of 2012 and increased

employemrelated costs resulting in

HBB maintaining its operating profit

margin compared with 2011 Overall

revenues increased to $521.6 million in

2012 from $493.0 million in 2011 and

net income improved to $21.2 million

in 2012 from $18.4 million in 2011

Tn addition HBB ended the year with

improved cash flow before financing

activities of $24.2 million compared

with $20.5 million in 2011

Outlook for 2013 The overall

retail market for higherend small

kitchen appliances has recently shown

some signs of softening while the

middlmmarket portion in which HBB

participates is relatively fiat HBBs

target consumei the middleunarket

mass consumeg continues to struggle

with financial and economic concerns

and consumer confidence does not

appear to he as high as it was in 2012

As result sales volumes in the middlm

Left Hamilton Beach Brands newest products include clockwise from top Hamilton Beach BrewStation l2cup coffeemaker with removable reservoir Hamilton

Beach Big Mouth Pro juice sxtracto Hamilton Beach Stay or Go 4quart slow cooke Hamilton Beach Smoothie SmartTM Blender and Hamilton Bearh Digital

SimplicityM Rice Cooker and Steamer

Above New display layouts cud signage at Kitchen Collections Le Gourmet Chef store in Aurora Ohio Le Gourmet Chef stores feature brandnamne kitchenware

and gourmet foods

17
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programs designed to make HBB the

preferred source fbr small appliances

Achieving thrt/er penetration of

the global Commercial market through

commitment to an enhanced global

product line /hr chains and distributors

serving the global tbod service and

hospitality markets HBB expects to

enhance its global commercial product

line particularly with new innovative

blending and mixing platforms and

strengthen food service and hospitality

options in order to acsieve further

market penetration in this segment

Over the near term the company

anticipates continuing to incur costs

to build distribution capabilities and

increase the number of sales repre

sentatives in the international food

service market

Expanding internationally in

the emerging Asian and Latin American

markets by offering products designed

specifically fhr those market needs and

by expanding distribution channels

and sales and marketing capabilities

HBBs historical strength has been in

the domestic consumar goods market

with only 24 percent of total sales in

2012 occurring outside the United

States The companys objective is to

increase international sales to 35 to

45 percent of total sales HBBs efforts

will focus on continuing to expand in

Mexico Canada and Central America as

well as entering the emerging markets

of China india Brazil and other South

American countries To achieve this

growth the company is working to

understand local consumers needs

and developing products to meet those

needs especially in the mid- to high-end

segments of these markets In addition

HBB expects to work with local partners

in certain targeted countries

Entering the onty-the-hest

market with strong brand and broad

product line HBB is planning to enter

the only-the-best high-end small

kitchen appliance market in selected

segments The company is currently

working with Jamba Juice to create

product line focused on blending

and juicing HBB also is seeking other

partners to create additional lines that

can be distributed in high-end specialty

stores and on the Internet

HBB believes these five strategic

initiatives provide solid set of strategies

for profitable growth Ihe conipany is

optimistic that it will be able to build

on momentum achieved in distribution

in 2012 and make continued progress

in expanding in selected international

consumer and global commercial

Hamilton Beach Brands newest Pioctor Silex products include clockwise from top Proctor Silex

programmable 72-cup coffeemake Proctor Silex 0-speed blender and Proctor Sllexr4quart slow cooker
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Kitchen Collection also expects

to explore other growth opportunities

The company expects to increase the

role of regional assortments by tailoring

store merchandise to local tastes and

to test distribution of new product

categories such as textiles and gourmet

foods In addition the company is

pursuing strategies to enhance its

e-commerce and mobile technology

capabilities to ensure it is meeting

the needs of its consumers regardless

of whether shopping occurs in the

companys stores or or its websites

Through the execution of its ini

tiatives the Kitchen Collection stores

are expected to achieve bigher margins

in 2013 but are still not expected to

achieve the long-term operating margin

target of percent in the immediate

future Le Gourmet Chef stores are

not expected to achieve target margins

unless sales volumes per store increase

and until additional underperforming

stores are closed

Conclusion and NACCO

Outlook The most significant event

in NACCOs 10th year was the spin

off of Hyster-Yale Materials Handling

The new NACCO Industries that

remalns has substantial opportunities

for growth and profitability as it moves

on to its second 100 years NACCO is

confident that each subsidiary has the

right initiatives in place both to grow

and to achieve its long-term financial

objectives Growth opportunities are

particularly significant at the NACoal

and HBB businesses although both will

be prudent in their implementation

Kitchen Collection is concentrating on

ways it can improve by thoughtfully

identifying what is and what is not

working at each format and making

appropriate changes Each subsidiary

has benefited from previous programs

put in place which when combined with

the new strategic growth initiatives

being implemented should move each

business forward on growth path

In 2013 overall consolidated

income from continuing operations

is expected to increase moderately

compared with 2012 primarily because

Kitchen Collection is expected to

improve to modest net income in 2013

The housewares market is expected to

remain challenging for both HBB and

Kitchen Collection but the Company

is hopeful consumer confidence and

financial position will improve and

that customer visits number of trans

actions and sales per transaction will

consequently improve at mass-market

retailers and outlet malls Comparable

results are expected at HBB as higher

expenses associated with implementing

its strategic initiatives are expected to

offset the gross margin effect of antici

pated top-line growth Finally while an

expected increase in tons delivered and

lower operating expenses in 2013 are

expected to lead to improved operating

results at NACoal the absence of gains

from asset sales in 2012 is expected to

result in slightly decreased net income

in 2013 than in 2012 NACCO expects

an overall increase in cash flow before

financing activities in 2013 compared

with 2012

We would like to welcome James

Hatner and David Williams both of

whom joined our Board after the spin

off of the materials handling business

We are privileged to have them on

our Board

In closing we would like to thank

all of our subsidiaries customers retail

ers and suppliers and all of NACCOs

stockholders for their continued sup

port Most importantly we would also

like to thank all employees of NACCO

and its subsidiary companies for their

continued hard work and commitment

to achieving the successes and meeting

the challenges of 2012 We continue to

have great confidence in the manage

ment teams leading each of our sub

sidiaries and the parent company Our

many experienced and highly motivated

professionals worked successfully to

transform NACCO through the spin-off

of Hyster-Yale secure two new mining

projects for North American Coal over

come challenges in the Housewares

market and deliver the Companys

solid financial results in 2012 We

are confident they can successfully

implement their respective strategic

initiatives to propel the Company

into our next 100 years

M4Th4 2cuJa$
Alfred RankinJr
ChairnsanPresident and Chief Executive Office

NACCO Industries Inc

Robert Benson
President and Chief Executive Office

The North American CaaI Corporation

Gregory H.Trepp
President and Chief Executi ye Office

Hamilton Beach Brands Inc

Chief Executive Office The Kitchen Callectian LLC

Richard R.CheneJr
President The Kitchen CaBectian LLC
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Supplemental Data

Reconciliation of 2011 Consolidated Income from continuing operations

As reported to Adjusted Income from continuing operations

In millions except per share data

Diluted earnings

2011 per share

2011 Income from continuing operations as reported 79.5 9.46

Impact of Applica settlement after taxes of $21.0 39.0 4.64

Impact of Applica litigation costs after taxes of $1.0 1.8 0.21

2011 Adjusted Income from continuing operations 42.3 5.03

Adjusted Income from continuing operations is measure of income that differs from Income from continuing operations measured in accordance with

U.S GAAP The Company has reported adjusted income from continuing operations and earnings per diluted share for the year ended December 312011

excluding the net effect of the Applica settlement and related litigation costs Management believes discussion excluding the settlement and litigation

costs is more reflective of NACCOs underlying business operations and enables investors to better understand the results of operations of the Company

Calculation of Return on Capital Employed In millions except percentage data

Kitchen

2012 NACoaI HBB Collection

2ol2AverageEquity12/31/2011 andeachof2ol2squarterends 96.4 36.0 42.9

2012 Average Debt 12/31/2011 and at each of 2012s quarter ends 109.0 45.5 7.9

2012 Average Cash 12/31/2011 and at each of 2012s quarter ends 5.7 3.7 5.3

Total 2012 average capital employed 199.7 77.8 45.5

2012 Net income Iossas reported 32.8 21.2 3.1

PIus 2012 Interest expense net 2.7 2.7 0.5

Less Income taxes on 2012 interest expense at 38% 1.0 1.0 0.2

Actual return on capital employed actual net income loss

before interest expense net after tax 34.5 22.9 2.8

Actual return on capital employed percentage 17.3% 29.4% 6.1%

Calculation of Return on Capital Employed

Kitchen

2011 NACoaI HBB Collection

2011 AverageEquity12/31/2oloandeachof2ollsquarterends 133.8 22.3 43.2

2011 Average Debt 12/31/2010 and at each of 2011s quarter ends 51.9 90.6 7.6

2011 Average Cash 12/31/2010 and at each of 2011s quarter ends 2.7 34.8 5.1

Total 2011 average capital employed 183.0 78.1 45.7

2011 Net incomeas reported 29.4 18.4 1.1

PIus 2011 Interest expense as reported 2.7 5.2 0.5

Less Income taxes on 2011 interest expense at 38% 1.0 2.0 0.2

Actual return on capital employed actual net income

before interest expenseaftertax 31.1 21.6 1.4

Actual return on capital employed percentage 17.0% 27.7% 3.1%

Return on capital employed is provided solely ass supplemental disclosure with respect to income generation because management believes it provides

useful information with respect to earnings in form that is comparable to the Companys cost of capital employedwhich includes both equity and debt

securities net of cash

Return on equity is defined as net income divided by average equity

Tax rate of 38% represents the Companys target marginal tax rate compared with 2012s effective income tax rate of 27.2%

Tax rate of 38% represents the Companys target marginal tax rate compared with 2011s effective income tax rate of 29.2%
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PART
Item BUSINESS

General

NACCO Industries Inc NACCO or the Company is holding company with the following principal businesses mining

small appliances and specialty retail

North American Coal The Companys wholly owned subsidiary The North American Coal Corporation and its

affiliated companies collectively NACoaI mine and market steam and metallurgical coal for use in power generation

and steel product on and provide selected value-added mining services for other natural resources companies

Hamilton Beach Brands The Companys wholly owned subsidiary Hamilton Beach Brands Inc HBB is

leading designer marketer and distributor of small electric household appliances as well as commercial products for

restaurants bars rnd hotels

Kitchen Collection The Companys wholly owned subsidiary The Kitchen Collection LLC KC is national

specialty retailer of kitchenware and gourmet foods operating under the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef store

names in outlet and traditional malls throughout the United States

Additional information relating to financial and operating data on segment basis including NACCO and Other and by

geographic region is set forth under the heading Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations contained in Part II of this Form 10-K and in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this

Form 10-K

NACCO was incorporated as Delaware corporation in 1986 in connection with the formation of holding company structure

for predecessor corporation organized in 1913 As of January 31 2013 the Company and its subsidiaries had approximately

3900 employees including approximately 1300 employees at the Companys unconsolidated mines

The Company makes its annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and any

amendments to those reports available free of charge through its website www.nacco.com as soon as reasonably practicable

after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC
Significant Events

On October 10 2012 NACoaI entered into Lignite Sales Agreement the LSA with Otter Tail Power Company OTP
wholly owned subsiliary of Otter Tail Corporation and with OTPs co-owners in the Coyote Station baseload generation plant

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co division of MDU Resources Group Inc Northern Municipal Power Agency and

NorthWestern Corporation Under the LSA NACoaI will develop lignite mine in Mercer County North Dakota and deliver to

the Coyote Station co-owners as an exclusive supplier the annual fuel requirements of the Coyote Station plant expected to be

approximately 2.5 million tons annually starting in 2016

On September 28 2012 the Company spun-off Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc Hyster-Yale former subsidiary To

complete the spin-off the Company distributed one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock and one share of Hyster-Yale

Class common stck to NACCO stockholders for each share of NACCO Class common stock or Class common stock

owned In accordance with the applicable authoritative accounting guidance the Company accounted for the spin-off based on

the carrying value of Hyster-Yale

On August 31 2012 NACoal acquired through wholly owned subsidiary four related companies Reed Minerals Inc Reed

Hauling Inc CH Mining Company Inc and Reed Management LLC from members of and entities controlled by the Reed

family These companies known as Reed Minerals are based in Jasper Alabama and are involved in the mining of steam and

metallurgical coal The results of Reed Minerals operations have been included in the Companys consolidated financial

statements since August 31 2012

During 2012 NACoal recognized gain of $3.5 million from the sale of land and $3.3 million gain for the sale of dragline

In 2011 the Company announced that the Companys Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $50 million of the

Companys outstanding Class common stock The authorization for the repurchase program originally expired on December 31

2012 however in November 2012 the Companys Board of Directors approved an extension of the stock repurchase program

through December 31 2013 As of December 31 2012 the Company had repurchased $5.3 million of Class common stock

under this program



in 2006 the Company initiated litigation in the Delaware Chancery Court against Applica Incorporated Applica and

individuals and entities affiliated with Applicas shareholder Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund Ltd The litigation

alleged number of contract and tort claims against the defendants related to the Companys failed transaction with Applica

which had been previously announced On February 14 2011 the parties to this litigation entered into settlement agreement

The settlement agreement provided for among other things the payment of $60 million to the Company and dismissal of the

lawsuit with prejudice The payment was received in February 2011 Litigation costs related to this matter were $2.8 million

and $18.8 million in 2011 and 2010 respectively

North American Coal

General

NACoaI mines and markets steam and metallurgical coal for use in power generation and steel production and provides

selected value-added mining services for other natural resources companies Coal is surface mined from NACoals developed

mines in North Dakota Texas Mississippi Louisiana and Alabama Total coal reserves approximate 2.2 billion tons including

the unconsolidated mining operations with approximately 1.1 billion tons committed to customers pursuant to long-term

contracts NACoal has two consolidated mining operations Mississippi Lignite Mining Company MLMC and Reed

Minerals Inc Reed Minerals NACoaI has ten unconsolidated subsidiaries The Coteau Properties Company Coteau
The Falkirk Mining Company Falkirk The Sabine Mining Company Sabine Demery Resources Company LLC

Demery Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Mining Company LLC Coyote

Creek Camino Real Fuels LLC Camnino Real Liberty Fuels Company LLC Liberty NoDak Energy Services LLC

NoDak and North American Coal Corporation India Private Limited NACC India Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Camino

Real and Liberty are in the development stage and do not currently mine or deliver coal NACoal also provides dragline mining

services for independently owned limerock quarries in Florida

The contracts with the customers of the ten unconsolidated subsidiaries provide for reimbursement to the Company at price

based on actual costs plus an agreed pre-tax profit per
ton of coal sold or actual costs plus management fee

At December 2012 NACoaIs operating mines consisted both of mines where the reserves were acquired whether in fee or

through leases and developed by NACoal as well as mines where reserves are owned or leased by the customers of the mines

and developed by NACoaI It is currently contemplated that the reported reserves will be mined within the term of the majority

of the leases for each of the mines In the future if any of the leases are projected to expire before mining operations can

commence it is currently expected that each such lease would be amended to extend the term or new leases would be

negotiated NACoal expects coal mined pursuant to these leases will be available to meet production requirements

The majority of NACoals revenues is generated from its consolidated mining operations and dragline mining services

MLMCs customer Choctaw Generation Limited Partnership accounted for approximately 56% 77% and 49% of NACoaIs

revenues for the
years

ended Iecember 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively NACoals former customer San Miguel Electric

Cooperative accounted for approximately 29% of NACoals revenues for the
year

ended December 31 2010 NACoaIs

contract with San Miguel Electric Cooperative expired December 31 2010

Sales Marketing and Opera Uons

The principal coal customers cfNACoal are electric utilities an independent power provider and synfuels plant Reed

Minerals also sells coal to coke processing plants cement plants and coal brokers in Alabama The distribution of coal sales

including sales from the unconsolidated mines in the last five years has been as follows

Distribution

Synfuels

Plant Other

2012 79%

2011 22% 78%

2e1 12%

2009 18% 82%



The total coal severed by mine in millions of tons for the three years
ended December 31 and the weighted average prices per

ton delivered for the three years ended December 31 are as follows

2012 2011 2010

Unconsolidated Mines

Freedom 13.0 13.6 14.6

Falkirk 7.9 7.5 7.6

South Hallsville No 4.2 4.0 4.6

Other 0.1

Consolidated Mines

Red Hills 3.0 2.8 4.0

Reed MineralsW 0.3

San Miguel 3.3

Total tons severed 28.5 27.9 34.1

Price per ton delivered 22.60 20.06 17.52

The results of Reed Minerals operations have been included in the Companys consolidated financial statements since

NACoa1 acquired Reed Minerals on August 31 2012

The contracts under -iich certain of the unconsolidated mines operate provide that under certain conditions of default the

customers involved may elect to acquire the assets subject to the liabilities or the capital stock of the subsidiary for an

amount effectively equal to book value NACoal does not know of any conditions of default that currently exist In one case

the customer may elect to acquire the stock of the subsidiary upon specified notice period without regard to default in

exchange for certain payments on coal mined thereafter NACoa1 does not know of any current intention of any customer to

acquire the stock of subsidiary or terminate contract for convenience In addition the contracts under which certain of the

unconsolidated mines Dperate provide that under certain conditions of default or termination by the customer the subsidiaries

have the right to acquire certain or all of the assets of the mines under the same terms as third-party purchaser



The location mine type reserve data coal quality characteristics customer sales tonnage and contract expiration date for the

mines operated by NACoaI in 2012 were as follows

COAL MFNING OPERATIONS ON AN AS RECEIVED BASIS

Proven and Probable Reserves ab
2012 2011

Committed

Under

Contract Uncommitted Total Tons

Delivered

Type of Mine Millions of Tons Millions

Total

Committed

and

Owned Leased Uncommitted Tons

Reserves Reserves Millions of Delivered Contract

Tons Millions Eipires

Consolidated Mines

Reed Minceda Mines

Red Hills Mine

Total Dcvelcpcd

Undeveloped Mines

North Dakçta

Texas

Eastern

Mississippi

Total Undeveloped

Total Developed/

Undeveloped

Mine/Reserve

Uaco.lidasd ea
Freedom Mine

Falkirk Mine

South Hallsville No
Mine

Five Forks Mine

Marshall Mine

Eagle Pass Mine

Liberty Mine

Coyote Creek Mine

Surfac Lignite

Surfaor
Lignite

Surfac Lignite

Surfaca Lignite

Surfac Lignite

526.9

427.2

526.9

427.2

13.1 2%

8.0 1%

Surface

Sub-bituminous

Surfaci Lignite

Surface Lignite 57.8

98%

99%

3.8

0.1

57.8

Surface

Surfac Lignite

549.5 13.5 20l7

435.8 7.5 2045

4.2 2035

2030

2043

2017

2054

20400% 100

36 257 29.3 0.3 0% 1tO$

123.4 101.3 224.7 3.1 32% 68% 226.9 2.7 2032

1i38.9 1270 12659 284 1Z122 27

483.9 483.9 0% 100% 594.1

225.6 225.6 54% 46% 226.2

28.2 28.2 100% 0% 28.7

187.8 187.8 0% 100% 211.9

925.5 925.5 1060.9

1138.9 1052.5 2191.4 2273.1
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Unconsolidated Mines

Freedom Mine The Coteau Properties Company

The Freedom Mine operated by Coteau is located approximately 90 miles northwest of Bismarck North Dakota The main

entrance to the Freedom Mine is accessed by means of paved road and is located on County Road 15 Coteau holds 287 leases

granting the right to approximately 36546 acres of coal interests and the right to utilize approximately 24745 acres of

surface interests In addition Coteau owns in fee 30548 acres of surface interests and 4345 acres of coal interests

Substantially all of the leases held by Coteau were acquired in the early 1970s and have been replaced with new leases or have

lease terms for period sufficient to meet Coteaus contractual production requirements

The Freedom Mine generally produces between 13 million and 15 million tons of lignite coal annually The mine started

delivering coal in 1983 All production from the mine is sold to Dakota Coal Company wholly owned subsidiary of Basin

Electric Power Cooperative Dakota Coal Company then sells the coal to Great Plains Synfuels Plant Antelope Valley Station

and Leland Olds Station all of which are affiliates of Basin Electric Power Cooperative

The reserves are located in Mercer County North Dakota starting approximately two miles north of Beulah North Dakota The

center of the basin is located near the city of Williston North Dakota approximately 100 miles northwest of the Freedom Mine

The economically mineable coal in the reserve occurs in the Sentinel Butte Formation and is overlain by the Coleharbor

Formation The Coleharbor Formation unconformably overlies the Sentinel Butte Formation It includes all of the

unconsolidated sediments resulting from deposition during glacial and interglacial periods Lithologic types include gravel

sand silt clay and till The modified glacial channels are in-filled with gravels sands silts and clays overlain by till The

coarser gravel and sand beds are generally limited to near the bottom of the channel fill The general stratigraphic sequence
in

the upland portions of the reserve area consists of till silty sands and clayey silts

Falkirk Mine The Falkirk Mining Company

The Falkirk Mine opeated by Falkirk is located approximately 50 miles north of Bismarck North Dakota on paved access

road off U.S Highway 83 Falkirk holds 304 leases granting the right to mine approximately 47501 acres of coal interests and

the right to utilize approximately 28209 acres of surface interests In addition Falkirk owns in fee 37826 acres of surface

interests and 1270 acrs of coal interests Substantially all of the leases held by Falkirk were acquired in the early l970s with

initial terms that have been further extended by the continuation of mining operations

The Falkirk Mine genral1y produces between million and million tons of lignite coal annually for the Coal Creek Station

an electric power generating station owned by Great River Energy All production from the mine is used by Coal Creek Station

The mine started delivering coal in 1978

The reserves are locatd in McLean County North Dakota from approximately nine miles northwest of the town of Washburn

North Dakota to four miles north of the town of Underwood North Dakota Structurally the area is located on an intercratonic

basin containing thick sequence of sedimentary rocks The economically mineable coals in the reserve occur in the Sentinel

Butte Formation and the Bullion Creek Formation and are unconformably overlain by the Coleharbor Formation The Sentinel

Butte Formation conformably overlies the Bullion Creek Formation The general stratigraphic sequence in the upland portions

of the reserve area Setinel Butte Formation consists of till silty sands and clayey silts main hagel lignite bed silty clay

lower lignite of the hagel lignite interval and silty clays Beneath the Tavis Creek there is repeating sequence of silty to sand

clays with generally thin lignite beds

South Hallsville No Mine The Sabine Mining Company

The South Hallsville No Mine operated by Sabine is located approximately 150 miles east of Dallas Texas on FM 968 The

entrance to the mine is by means of paved road Sabine has no title claim lease or option to acquire any of the reserves at the

South Hallsville No Mine Southwestern Electric Power Company controls all of the reserves within the South Hallsville No
Mine

The South Hallsville No Mine has two active pits generally producing between million and million tons of lignite coal

annually based upon Southwestern Electric Power Companys demand for its Henry Pirkey Plant and other contractual

requirements The mine started delivering coal in 1985

Five Forks Mine Iemery Resources Company LLC

The Five Forks Mine operated by Demery is located approximately three miles north of Creston Louisiana on State Highway

153 Access to the Five Forks Mine is by means of gravel road Demery commenced delivering coal to its customer in 2012

and is expected to increase production beginning in 2013 with expected full production levels reached in late 2015 or 2016

Demery has no title claim lease or option to acquire any of the reserves at the Five Forks Mine Demerys customer Five

Forks Mining LLC will control all of the reserves within the Five Forks Mine



Marshall Mine Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC

The Marshall Mine to be operated by Caddo Creek is in the development stage and is located approximately ten miles south of

Marshall Texas on FM-Il Access to the Marshall Mine will be by means of paved road Caddo Creek will have no title

claim lease or option to acquire any of the reserves at the Marshall Mine Marshall Mine LLC will control all of the reserves

within the Marshall Mine

Eagle Pass Mine Camino Real Fuels LLC

The Eagle Pass Mine to be operated by Camino Real is in the development stage and is located approximately six miles north

of Eagle Pass Texas on State Highway 1588 Access to the Eagle Pass Mine has not been determined Camino Real will have

no title claim lease or option to acquire any of the reserves at the Eagle Pass Mine Dos Republicas Coal Partnership will

control all of the reserves within the Eagle Pass Mine

Liberty Mine Liberty Fuels Company LLC

The Liberty Mine to be operated by Liberty is in the development stage and is located approximately 20 miles north of

Meridian Mississippi off State Highway 493 Liberty will have no title claim lease or option to acquire any of the reserves at

the Liberty Mine Mississippi Power Company will control all of the reserves within the Liberty Mine

Coyote Creek Mine Coyote Creek Mining Company LLC

The Coyote Creek Mine to be operated by Coyote Creek is in the development stage and is located approximately 70 miles

northwest of Bismarck North Dakota The main entrance to the Coyote Creek Mine is accessed by means of four-mile graveled

road extending west offof State Highway 49 Coyote Creek will hold sublease to 71 leases granting the right to mine approximately

5758 acres of coal interests and the right to utilize approximately 13568 acres of surface interests Substantially all of these

leases were acquired during the
years 2010 through 2012 and have lease terms for period sufficient to meet Coyote Creeks

contractual production requirements

In May2016 the Coyote Creek Mine is expected to begin coal deliveries to the Coyote Station owned by Otter Tail Power Company
Northern Municipal Power Agency Montana-Dakota Utilities Company and Northwestern Corporation

The reserves are located in Mercer County North Dakota starting approximately six miles southwest of Beulah North Dakota

The center of the basin is located near the city of Williston North Dakota approximately 110 miles northwest of the Coyote Creek

Mine The economically mineable coal in the reserve occurs in the Sentinel Butte Formation and is overlain by the Coleharbor

Formation The Coleharbor Formation unconformably overhies the Sentinel Butte Formation It includes all of the unconsolidated

sediments resulting from deposition during glacial and interglacial periods Lithologic types include gravel sand silt clay and

till The modified glacial channels are in-filled with gravels sands silts and clays overlain by till The coarser gravel and sand

beds are generally limited to near the bottom of the channel fill The general stratigraphic sequence in the upland portions of the

reserve area consists of till silty sands and clayey silts

Consolidated Mines

Reed Minerals Mines

Reed Minerals operating mines are located about 12 miles east and southeast of the city of Jasper in Walker County Alabama and

about 20 miles southeast of the city of Jasper in Jefferson County Alabama The main entrances to the Walker County Alabama

operating mines are accessed by means of half-mile graveled road extending south off Sipsey Road and half-mile graveled

road extending west off Cordova Gorgas Road The main entrance to the Jefferson County Alabama operating mine is accessed

by means of one-mile paved section of Short Creek Road extending south off Porter Road The mining rights to the reserves

within the Reed Minerals operating mines are controlled by Reed Minerals The Reed Minerals operating mines produce about

900000 tons per year which are sold to several customers in Alabama

Structurally the reserves for the Reed Minerals operating mines are located within the Warrior Coal Basin The strata which

underlies and outcrops in this region is ofthe Pottsville Formation of the Pennsylvanian Age The Warrior Basin is the southernmost

of series of Pennsylvanian basins of the Appalachian Plateau The Pottsville Formation in this area consists of thin to thick

bedded sandstones siltstones shales clays and coal seams This sequence of clastic sediments is representative of deltaic

depositional environment Structurally the Warrior Basin is formed by large gentle syncline that extends from north-central

Mississippi in the west to north-central Alabama in the east The synchine is tilted southwestward with regional dip of 30 to 200

feet per mile Toward the iiiterior of the Warrior Basin the regional southwest dip of Pottsville strata is modified by series of



three synclines and two anticlines Of these the major structural areas are the Warrior and Coalburg synclines and the Sequatchie

anticline The fold axes are parallel to the Appalachian system in northeast-southwest direction and plunge to the southwest

with the regional dip

Red Hills Mine Mississippi Lignite Mining Company

The Red Hills Mine operated by MLMC is located approximately 120 miles northeast of Jackson Mississippi The entrance to

the mine is by means of paved road located approximately one mile west of Highway MLMC holds 126 leases granting the

right to mine approximately 7274 acres of coal interests and the right to utilize approximately 6964 acres of surface interests

In addition MLMC ovns in fee 3097 acres of surface interests and 2585 acres of coal interests Substantially all of the leases

held by MLMC were acquired during the mid-i 970s to the early 980s with terms totaling 50 years many of which can be

further extended by the continuation of mining operations

The Red Hills Mine generally produces approximately million to million tons of lignite coal annually for use at the Red

Hills Power Plant The mine started delivering coal in 2000

The lignite deposits of the Gulf Coast are found primarily in narrow band of strata that outcrops/subcrops along the margin of

the Mississippi embayrcient The potentially exploitable tertiary lignites in Mississippi are found in the Wilcox Group The

outcropping Wilcox is composed predominately of non-marine sediments deposited on broad flat plain

Florida Dragline Operations The North American Coal Corporation

NACoa1s Florida Dragline Operations operate draglines to mine limerock at the following quarries in Florida pursuant to

mining services agreements with the quarry owners

Year NACoaI

Started Dragline

Quarry Name Location Quarry Owner Operations

White Rock Quarry North Miami WRQ 1995

White Rock Quarry South Miami WRQ 2005

Krome Quarry Miami Cemex 2003

Alico Quarry Ft Myers Cemex 2004

FEC Quarry Miami Cemex 2005

Pennsuco Quarry Miami Tarmac 2005

SCL Quarry Miami Cemex 2006

Card Sound Quarry Miami Cemex 2009

Vecellio Grogan Inc d/b/a White Rock Quarries WRQ Cemex S.A.B de C.V Cemex and Tarmac America LLC

Tarmac control all of the limerock reserves within their respective quarries WRQ and Cemex perform drilling programs

occasionally for the puipose of redefining the bottom of the limerock bed

Access to the White Rock Quarry is by means of paved road from 122nd Avenue access to the Krome Quany is by means of

paved road from KroIne Avenue and access to Pennsuco Quarry is by means of paved road from NW 121st Way Access to

the FEC Quarry is by means of paved road from NW 118th Avenue and access to the Alico Quarry is by means of paved

road from Alico Road Access to the SCL Quarry is by means of paved road from NW 137th Avenue and access to the Card

Sound Quarry is by means of paved road from SW 408th Street Florida Dragline Operations have no title claim lease or

option to acquire any the reserves at the White Rock Quarry North and South the FEC Quarry the Krome Quarry the

Pennsuco Quarry the SCL Quany the Alico Quarry or the Card Sound Quarry

North American Coal Royalty Company

No operating mines currently exist on the undeveloped reserves in North Dakota Texas and Mississippi North American Coal

Royalty Company does receive certain royalty payments from unrelated third parties for production or advance royalty

payments for oil and gas as well as for coal reserves located in Ohio Pennsylvania North Dakota Louisiana and Texas

General Information about the Mines

Leases The leases held by Coteau Falkirk and MLMC have variety of continuation provisions but generally they permit the

leases to be continued beyond their fixed terms Under the terms of the leases held by these companies each respective



company expects that coal mined pursuant to its leases will be available to meet its production requirements Reed Minerals

holds the mining rights to the reserves within their mines through leases and licenses from the coal and surface owners

Previous Operators There were no previous operators of the Freedom Mine Falkirk Mine South Hallsville No Mine Five

Forks Mine or Red Hills Mine Reed Minerals operates mines under which third-party surface and underground mine operators

may have operated in the past

Exploration and Development The Freedom Mine Falkirk Mine South Hallsville No Mine Red Hills Mine and the Reed

Minerals operating mines are well past the exploration stage and are in production Additional pit development is underway at

each mine Drilling programs are routinely conducted for the
purpose

of refining guidance related to ongoing operations For

example at the Red Hills Mine the lignite coal reserve has been defined by drilling program that is designed to provide 500-

foot spaced drill holes for areas anticipated to be mined within six
years

of the current pit Drilling beyond the six-year horizon

ranges
from 1000 to 2000-foot centers Drilling is conducted every other year to stay current with the advance of mining

operations The Five Forks Mine commenced delivering coal to its customer in 2012 and is expected to increase production

beginning in 2013 with expected full production levels reached in late 2015 or 2016 Caddo Creek Camino Real Coyote

Creek and Liberty are in the mine planning and design phase Geological evaluation is in process at all four locations

Facilities and Equipment The facilities and equipment for each of the mines are maintained to allow for safe and efficient

operation The equipment is well maintained in good physical condition and is either updated or replaced periodically with the

latest models or upgrades available to keep up with modern technology As equipment wears out the mines evaluate what

replacement option will be the most cost efficient including the evaluation of both new and used equipment and proceed with

that replacement The majority of electrical power for the draglines shovels coal crushers coal conveyors and facilities

generally is provided by the utility customer for the applicable mine Electrical power for the Sabine facilities is provided by

Upshur Rural Electric Co-op Electrical power for the Sabine draglines is provided by the Pirkey Power Plant Electrical power

for Reed Minerals dragline expected to be placed in service in 2013 is expected to be provided by Alabama Power Company

The remainder of the equipment generally is powered by diesel or gasoline

The total cost of the property plant and equipment net of applicable accumulated amortization and depreciation as of

December 31 2012 is set forth in the chart below

Total Historical Cost of Mine

Properly Plant and Equipment

excluding Coal Lands Real Estate

and Construction in Progress Net of

Applicable Accumulated

Mine Amortization and Depreciation

in millions

Unconsolidated Mining Operations

Freedom Mine The Coteau Properties Company 173.6

Falkirk Mine The Falkirk Mining Company 118.4

South Hallsville No Mine The Sabine Mining Company 214.4

Five Forks Mine Demery Resources Company LLC

Marshall Mine Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC

Eagle Pass Mine Camino Real Fuels LLC

Liberty Mine Liberty Fuels LLC 20.5

Coyote Creek Mine Coyote Creek Mining LLC 22.8

Consolidated Mining Operations

Red Hills Mine Mississippi Lignite Mining Company 43.5

Reed Minerals The North American Coal Corporation 31.4

Florida Dragline Operations The North American Coal Corporation 2.7

Predominantly all of Demery Caddo Creek and Camino Reals machinery and equipment is owned by NACoals customers

substantial portion of MLMCs and Reed Minerals machinery trucks and equipment is rented under operating leases All other

draglines were purchased used and have been or are expected to be updated with the latest technology
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Government Regulation

NACoa1s coal mining operations and dragline mining services are subject to various federal state and local laws and

regulations on matters such as employee health and safety and certain environmental laws relating to among others the

reclamation and restoration of properties after mining operations air pollution water pollution the disposal of wastes and

effects on groundwater In addition the electric utility industry is subject to extensive regulation regarding the environmental

impact of its power gereration activities that could affect demand for coal from NACoals coal mining operations

Numerous governmental permits and approvals are required for coal mining operations NACoal or one of its subsidiaries holds

or will hold the necessary permits at all of NACoaIs coal mining operations except Demery and Camino Real where

NACoals customers hold or will hold the permits and Reed Minerals where coal reserve owner and contract miner hold

certain permits The Ccmpany believes based upon present information provided to it by these third party mine permit holders

that these third parties have or will have all environmental permits necessary for NACoal to operate Reed Minerals Demery

and Camino Real however the Company cannot be certain that NACoals customers will be able to obtain and/or maintain all

such permits in the future

At the coal mining operations where NACoal holds the permits NACoal is required to prepare and present to federal state or

local governmental authorities data pertaining to the effect or impact that any proposed exploration for or production of coal

may have upon the environment and public and employee health and safety

The limerock quarries where NACoal provides dragline mining services are owned and operated by NACoa1s customers

Some laws as discussei below place many requirements on NACoals coal mining operations and the limerock quarries where

NACoal provides dragline mining services Federal and state regulations require regular monitoring of NACoals operations to

ensure compliance

Mine Health and Safety Laws

The Federal Mine Safely and Health Act of 1977 imposes safety and health standards on all coal mining operations

Regulations are comprthensive and affect numerous aspects of mining operations including training of mine personnel mining

procedures blasting the equipment used in mining operations and other matters The Federal Mine Safety and Health

Administration enforces compliance with these federal laws and regulations

Environmental Laws

NACoals coal mining operations are subject to various federal environmental laws including

the Surface Mning Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 SMCRA
the Clean Air Act including amendments to that act in 1990 CAA
the Clean Water Act of 1972 the Clean Water Act

the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and

the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act

In addition to these federal environmental laws various states have enacted environmental laws that provide for higher levels

of environmental comptiance than similar federal laws These environmental laws require reporting permitting and/or approval

of many aspects of coal mining operations Both federal and state inspectors regularly visit mines to enforce compliance

NACoaI has ongoing training compliance and permitting programs to ensure compliance with such environmental laws

Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act

SMCRA establishes mining environmental protection and reclamation standards for all aspects of surface coal mining

operations Where state regulatory agencies have adopted federal mining programs under SMCRA the state becomes the

primary regulatory authority All of the states where NACoa1 has active coal mining operations have achieved primary control

of enforcement through federal authorization

Coal mine operators must obtain SMCRA permits and permit renewals for coal mining operations from the regulatory agency

These SMCRA permit provisions include requirements for coal prospecting mine plan development topsoil removal storage

and replacement selective handling of overburden materials mine pit backfilling and grading protection of the hydrologic

balance surface drainage control mine drainage and mine discharge control and treatment and revegetation

Although NACoals peimits have stated expiration dates SMCRA provides for right of successive renewal The cost of

obtaining surface mining permits can vary widely depending on the quantity and type of information that must be provided to
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obtain the permits however the cost of obtaining permit is usually between $1000000 and $5000000 and the cost of

obtaining permit renewal is usually between $15000 and $100000

The Abandoned Mine Land Fund which is part of SMCRA imposes fee on all current lignite coal mining operations The

proceeds are used principally to reclaim mine lands closed prior to 1977 In addition the Abandoned Mine Land Fund also

makes transfers annually to the United Mine Workers of America Combined Benefit Fund the Fund which provides health

care benefits to retired coal miners who are beneficiaries of the Fund The fee was $0.09 per ton on lignite coal produced and

$0.3 15 per ton on other surface-mined coal from prior to 2010 through September 30 2012 As of October 2012 the fee is

currently $0.08 per ton on lignite coal produced and $0.28 per ton on other surface-mined coal

SMCRA establishes operational reclamation and closure standards for surface coal mines The Company accrues for the costs

of current mine disturbance and final mine closure including the cost of treating mine water discharges where necessary

These obligations are unfunded with the exception of the final mine closure costs for the Coyote Creek Mine which will be

funded throughout the production stage

SMCRA stipulates compliance with many other major environmental programs These programs include the CAA Clean Water

Act Resource Conservation and Recovery Act Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act and

Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act The U.S Army Corps of Engineers regulates activities affecting

navigable waters and the u.S Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco and Firearms regulates the use of explosives for blasting In

addition the U.S Environmental Protection Agency the EPA the U.S Army Corps of Engineers and the Federal Office of

Surface Mining are engaged in series of rulemakings and other administrative actions under the Clean Water Act and other

statutes that are directed at reducing the impact of coal mining operations on water bodies Currently these initiatives are

primarily with respect to mining operations in the Appalachian region especially on mountaintops However these initiatives

may extend beyond this region to areas where NACoa1 has mining operations

The Company does not believe there are any significant issues that cause risk to NACoa1s ability to maintain its existing

mining permits or hinder it ability to acquire future mining permits

Clean Air Act

The process of burning coal can cause many compounds and impurities in the coal to be released into the air including sulfur

dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulate matter and others The CAA and the corresponding state laws that extensively

regulate the emissions of materials into the air affect coal mining operations both directly and indirectly Direct impacts on coal

mining operations occur through CAA permitting requirements and/or emission control requirements relating to air

contaminants especially particulate matter Indirect impacts on coal mining operations occur through regulation of the air

emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulate matter and other compounds emitted by coal-fired power

plants The EPA has promulgated or proposed regulations that impose tighter emission restrictions in number of areas some

of which are currently sub ect to litigation The general effect of tighter restrictions could be to reduce demand for coal Any

reduction in coals share or the capacity for power generation could have material adverse effect on the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations

States are required to submit to the EPA revisions to their state implementation plans SIPs that demonstrate the manner in

which the states will attain national ambient air quality standards NAAQS every
time NAAQS is issued or revised by the

EPA The EPA has adopted NAAQS for several pollutants which it continues to periodically review for revisions When the

EPA adopts new more stringent NAAQS for pollutant some states have to change their existing SIPs If state fails to revise

its SIP and obtain EPA approval the EPA may adopt regulations to effect the revision Coal mining operations and coal-fired

power plants that emit particulate matter or other specified material are therefore affected by changes in the SIPs Through this

process over the last few years the EPA has reduced the NAAQS for particulate matter ozone and nitrogen oxides NACoals

coal mining operations and utility customers may be directly affected when the revisions to the SIPs are made and incorporate

new NAAQS for sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides ozone and particulate matter In response to court remand of earlier rules to

control the regional transport of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides from coal-fired power plants and their impacts of downwind

NAAQS areas in mid-2011 the EPA finalized the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule CSAPR to address interstate transport of

pollutants This affects states in the eastern half of the United States including Texas This rule imposes additional emission

restrictions on coal-fired power plants to attain ozone and fine particulate NAAQS On August 21 2012 the U.S Court of

Appeals stuck down the CSAPR rule effectively eliminating the new additional emission restrictions

The CAA Acid Rain Control Provisions were promulgated as part of the CAA Amendments of 1990 in Title IV of the CAA

Acid Rain Program Tie Acid Rain Program required reductions of sulfur dioxide emissions from coal-fired power plants

The Acid Rain Program is now mature program and the Company believes that any market impacts of the required controls

have likely been factored into the coal market
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The EPA promulgated regional haze program designed to protect and to improve visibility at and around Class Areas which

are generally National Parks National Wilderness Areas and International Parks This program may restrict the construction of

new coal-fired power plants whose operation may impair visibility at and around the Class Areas Additionally the program

requires certain existing coal-fired power plants to install additional control measures designed to limit haze-causing emissions

such as sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and particulate matter States were required to submit Regional Haze SIPs to the EPA by

December 2007 however many states did not meet that deadline

Under the CAA new and modified sources of air pollution must meet certain new source standards the New Source Review

Program In the late 1990s the EPA filed lawsuits against many coal-fired power plants in the eastern United States alleging

that the owners perforred non-routine maintenance causing increased emissions that should have triggered the application of

these new source standards Some of these lawsuits have been settled with the owners agreeing to install additional emission

control devices in their coal-fired power plants The remaining litigation and the uncertainty around the New Source Review

Program rules could acversely impact demand for coal Regardless of the outcome of litigation on either rule stricter controls

on emissions of sulfur Jioxide nitrogen oxide and mercury are likely Any such controls may have an adverse impact on the

demand for coal which may have an adverse effect on NACoa1s business financial condition or results of operations

Under the CAA the ElA also adopts national emission standards for hazardous air pollutants In December 2011 the EPA

adopted final rule called the Mercury and Air Toxics Standard MATS which applies to new and existing coal-fired and

oil-fired units This requires mercury emission reductions but also requires reductions in emissions of acid gases during fuel

combustion and additiDnal reductions in fine particulates which is being regulated as surrogate for certain metals

NACoa1s utility customers must incur substantial costs to control emissions to meet all of the CAA requirements including the

new requirements undcr MATS and the EPAs regional haze program These costs could raise the price of coal-generated

electricity making coaZ -fired power less competitive with other sources of electricity thereby reducing demand for coal In

addition NACoals utility customers may choose to close coal-fired generation units or to postpone or cancel plans to add new

capacity in light of not only these costs but also of the adequacy of the time mandated for compliance with the new

requirements and the prospects of the imposition of additional future requirements on emissions from coal-fired units If

NACoa1 cannot offset the cost to control mercury acid gas and fine particulate emissions by lowering the costs of delivery of

its coal on an energy equivalent basis or if NACoa1s customers elect to close coal-fired units the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected

Global climate change continues to attract considerable public and scientific attention and considerable amount of legislative

and regulatory attention in the United States The United States Congress is considering climate change legislation that would

reduce greenhouse gas GHG emissions particularly from coal combustion by power plants The EPA has promulgated

regulations to control GHG under the CAA without new legislation Enactment of laws and passage of regulations regarding

GHG emissions by the United States or some of its states or other actions to limit carbon dioxide emissions such as opposition

by environmental
groups to expansion or modification of coal-fired power plants could result in electric generators switching

from coal to other fuel sources

The United States Congress continues to consider variety of proposals to reduce GHG emissions from the combustion of coal

and other fuels These proposals include emission taxes emission reductions including cap-and-trade programs and

mandates or incentives to generate electricity by using renewable resources such as wind or solar power Some states have

established programs to reduce GHG emissions

The EPA has begun to establish GHG regulation program under the CAA by issuing finding that the emission of six GHG
including carbon dioxide and methane may reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health and welfare On June 26 2012

the U.S Court of Appeals upheld this finding Based on this finding the EPA published New Source Performance Standard

for greenhouse gases emitted from future new power plants in 2012 The EPA is contemplating establishing greenhouse gas

limits for existing power plants This could impact coal-fired power plants and reduce the demand for coal

The United States has not implemented the 1992 Framework Convention on Global Climate Change Kyoto Protocol which

became effective for many countries on February 16 2005 The Kyoto Protocol was intended to limit or reduce emissions of

GHG such as carbon dioxide The United States has not ratified the emission targets of the Kyoto Protocol or any other GHG
agreement Because the first Protocol commitment period ended in 2012 an amendment to extend the Kyoto Protocol was

adopted in Doha Qatar on December 2012 The United States is not signatory to the amendment Even though the United

States has not accepted these international GHG limiting treaties nor has it enacted domestic legislation to control GHG
numerous lawsuits and regulatory actions have been undertaken by states and environmental groups to try to force controls on

the emission of carbon dioxide or to prevent the construction of new coal-fired power plants The implementation by the

United States of an international agreement the regulations promulgated to date by the EPA with respect to GHG emissions or

the adoption of legislaton to control GHG emissions could have materially adverse effect on the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations
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NACoaI has obtained all necessary permits under the CAA at all of its coal mining operations where it is responsible for

permitting

Clean Water Act

The Clean Water Act affects coal mining operations by establishing in-stream water quality standards and treatment standards

for waste water discharge Permits requiring regular monitoring reporting and performance standards govern the discharge of

pollutants into water

Federal and state regulations establish standards for water quality These regulations prohibit the diminution of water quality

Waters discharged from coal mines will be required to meet these standards These federal and state requirements could require

more costly water treatment and could materially adversely affect the Companys business financial condition and results of

operations

The Company believes NACoal has obtained all permits required under the Clean Water Act and corresponding state laws and

is in compliance with such permits

Bellaire Corporation wholly owned non-operating subsidiary of the Company Bellaire is treating mine water drainage

from coal refuse piles associated with two former underground coal mines in Ohio and one former underground coal mine in

Pennsylvania and is treating mine water from former underground coal mine in Pennsylvania Bellaire anticipates that it will

need to continue these activities indefinitely and has accrued liability of $16.4 million as of December 31 2012 related to

these matters

In connection with Bellaires normal permit renewal with the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection DEP
it was notified during 2004 that in order to obtain renewal of the permit it would be required to establish mine water treatment

trust the Trust On October 12010 Bellaire executed Post-Mining Treatment Trust Consent Order and Agreement

Consent with the DEP which established the Trust to provide financial assurance mechanism in order to assure the long-

term treatment of post-mining discharges

Bellaire agreed to initially fund the Trust with approximately $5.0 million Bellaire funded $2.5 million upon execution of the

Consent and the remaining amount was funded in 2011

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act RCRA affects coal mining operations by establishing requirements for the

treatment storage and disposal of wastes including hazardous wastes Coal mine wastes such as overburden and coal cleaning

wastes currently are exempted from hazardous waste management EPA has proposed rule that may designate coal

combustion residuals or coal ash CCRs as hazardous waste However the EPA proposed rule exempts CCRs disposed of at

mine sites in favor of deferring any regulation to the Federal Office of Surface Mining OSM for these materials Currently

the Office of Surface Mining is developing rules to address the use of CCRs on coal mine sites The outcome of these

rulemakings and any subsequent actions by EPA and OSM could impact those NACoa1 operations which use CCRs for haul

roads and other beneficial uses If NACoal were unable to use CCRs for this purpose its revenues for disposing of CCRs from

its customers may decrease and its costs may increase due to the purchase of alternative materials for haul roads

Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act

The Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act and similar state laws create liabilities for the

investigation and remediation of releases of hazardous substances into the environment and for damages to natural resources

The Company must also comply with reporting requirements under the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know

Act and the Toxic Substances Control Act

From time to time the Company has been the subject of administrative proceedings litigation and investigations relating to

environmental matters

The extent of the liability and the cost of complying with environmental laws cannot be predicted with certainty due to the lack

of specific information available with respect to many sites the potential for new or changed laws and regulations and for the

development of new remediation technologies and the uncertainty regarding the timing of work with respect to particular sites

As result the Company may incur material liabilities or costs related to environmental matters in the future and such

environmental liabilities or costs could adversely affect the Companys results of operations and financial condition In

addition there can be no assurance that changes in laws or regulations would not affect the manner in which NACoaI is

required to conduct its operations
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Competition

The coal industry competes with other sources of energy particularly oil gas hydro-electric power and nuclear power In

addition it competes with subsidized green energy projects such as biofuels wind and solar projects Among the factors that

affect competition are the price and availability of oil and natural gas environmental considerations the time and expenditures

required to develop new energy sources the cost of transportation the cost of compliance with governmental regulations the

impact of federal and slate energy policies and the current trend toward deregulation of energy markets The ability of NACoaI

to market and develop its reserves will depend upon the interaction of these factors

Based on industry information NACoa1 believes it was one of the ten largest coal producers in the United States in 2012 based

on total coal tons produced

Employees

As of January 31 2013 NACoal had approximately 1700 employees including approximately 1300 employees at the

unconsolidated mines None of NACoa1s employees are unionized NACoa1 believes its current labor relations with employees

are satisfactory

Hamilton Beach Brands

General

HBB is leading desig er marketer and distributor of small electric household appliances as well as commercial products for

restaurants bars and hctels HBBs products are marketed primarily to retail merchants and wholesale distributors

Sales and Marketing

HBB designs markets and distributes wide range of small electric household appliances including but not limited to

blenders can openers coffeemakers food processors indoor electric and outdoor gas grills irons mixers slow cookers

toasters and toaster ovens HBB also markets line of air purifiers and odor eliminators In addition HBB designs markets and

distributes commercial products for restaurants bars and hotels HBB generally markets its better and best segments under

the Hamilton Beach brand and uses the Proctor Silex brand for the good segment and its opening price point products

HBB markets premium stand mixers under the Hamilton Beach eclectrics brand HBB also markets air purifiers allergen

reducers and home odor elimination products under the TrueAir brand

Furthermore HBB supplies Wal-Mart with certain GE-brand kitchen electric and garment-care appliances under Wal-Marts

license agreement with General Electric Company In addition HBB supplies Kohls with certain Food Network-branded

kitchen appliances HBB has licensed the Melitta brand from Melitta North America Inc for unique line of coffee and hot

beverage appliances HBB supplies additional private label products on limited basis throughout North America

HBB markets its retail roducts primarily in North America but also sells products in Latin America and other selected

markets HBB commerial products are sold worldwide Retail sales are generated predominantly by network of inside sales

employees to mass merchandisers national department stores variety store chains drug store chains specialty home retailers

distributors and other retail outlets Wal-Mart accounted for approximately 31% 30% and 36% of HBBs revenues in 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively HBBs five largest customers accounted for approximately 53% 50% and 55% of HBBs

revenues for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The loss of or significant reduction in sales to

any key customer could result in significant decreases in HBBs revenue and profitability and an inability to sustain or grow its

business

Sales promotion activities are primarily focused on cooperative advertising In addition HBB promotes certain of its innovative

products through the use of television web and print advertising HBB also licenses certain of its trademarks to various

licensees for use with microwaves compact refrigerators cookware kitchen tools and gadgets and hand and stick vacuums

Because of the seasonal nature of the markets for small electric appliances HBBs management believes backlog is not

meaningful indicator of performance and is not significant indicator of annual sales Backlog represents customer orders

which may be cancelled at any time prior to shipment Backlog for HBB was approximately $14.9 million and $13.1 million at

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

HBBs warranty program to the consumer consists generally of limited warranty lasting for varying periods of up to ten years

for electric appliances with the majority of products having warranty of one year Under its warranty program HBB may

repair or replace at its option those products found to contain manufacturing defects

The market for small electric household appliances is highly seasonal in nature Revenues and operating profit for HBB are

traditionally greater in second half of the year as sales of small electric appliances to retailers and consumers increase
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significantly with the fall holiday-selliing season Because of the seasonality of purchases of its products HBB generally uses

substantial amount of cash or short-term debt to finance inventories and accounts receivable in anticipation of the fall holiday-

selling season

Patents Trademarks Copyrights and Licenses

HBB holds patents and trademarks registered in the United States and foreign countries for various products HBB believes its

business is not dependent upon any individual patent copyright or license but that the Hamilton Beach and Proctor Silex

trademarks are material to its business

Product Design and Devdopment

HBB spent $7.5 million $7.4 million and $7.6 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively on product design and

development activities

Key Suppliers and Raw Material

The majority of HBBs products are supplied to its specifications by third-party suppliers located in China HBB does not

maintain long-term purchase contracts with suppliers and operates mainly on purchase order basis HBB generally negotiates

purchase orders with its foreign suppliers in U.S dollars The weakening of the U.S dollar against local currencies could result

in certain non-U.S manufacturers increasing the U.S dollar prices for future product purchases

During 2012 HBB purchased approximately 98% of its finished products from suppliers in China HBB does not currently

depend on any single supplier HBB believes the loss of any one supplier would not have long-term material adverse effect on

its business as there are adequate third-party -supplier choices available that can meet HBBs production and quality

requirements However the loss of supplier could in the short term adversely affect HBBs business until alternative supply

arrangements are secured

The principal raw materials used by HBBs third-party suppliers to manufacture its products are plastic glass steel copper

aluminum and packaging materials HBB believes adequate quantities of raw materials are available from various suppliers

Competition

The small electric household appliance industry does not have onerous entry barriers As result HBB competes with many
small manufacturers and distributors of housewares products Based on publicly available information about the industry HBB

believes it is one of the largest full-line distributors and marketers of small electric household appliances in North America

based on key product categories

As retailers generally purchase limited selection of small electric appliances HBB competes with other suppliers for retail

shelf space HBB conducts consumer advertising for the Hamilton Beach brand HBB believes the principal areas of

competition with respect to its products are product design and innovation quality price product features merchandising

promotion and warranty

Government Regulation

HBB is subject to numerous federal and state health safety and environmental regulations HBBs management believes the

impact of expenditures to comply with such laws will not have material adverse effect on HBB

As marketer and distributor of consumer products HBB is subject to the Consumer Products Safety Act and the Federal

Hazardous Substances Act which empower the U.S Consumer Product Safety Commission CPSC to seek to exclude

products that are found to iDe unsafe or hazardous from the market Under certain circumstances the CPSC could require HBB

to repair replace or refund the purchase price of one or more of HBBs products or HBB may voluntarily do so

Throughout the world electrical appliances are subject to various mandatory and voluntary standards including requirements

in some jurisdictions that products be listed by Underwriters Laboratories Inc UL or other similar recognized laboratories

HBB also uses the Intertek Testing Services for certification and testing of compliance with UL standards as well as other

nation- and industry-specific standards HBB endeavors to have its products designed to meet the certification requirements of

and to be certified in each of the jurisdictions in which they are sold

The Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC adopted conflict mineral rules under Section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank

Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act Dodd-Frank on August 22 2012 The rules require public companies to

disclose information about their use of specific minerals originating from and financing armed groups in the Democratic

Republic of the Congo or adjoining countries DRC The rules do not ban the use of minerals from conflict sources but
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require public disclosure beginning with calendar year 2013 HBB is subject to the rules and is evaluating its supply chain and

will continue to develop processes to assess the impacts and comply with the regulation

Employees

As of January 31 2013 HBBs work force consisted of approximately 500 employees most of whom are not represented by

unions In Canada as of January 31 2013 16 hourly employees at HBBs Picton Ontario distribution facility were unionized

These employees are represented by an employee association which performs consultative role on employment matters None

of HBBs U.S employees are unionized HBB believes its current labor relations with both union and non-union employees are

satisfactory

Kitchen Collection

General

KC is national specialty retailer of kitchenware and gourmet foods operating under the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet

Che1 store names in cutlet and traditional malls throughout the United States

Sales and Marketing

KC operated 312 retail stores as of December 31 2012 Kitchen Collection stores are located primarily in factory outlet and

traditional malls and feature merchandise of highly recognizable name-brand manufacturers including Hamilton Beach and

Proctor Silex Le Gourmet Chef stores are located primarily in factory outlet and traditional malls throughout the United

States and feature gourmet foods and home entertainment products as well as brand name electric and non-electric kitchen

items including Hamilton Beach

Seasonality

Revenues and operating profit for KC are traditionally greater in the second half of the year as sales to consumers increase

significantly with the fall holiday-selling season Because of the seasonality of purchases of its products KC incurs substantial

short-term debt to finace inventories in anticipation of the fall holiday-selling season

Product Design and Ievelopment

KC retailer has no expenditures for product design and development activities

Product Sourcing and Distribution

KC purchases all inventory centrally which allows KC to take advantage of volume purchase discounts and monitor controls

over inventory and product mix KC purchases its inventory from approximately 300 suppliers one of which represented

approximately 11% of purchases during the year ended December 31 2012 No other suppliers represent more than 10% of

purchases KC believe that the loss of any one supplier would not have long-term material adverse effect on its business as

there are adequate third-party supplier choices available that can meet KCs requirements However the loss of supplier

could in the short term adversely affect KCs business until alternative supply arrangements are secured

KC currently maintains its inventory for distribution to its stores at distribution center located near its corporate headquarters

in Chillicothe Ohio

In the near term KC will focus on comparable store sales growth and expansion into new outlet centers Longer term KC will

continue expansion into traditional outlet centers as new centers open and as new opportunities become available into well-

established outlet centers that meet the Companys site profile KC plans to focus on enhancing sales volume and profitability

through refinement of its store format display and appearance ongoing review of product offerings and merchandise mix while

continuing to evaluate and as lease contracts permit close underperforming stores If adequate profit prospects are

demonstrated at the Le Gourmet Chef format the Companys expansion focus will shift to increasing the number of these

stores as well

Competition

KC competes against diverse group of retailers including specialty stores department stores discount stores and internet and

catalog retailers The retail environment continues to be extremely competitive Widespread Chinese sourcing of products

allows many retailers to offer value-priced kitchen products

KC believes there is giowth potential in kitchenware retailing but only through offering unique high quality products at prices

affordable to most consumers While number of very low-end and very high-end kitchenware retailers participate in the

marketplace KC believes there is still an opportunity for stores offering mid-priced high-quality kitchenware
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Patents Trademarks Copyrights and Licenses

KC holds trademarks registered in the United States for the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef store names KC

believes that the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef store name trademarks are material to its business

Employees

As of January 31 2013 KC work force consisted of approximately 1700 employees None of KC employees are unionized

KC believes its current labor relations with employees are satisfactory

Item IA RISK FACTORS

North American Coal

Termination of or default under long-term mining contracts could materially reduce the Companys profitability

Substantially all of NACoaIs profits are derived from long-term mining contracts The contracts for certain of NACoa1s

unconsolidated mines permit the customer under some conditions of default to acquire the assets or stock of the subsidiary for

an amount roughly equal tc book value In one case the customer may elect to acquire the stock of the subsidiary upon

specified period of prior notice for any reason in exchange for payments to NACoal on coal mined at that facility in the future

If any of NACoaIs long-term mining contracts were terminated or if any of its customers were to default under the contracts

profitability could be materially reduced to the extent that NACoa1 is unable to find alternative customers at the same level of

profitability

NACoaIs unconsolidated mines are subject to risks created by changes in customer demand inflationary adjustments

and tax rates

The contracts with the unconsolidated mines customers allow each mine to sell coal at price based on actual cost plus an

agreed pre-tax profit per ton or cost plus management fee during the production stage During the development stage the

contracts with the unconsolidated mines customers other than the Coyote Creek customer provide for reimbursement of

actual costs incurred plus monthly management fee Coyote Creeks customer does not reimburse developments costs until

the production stage when deferred development costs are reimbursed over 52-month period During the production stage

the unconsolidated mines customers pay on cost-plus basis only for the coal they consume and use As result reduced coal

usage by customers for any reason including but not limited to fluctuations in demand due to unanticipated weather conditions

scheduled and unscheduled power plant outages economic conditions or governmental regulations could have an adverse

impact on the Companys results of operations Because of the contractual price formulas for the sale of coal and mining

services by these unconsolidated mines the profitability of these operations is also subject to fluctuations in inflationary

adjustments or lack thereof that can impact the per ton profit or management fee paid for the coal and taxes applicable to

NACoaIs income on that coal In addition any changes in tax laws that eliminate benefits for percentage depletion would have

material adverse effect on the Company These factors could materially reduce NACoaIs profitability

NACoaIs consolidated mining operations are subject to risks created by its capital investment in the mines the costs of

mining the coal and the dragline mining equipment in addition to risks created by changes in customer demand

inflationary adjustments nd tax rates

The consolidated mining operations are comprised of MLMC Reed Minerals dragline mining services royalties from mineral

leases to other mining comoanies and other activities The profitability of these consolidated mining operations is subject to the

risk of loss of its investment in these mining operations changes in demand from customers as well as increases in the cost of

mining the coal At MLMC and Reed Minerals the costs of mining operations are not passed on to customers As such

increased costs at MLMC and Reed Minerals could materially reduce NACoa1s profitability NACoa1s operations are subject

to changes in customer demand for any reason including but not limited to fluctuations in demand due to unanticipated

weather conditions the emrgence of unidentified adverse mining conditions planned and unplanned power plant outages

economic conditions including economic conditions that adversely affect the demand for steel governmental regulations

inflationary adjustments and tax risks In addition any changes in tax laws that eliminate benefits for percentage depletion or

eliminate the expensing of exploration and development costs would have material adverse effect on the Company These

factors could materially reduce NACoa1s profitability

Mining operations are vulnerable to weather and other conditions that are beyond NACoaIs control

Many conditions beyond NACoaIs control can decrease the delivery and therefore the use of coal to NACoaIs customers

These conditions include weather the emergence of unidentified adverse mining conditions unexpected maintenance problems

and shortages of replacement parts which could significantly reduce the Companys profitability
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Government regulations could impose costly requirements on NACoa1

The coal mining industry is subject to regulation by federal state and local authorities on matters concerning the health and

safety of employees land use permit and licensing requirements air and water quality standards plant and wildlife protection

reclamation and restoration of mining properties after mining the discharge of materials into the environment surface

subsidence from underground mining and the effects that mining has on groundwater quality and availability Legislation

mandating certain benefits for current and retired coal miners also affects the industry Mining operations require numerous

governmental permits and approvals NACoal is required to prepare and present to federal state or local authorities data

pertaining to the impact the production of coal may have upon the environment The public including non-governmental

organizations opposition groups and individuals have statutory rights to comment upon and submit objections to requested

permits and approvals Compliance with these requirements may be costly and time-consuming and may delay commencement

or continuation of development or production

On July21 2010 the United States Congress passed the Dodd-Frank act which resulted in the SEC adopting rules that will require

NACoa1 to disclose on an annual basis beginning in 2014 certain payments made by NACoaI to the U.S government and foreign

governments including sub-national governments NACoa1s efforts to comply with the Dodd-Frank act the rules and regulations

promulgated thereunder and other new rules and regulations have resulted in and are likely to continue to result in increased

general and administrative expenses
and diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to

compliance activities

New legislation and/or regulations and orders may materially adversely affect NACoals mining operations or its cost structure

New legislation including proposals related to environmental protection that would further regulate and tax the coal industry

may also require NACal or its customers to change operations significantly or incur increased costs Possible limitations on

carbon emissions and requirements for specific mix of fuel sources for energy generation methods may reduce potential coal

demand All of these factors could significantly reduce the Companys profitability

NACoa1 is subject to federal and state mining regulations which place burden on it

Federal and state statules require NACoal to restore mine property in accordance with specified standards and an approved

reclamation plan and require that NACoa1 obtain and periodically renew permits for mining operations Regulations require

NACoa1 to incur the cost of reclaiming current mine disturbance Although the Company believes that appropriate accruals

have been recorded for all expected reclamation and other costs associated with closed mines future profitability would be

adversely affected if accruals for these costs are later determined to be insufficient or if changed conditions including adverse

judicial proceedings oi revised assumptions require change in these reserves

NACoa1s operations are impacted by the Clean AirAct requirements affecting coal consumption

The process of burnin coal can cause many compounds and impurities in the coal to be released into the air including sulfur

dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulate matter and others The CAA and the corresponding state laws that extensively

regulate the emissions of materials into the air affect coal mining operations both directly and indirectly Direct impacts on coal

mining operations occur through CAA permitting requirements and/or emission control requirements relating to air

contaminants especially particulate matter Indirect impacts on coal mining operations occur through regulation of the air

emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides mercury particulate matter and other compounds emitted by coal-fired power

plants The EPA has promulgated or proposed regulations that impose tighter emission restrictions in number of areas some

of which are currently subject to litigation The general effect of tighter restrictions could be to reduce demand for coal Any

reduction in coals shae of the capacity for power generation could have material adverse effect on the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations

States are required to submit to the EPA revisions to their SIPs that demonstrate the manner in which the states will attain

NAAQS every time NAAQS is issued or revised by the EPA The EPA has adopted NAAQS for several pollutants which it

continues to periodically review for revisions When the EPA adopts new more stringent NAAQS for pollutant some states

have to change their existing SIPs If state fails to revise its SIP and obtain EPA approval the EPA may adopt regulations to

effect the revision Coal mining operations and coal-fired power plants that emit particulate matter or other specified material

are therefore affected by changes in the SIPs Through this process over the last few years the EPA has reduced the NAAQS
for particulate matter ozone and nitrogen oxides NACoa1s coal mining operations and utility customers may be directly

affected when the revisions to the SIPs are made and incorporate new NAAQS for sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxides ozone and

particulate matter In response to court remand of earlier rules to control the regional transport of sulfur dioxide and nitrogen

oxides from coal-fired power plants and their impacts of downwind NAAQS areas in mid-2011 the EPA finalized CSAPR to

address interstate transport of pollutants This affects states in the west including Texas whose emissions may travel to states

in the eastern half of the United States This rule imposes additional emission restrictions on coal-fired power plants to attain
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ozone and fine particulate NAAQS On August 21 2012 the U.S Court of Appeals stuck down the CSAPR rule effectively

eliminating the new additional emission restrictions

The CAA Acid Rain Control Provisions were promulgated as part of the CAA Amendments of 1990 in Title IV of the CAA
The Acid Rain Program required reductions of sulfur dioxide emissions from coal-fired power plants The Acid Rain Program

is now mature program and the Company believes that any market impacts of the required controls have likely been factored

into the coal market

The EPA promulgated regional haze program designed to protect and to improve visibility at and around Class Areas which

are generally National Parks National Wilderness Areas and International Parks This program may restrict the construction of

new coal-fired power plants whose operation may impair visibility at and around the Class Areas Additionally the program

requires certain existing coal-fired power plants to install additional control measures designed to limit haze-causing emissions

such as sulfur dioxide nitrogen oxide and particulate matter States were required to submit Regional Haze SIPs to the EPA by

December 2007 however many states did not meet that deadline

Under the CAA new and modified sources of air pollution must meet certain new source standards In the late l990s the EPA

filed lawsuits against many coal-fired power plants in the eastern United States alleging that the owners performed non-routine

maintenance causing increased emissions that should have triggered the application of these new source standards Some of

these lawsuits have been settled with the owners agreeing to install additional emission control devices in their coal-fired power

plants The remaining litigation and the uncertainty around the New Source Review Program rules could adversely impact

demand for coal Regardless of the outcome of litigation on either rule stricter controls on emissions of sulfur dioxide nitrogen

oxide and mercury are likely Any such controls may have an adverse impact on the demand for coal which may have an

adverse effect on NACoa1s business financial condition or results of operations

Under the CAA the EPA also adopts national emission standards for hazardous air pollutants In December 2011 the EPA

adopted final rule called MATS which applies to new and existing coal-fired and oil-fired units This requires mercury

emission reductions but also requires reductions in emissions of acid gases during fuel combustion and additional reductions

in fine particulates which is being regulated as surrogate for certain metals

NACoaIs utility customers must incur substantial costs to control emissions to meet all of the CAA requirements including the

new requirements under CSAPR and the EPAs regional haze program These costs could raise the price of coal-generated

electricity making coal-fired power less competitive with other sources of electricity thereby reducing demand for coal In

addition NACoaIs utility customers may choose to close coal-fired generation units or to postpone or cancel plans to add new

capacity in light of not onE these costs but also of the adequacy of the time mandated for compliance with the new

requirements and the prospects of the imposition of additional future requirements on emissions from coal-fired units If

NACoaI cannot offset the cost to control mercury acid gas and fine particulate emissions by lowering the costs of delivery of

its coal on an energy equivalent basis or if NACoals customers elect to close coal-fired units the Companys business

financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected

Global climate change continues to attract considerable public and scientific attention and considerable amount of legislative

and regulatory attention in the United States Congress is considering climate change legislation that would reduce GHG
emissions particularly from coal combustion by power plants The EPA has promulgated regulations to control GHG under the

CAA without new legislation Enactment of laws and passage of regulations regarding GHG emissions by the United States or

some of its states or other actions to limit carbon dioxide emissions such as opposition by environmental groups to expansion

or modification of coal-fired power plants could result in electric generators switching from coal to other fuel sources

Congress continues to consider variety of proposals to reduce GHG emissions from the combustion of coal and other fuels

These proposals include emission taxes emission reductions including cap-and-trade programs and mandates or incentives

to generate electricity by using renewable resources such as wind or solar power Some states have established programs to

reduce GHG emissions

The EPA has begun to establish GHG regulation program under the CAA by issuing finding that the emission of six GHG
including carbon dioxide and methane may reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health and welfare On June 26 2012

the U.S Court of Appeals upheld this finding Based on this finding the EPA published New Source Performance Standard

for greenhouse gases emitted from future new power plants in 2012 The EPA is contemplating establishing greenhouse gas

limits for existing power plants This could impact coal-fired power plants and reduce the demand for coal

The United States has not implemented the Kyoto Protocol which became effective for many countries on February 16 2005

The Kyoto Protocol was intended to limit or reduce emissions of GHG such as carbon dioxide The United States has not

ratified the emission targets of the Kycto Protocol or any other GHG agreement Because the first Protocol commitment period

ended in 2012 an amendment to extend the Kyoto Protocol was adopted in Doha Qatar on December 82012 The United

States is not signatory to the amendment Even though the United States has not accepted these international GHG limiting
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treaties nor has it enacted domestic legislation to control GHG numerous lawsuits and regulatory actions have been undertaken

by states and environmental groups to try to force controls on the emission of carbon dioxide or to prevent the construction of

new coal-fired power plants The implementation by the United States of an international agreement the regulations

promulgated to date by the EPA with respect to GHG emissions or the adoption of legislation to control GHG emissions could

have materially adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

NACoa1 is subject to the high costs and risks involved in the development of new coal and dragline mining projects

From time to time NACoa1 seeks to develop new coal and dragline mining projects The costs and risks associated with such

projects can be substantial In addition any changes in tax laws that eliminate the expensing of exploration and development

costs will increase the cost of building mine and make the cost of coal less competitive with other power generation fuels

Hamilton Beach Brands

HBBs business is sensitive to the strength of the U.S retail market and weakness in this market could adversely affect

its business

The strength of the retail economy in the United States has significant impact on HBBs performance Weakness in consumer

confidence and poor financial performance by mass merchandisers warehouse clubs department stores or any of HBBs other

customers would result in lost revenues general slowdown in the retail sector would result in additional pricing and

marketing support pressures on HBB

The market for HBBs products is highly seasonal and dependent on consumer spending which could result in

significant variations in the Companys revenues and profitability

Sales of HBBs products are related to consumer spending Any downturn in the general economy or shift in consumer

spending away from small electric household appliances would adversely affect its business In addition the market for small

electric household appliances is highly seasonal in nature HBB often recognizes substantial portion of its sales in the last half

of the year as sales of small electric appliances to retailers and consumers increase significantly with the fall holiday-selling

season Accordingly quarter-to-quarter comparisons of past operating results of HBB are meaningful only when comparing

equivalent time perioth if at all Any economic downturn decrease in consumer spending or shift in consumer spending

away from small electric household appliances may significantly reduce revenues and profitability

HBB is dependent on key customers and the loss of or significant decline in business from one or more of its key

customers could materially reduce its revenues and profitability and its ability to sustain or grow its business

HBB relies on several key customers Its five largest customers accounted for approximately 53% 50% and 55% of revenues

for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Wal-Mart accounted for approximately 31% 30% and

36% of HBBs revenues in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Although HBB has long-established relationships with many

customers it does not have any long-term supply contracts with these customers and purchases are generally made using

individual purchase orders loss of any key customer could result in significant decreases in HBBs revenues and profitability

and an inability to sustain or grow its business

HBB must receive continuous flow of new orders from its large high-volume retail customers however it may be unable to

continually meet the needs of those customers In addition failure to obtain anticipated orders or delays or cancellations of

orders or significant pressure to reduce prices from key customers could impair its ability to sustain or grow its business

As result of dependence on its key customers HBB could experience material adverse effect on its revenues and

profitability if any of the following were to occur

the insolvency or bankruptcy of any key customer

declining market in which customers materially reduce orders or demand lower prices or

strike or work stoppage at key customer facility which could affect both its suppliers and customers

If HBB were to lose or experience significant decline in business from any major retail customer or if any major retail

customers were to go lankrupt HBB might be unable to find alternate distribution sources

HBB depends on third-party suppliers for the manufacturing of all of its products which subjects the Company to

risks including unanlicipated increases in expenses decreases in revenues and disruptions in the supply chain
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HBB is dependent on third-party suppliers for the manufacturing of all of its products HBBs ability to select reliable suppliers

who provide timely deliveries of quality products will impact its success in meeting customer demand Any inability of HBBs

suppliers to timely deliver products that meet HBBs specifications or any unanticipated changes in suppliers could be

disruptive and costly to the Company Any significant failure by HBB to obtain quality products on timely basis at an

affordable cost or any signLficant delays or interruptions of supply would have material adverse effect on the Companys

profitability

Because HBBs suppliers are primarily based in China international operations subject the Company to additional risks

including among others

currency fluctuations

labor unrest

potential political economic and social instability

lack of developed infrastructure

restrictions on transfers of funds

import and export duties and quotas

changes domestic and international customs and tariffs

uncertainties involving the costs to transport products

long distance shipping routes dependent upon small group of shipping and rail carriers

unexpected changes in regulatory environments

regulatory issues involved in dealing with foreign suppliers and in exporting and importing products

protection of intellectual property

difficulty in complylLng with variety of foreign laws

difficulty in obtaining distribution and support and

potentialy adverse tax consequences

The foregoing factors could have material adverse effect on HBBs ability to maintain or increase the supply of products

which may result in material increases in expenses and decreases in revenues

Increases in costs of products may materially reduce the Companys profitability

Factors that are largely beyond the Companys control such as movements in commodity prices for the raw materials needed

by suppliers of HBBs products may affect the cost of products and HBB may not be able to pass those costs on to its

customers As an example HBBs products require substantial amount of plastic Because the primary resource used in plastic

is petroleum the cost and availability of plastic varies to great extent with the price of petroleum In recent years the prices

of petroleum as well as steel aluminum and copper have increased significantly These price increases may materially reduce

the Companys profitability

The increasing concentration of HBIBs small electric household appliance sales among few retailers and the trend

toward private label brands could materially reduce revenues and profitability

With the growing trend towards the concentration of HBBs small electric household appliance sales among few retailers

HBB is increasingly dependent upon fewer customers whose bargaining strength is growing as result of this concentration

HBB sells substantial quantity of products to mass merchandisers national department stores variety store chains drug store

chains specialty home retailers and other retail outlets These retailers generally purchase limited selection of small electric

household appliances As result HBB competes for retail shelf space with its competitors In addition certain of HBBs larger

customers use their own private label brands on household appliances that compete directly with some of HBBs products As

the retailers in the small electric household appliance industry become more concentrated competition for sales to these

retailers may increase which could materially reduce the Companys revenues and profitability

22



The small electric household and commercial appliance industry is consolidating which could reduce HBBs ability to

successfully secure product placements at key customers and limit its ability to sustain cost competitive position in the

industry

Over the past several years the small electric household and commercial appliance industry has undergone substantial

consolidation and further consolidation is likely As result of this consolidation the small electric household and commercial

appliance industry primarily consists of limited number of large distributors To the extent that HBB does not continue to be

major participant in the small electric household and commercial appliance industry its ability to compete effectively with

these larger distributor could be negatively impacted As result this condition could reduce HBBs ability to successfully

secure product placements at key customers and limit the ability to sustain cost competitive position in the industry

HBBs inability to compete effectively with competitors in its industry including large established companies with

greater resources could result in lost market share and decreased revenues

The small electric household and commercial appliance industry does not have onerous entry barriers As result HBB

competes with many small manufacturers and distributors of housewares products Additional competitors may also enter this

market and cause competition to intensify For example some of HBBs customers have expressed interest in sourcing or

expanding the extent of sourcing small electric household and commercial appliances directly from manufacturers in Asia The

Company believes conipetition is based upon several factors including product design and innovation quality price product

features merchandising promotion and warranty If HBB fails to compete effectively with these manufacturers and

distributors it could lose market share and experience decrease in revenues which would adversely affect the Companys

results of operations

HBB also competes with established companies number of which have substantially greater facilities personnel financial

and other resources In addition HBB competes with retail customers who use their own private label brands and importers

and foreign manufactuers of unbranded products Some competitors may be willing to reduce prices and accept lower profit

margins to compete with HBB As result of this competition HBB could lose market share and revenues

Government regulations could impose costly requirements on HBB

The SEC adopted conflict mineral rules under Section 1502 of Dodd-Frank on August 22 2012 The rules require disclosure of

the use of certain minerals known as conflict minerals which are mined from the DRC and adjoining countries The new

rules will require HBB to engage in due diligence efforts for the 2013 calendar year with initial disclosures required no later

than May 31 2014 and subsequent disclosures required no later than May 31 of each following year HBB expects that it will

incur additional costs and expenses which may be significant in order to comply with these rules including due diligence

to verify the sources of such conflict minerals and ii any changes that HBB may make to its products processes or sources

of supply as result of such diligence and verification activities Since HBBs supply chain is complex ultimately it may not be

able to designate all products as DRC conflict free which may adversely affect its reputation with certain customers In such

event HBB may also face difficulties in satisfying customers who require products purchased from HBB to be DRC conflict

free If HBB is not able to meet such requirements customers may choose not to purchase HBB products which could

adversely affect sales and the value of portions of HBBs inventory Further there may be only limited number of suppliers

offering products containing only DRC conflict free parts components and subassemblies and as result HBB cannot be sure

that it will be able to satisfy its purchase requirements from such suppliers in sufficient quantities or at competitive prices Any

one or combination of these various factors could harm HBBs business which would adversely affect HBBs results of

operations

Kitchen Collection

The market for KCs products is highly seasonal and dependent on consumer spending which could result in significant

variations in the Companys revenues and profitability

Sales of products sold at KC stores are subject to number of factors related to consumer spending including general

economic conditions affecting disposable consumer income such as unemployment rates business conditions interest rates

levels of consumer confidence energy prices mortgage rates the level of consumer debt and taxation weak economic

environment worsening of the general economy or shift in consumer spending will adversely affect KCs business In

addition KC often recognizes substantial portion of its revenues and operating profit in the last half of the year as sales to

consumers increase significantly with the fall holiday-selling season Accordingly any economic downturn decrease in

consumer spending or shift in consumer spending away from KCs products could significantly reduce or cause significant

variations in KCs revenues and profitability
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KC faces an extremely competitive specialty retail market and such competition could result in reduction of KCs

prices and loss of market share

The retail market is highly competitive KC competes against diverse group of retailers including specialty stores

department stores discount stores and internet and catalog retailers Widespread sourcing of products allows many retailers to

offer value-priced kitchen rroducts Many of KCs competitors are larger and have significantly greater financial marketing

and other resources This competition could result in the reduction of KC product prices and loss of market share

KC may not be able to forecast customer preferences accurately in its merchandise selections

KCs success depends in part on its ability to anticipate the tastes of its customers and to provide merchandise that appeals to

their preferences KCs strategy requires merchandising staff to introduce products that meet current customer preferences and

that are affordable and distinctive in quality and design KCs failure to anticipate identif or react appropriately to changes in

consumer trends could cause excess inventories and higher mark-downs or shortage of products and could harm KCs

business and operating results

KC depends on third-party suppliers for all of its products which subjects KC to risks including unanticipated

increases in expenses decreases in revenues and disruptions in the supply chain

KC is dependent on third-party suppliers for all of its products KCs ability to select reliable suppliers who provide timely

deliveries of quality products will impact its success in meeting customer demand Any inability of KCs suppliers to timely

deliver products or any unanticipated changes in suppliers could be disruptive and costly to KC The loss of supplier could in

the short term adversely affect KCs business until alternative supply arrangements are secured In addition KC may not be

able to acquire desired merchandise in sufficient quantities on acceptable terms in the future KCs business would also be

adversely affected by any delays in product shipments due to freight difficulties strikes or other difficulties at its principal

transport providers Any significant failure by KC to obtain products on timely basis at an affordable cost or any significant

delays or interruptions of supply would have material adverse effect on KCs profitability

Increases in health insurance costs could adversely impact KCs profitability

The costs of employee health care insuLrance have been increasing in recent years
due to rising health care costs legislative

changes and general economic conditions The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act as amended and related legislation

collectively the Health Care Reform Laws that were signed into law in March 2010 with varied effective dates may

require KC to provide health care insurance to certain part-time employees that would not otherwise have participated in KCs

health care insurance plan As result KC may incur additional costs continued increase in health care costs or additional

costs incurred as result of the Health Care Reform Laws could have negative impact on KCs profitability

General

The Company may become subject to claims under foreign laws and regulations which may be expensive time

consuming and distracting

Because the Company has employees property and business operations outside of the United States the Company is subject to

the laws and the court systems of many jurisdictions The Company may become subject to claims outside the United States

based in foreign jurisdictions for violations of their laws with respect to the foreign operations of NACoal and HBB In

addition these laws may be changed or new laws may be enacted in the future International litigation is often expensive time

consuming and distracting As result any of these risks could significantly reduce the Companys profitability and its ability

to operate its businesses eflŁctively

The Company is dependent on key personnel and the loss of these key personnel could significantly reduce its

profitability

The Company is highly dependent on the skills experience and services of its respective key personnel and the loss of key

personnel could have material adverse effect on its business operating results and financial condition Employment and

retention of qualified personnel is important to the successful conduct of the Companys business Therefore the Companys

success also depends upon its ability to recruit hire train and retain additional skilled and experienced management personnel

The Companys inability to hire and retain personnel with the requisite skills could impair its ability to manage and operate its

business effectively and could significantly reduce its profitability

The amount and frequency of dividend payments made on NACCOs common stock could change

The Board of Directors has the power to determine the amount and frequency of the payment of dividends Decisions regarding

whether or not to pay dividends and the amount of any dividends are based on earnings capital and future expense
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requirements financial conditions contractual limitations and other factors the Board of Directors may consider Accordingly

holders of NACCOs common stock should not rely on past payments of dividends in particular amount as an indication of

the amount of dividends that will be paid in the future

Item lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

Item PROPERTIES

NACCO

NACCO leases office
space

in Mayfield Heights Ohio suburb of Cleveland Ohio that serves as its corporate headquarters

NACoa1

NACoal leases its corporate headquarters office
space

in Plano Texas NACoa1s proven and probable coal reserves and

deposits owned in fee or held under leases which generally remain in effect until exhaustion of the reserves if mining is in

progress are estimated at approximately 2.2 billion tons including the unconsolidated mining operations all of which are

lignite coal deposits except for approximately 57.5 million tons of bituminous coal Reserves are estimates of quantities of

coal made by NACoa1s geological and engineering staff which are considered mineable in the future using existing operating

methods Developed reserves are those which have been allocated to mines which are in operation all other reserves are

classified as undeveloped Information concerning mine type reserve data and coal quality characteristics for NACoals

properties are set forth on the table on pages
and under Item Business North American Coal Sales Marketing

and Operations

Hamilton Beach Brands

The following table presents the principal distribution and office facilities owned or leased by HBB

Owned

Facility Location Leased Functions

Glen Allen Virginia Leased Corporate headquarters

Geel Belgium Distribution center

Hong Kong Peoples Republic of China Distribution center

Mexico City Mexico Leased Mexico sales and administrative headquarters

Tlalnepantla de Baz Mexico Distribution center

Olive Branch Mississippi Leased Distribution center

Picton Ontario Canada Leased Distribution Æenter

Southern Pines North Carolina Owned Service center for customer returns catalog distribution center

parts distribution center

Shenzhen China Leased Administrative office

Markham Ontario Canada Leased Canada sales and administration headquarters

This facility is not owned or leased by HBB This facility is managed by third-party distribution provider

Sales offices are also leased in several cities in the United States Canada and Mexico

The Kitchen Collection

KC leases its corporate headquarters building and the KC warehouse/distribution facility in Chillicothe Ohio KC leases its

retail stores typical Kitchen Collection store is approximately 3000 square feet and typical Le Gourmet Chef store is

approximately 4300 square feet At December 31 2012 there were 261 Kitchen Collection stores and 51 Le Gourmet Chef

stores The Kitchen Collection store count at December 31 2012 does not include 34 stores that were only open for the

holiday-selling season

Item LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is party to any material legal proceeding other than ordinary routine litigation

incidental to its respective business
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Item MINE SAFETY IISCLOSURES

Information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503a of the Dodd-Frank Wall

Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K is included in Exhibit 95 filed to this Form 10-K

Item 4A EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information under this Item is furnished pursuant to Instruction to Item 40 1b of Regulation S-K

There exists no arrangement or understanding between any executive officer and any other person pursuant to which such

executive officer was elected Each executive officer serves until his or her successor is elected and qualified

The following tables set forth the name age current position and principal occupation and employment during the past five

years of the Companys executive officers Certain executive officers of the Company listed below are also executive officers

for certain of NACCOs subsidiaries

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Name Age Current Position Other Positions

Alfred Rankin Jr

iC Butler Jr

71 Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of

NACCO from prior to 2008 Chairman of HBB from

January 2010 Chairman of KC from January 2010
Chairman of NACoaI from February 2010

52 Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer and Chief

Administrative Officer of NACCO from September

2012 Senior Vice President Project Development and

Administration of NACoaI from January 2010

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of

Hyster-Yale from September 2012 From October

2008 to September 2012 Chairman of NACCO
Materials Handling Group Inc

From prior to 2008 to September 2012 Vice President

Corporate Development and Treasurer of NACCO From

September 2011 to September 2012 Treasurer of

NACCO Materials Handling Group Inc From

May 2008 to January 2010 Senior Vice President

Project Development of NACoal

Mark Barrus 51 Vice President and Controller from February 2013 From prior to 2008 Partner KPMG LLP an
international accounting firm

John Neumann 37 Vice lresident General Counsel and Secretary of

NACCO from September 2012 Vice President

General Counsel and Secretary of NACoaI from

January 2011

From March 2009 to December 2010 Assistant General

Counsel and Assistant Secretary of NACoal From prior

to 2008 to February 2009 associate Jones Day law

firm
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PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANYS SUBSIDIARIES

NACOAL

Name Age Current Position Other Positions

Robert Benson 65 President and Chief Executive Officer of NACoaI from

prior to 2008

Michael Gregory 65 Vice President International Operations and Special From May 2008 to August 2010 Vice President

Projects of NACoaI from August 2010 Engineering Human Resources and Intemational

Operations of NACoaI From
prior

to 2008 to May 2008
Vice President Southem Operations and Human
Resources of NACoa1

Donald Grischow 65 Treasurer of NACoaI from prior to 2008

Thomas Koza 66 Vice President Senior Counsel and Assistant Secretary From prior to 2008 to December 2010 Vice President

of NACoaI from January 2011 Law and Administration and Secretary of NACoaI

John Pokorny 57 Controller of NACoaI from October 2009 From prior to 2008 to October 2009 Director of

Accounting and Financial Planning of NACoal

Harry Tipton III 55 Vice President Engineering and Louisiana and From
prior to 2008 to September 2010 General

Mississippi Operations of NACoa1 from September Manager of Mississippi Lignite Mining Company
2010
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PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANYS SUBSIDIARIES

HBB

Name Age Current Position Other Positions

Gregory Trepp 51 President and Chief Executive Officer of HBB from From June 2008 to January 2010 Vice President Global

January 2010 Chief Executive Officer of KC from Marketing of HBB From prior to 2008 to June 2008

January 2010 Vice President Marketing of HBB From April 2009 to

January 2010 Interim President and Chief Executive

Officer of KC

Keith Bums 56 Vice President Engineering and Information Technology From prior to 2008 to June 2008 Vice President

of I-lB from June 2008 Engineering and New Product Development of HBB

Kathleen Diller 61 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of HBB

from prior to 2008

Richard Moss 49 Senior Director Finance and Treasurer of HBB from From March 2009 to December 2010 Senior Director

January 2011 Finance and Credit of HBB From prior to 2008 to

February 2009 Director Financial Planning and Analysis

of HBB

Gregory Salyers 52 Senior Vice President Global Operations of HBB from From
prior

to 2008 to January 2010 Vice President

January 2010 Global Operations of HBB

James Taylor 55 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of l-IBB From
prior to 2008 to January 2011 Vice President

from January 2011 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of HBB

Scott Tidey 48 Senior Vice President North America Sales and From July 2008 to January 2010 Vice President North

Marketing of HBB from January 2010 America Sales of HBB From prior to 2008 to July 2008
Vice President U.S Consumer Sales of HBB

C.KC

Name Age Current Position Other Positions

Richard Chenc Jr 50 President of KC from February 2011 From July 2008 to January 2011 Vice President

General Merchandising Manager Dog PETCO Animal

Supplies Inc pet supply company From prior to

2008 to April 2008 Divisional Merchandising Manager

Bed Bath Window Rug and Storage Sears Holdings

Corporation national retailer
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PART II

Item MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

NACCOs Class common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol NC Because of

transfer restrictions no trading market has developed or is expected to develop for the Companys Class common stock The

Class common stock is convertible into Class common stock on one-for-one basis

On September 28 2012 the Company spun-off Hyster-Yale former subsidiary To complete the spin-of the Company
distributed one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock and one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock to NACCO
stockholders for each share of NACCO Class common stock or Class common stock owned

The high and low sales prices for the Class common stock and dividends per share for both classes of common stock for each

quarter during the past two years are presented in the table below

2012

Sales Price

High Low Cash Dividend

Fourth quarter 60.96 41.04 3.7500

Third quarter 129.20 97.95 0.5475

Second quarter 119.31 97.54 0.5475

First quarter 119.25 88.39 0.5325

2011

Sales Price

High Low Cash Dividend

Fourth quarter 92.98 56.53 0.5325

Third quarter 103.70 60.01 0.5325

Secondquarter 111.95 .$ 86.55 0.5325

Firstquarter 132.69 91.11 0.5225

On Septembei 28 2012 the Company spun-off Hyster-Yale former subsidiary To complete the spin-off the

Company distibuted one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock and one share of Hyster-Yale Class common

stock to NACCO stockholders for each share of NACCO Class common stock or Class common stock owned

The fourth quarter dividend included regular quarterly cash dividend of 25 cents per share and one-time special

cash dividend of $3.50 per share The 25 cent dividend paid in the fourth quarter of 2012 was the first regular

quarterly dividend following the spin-off of Hyster-Yale

At December 31 2012 there were approximately 810 Class common stockholders of record and approximately 200 Class

common stockholders of record See Note 18 to Consolidated Financial Statements contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K for

discussion of the amout of NACCOs investment in subsidiaries that was restricted at December 31 2012

Sales of Unregistered Company Stock

Pursuant to the Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan the Company issued an aggregate of 7882 shares of its

Class common stock on January 2012 April 2012 July 2012 and October 2012 for payment of portion of the

directors annual retainer fee In addition pursuant to the terms of such plan directors may elect to receive shares of Class

common stock in lieu of cash for up to 100% of the balance of their annual retainer meeting attendance fees and any committee

chairmans fees An aggregate of 2078 shares of Class common stock were issued under voluntary elections on January

2012 April 12012 Juiy 12012 and October 12012 The issuance of these unregistered shares qualifies as an exempt

transaction pursuant to Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933

Pursuant to the Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan the Company issued an aggregate of 4016 shares of its

Class common stock on January 2011 April 2011 July 2011 and October 2011 for payment of portion of the

directors annual retainer fee In addition pursuant to the terms of such plan directors may elect to receive shares of Class

common stock in lieu of cash for up to 100% of the balance of their annual retainer meeting attendance fees and any committee

chairmans fees An aggregate of 1109 shares of Class common stock were issued under voluntary elections on January
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2011 April 2011 July 2011 and October 2011 The issuance of these unregistered shares qualifies as an exempt

transaction pursuant to Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933

Pursuant to the Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan the Company issued an aggregate of 3516 shares of its

Class common stock on January 2010 April 2010 July 2010 and October 2010 for payment of portion of the

directors annual retainer fee In addition pursuant to the terms of such plan directors may elect to receive shares of Class

common stock in lieu of cash for up to 100% of the balance of their annual retainer meeting attendance fees and any committee

chairmans fees An aggregate of 1062 shares of Class common stock were issued under voluntary elections on January

2010 April 12010 July 12010 and October 12010 The issuance of these unregistered shares qualifies as an exempt

transaction pursuant to Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of Maximum Number of

Shares Purchased
Shares orAnnroximate

as Part of the
rt

Total Number Publicly
Dollar Value that May

of Shares Average Price Announced Yet Be Purchased Under

Period Purchased Paid per Share Program the Program

Monthl

October lto3l2012 .$ 47359610

Month

November to 30 2012 47359610

Month

December to 31 2012 44223 58.76 44223 44761058

Total 44223 58.76 44223 44761058

On November 2011 the Company announced that the Companys Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up

to S50 million of the Companys outstanding Class common stock The timing and amount of any repurchases will be

determined at the discretion of the Companys management based on number of factors including the availability of

capital other capital allocation alternatives and market conditions for the Companys Class common stock The

original authorization for the repurchase program expired on December 31 2012 however in November 2012 the

Companys Board of Directors approved an extension of the stock repurchase program through December 31 2013 The

share repurchase program does not require the Company to acquire any specific number of shares It may be modified

suspended extended or terminated by the Company at any time without prior notice and may be executed through open

market purchases privately negotiated transactions or otherwise All or part of the repurchases may be implemented

under Rule 0b5- plan which would allow repurchases under pre-set terms at times when the Company might

otherwise be prevented from doing so As of December 31 2012 the Company had repurchased $5.2 million of Class

common stock under this program
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Item SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31

2012 20112 20102 20092 20082

In millions except per share data

Operating Statement Data

Revenues

Operating profit loss

Income loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations net of tax3X4

Net income loss
___________ ___________ ___________ ___________

Basic earnings loss per
share

Continuing operations 5.04
9.49 5.66 6.22 7.71

Discontinued operations3X4 7.93 9.85 3.89 2.47 45.13

Basic earnings loss per
share 12.91 19.34 9.55 3.75 52.84

Diluted earnings loss per share

Continuing operations 5.02 9.46 5.65 6.22 7.71

Discontinued operations3X4 7.$ 9.82 3.88 2.47 45.13

Diluted earnings loss per share 12.92 19.28 9.53 3.75 52.84

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Companys stock price significantly declined compared with previous periods

and the Companys market value of equity was below its book value of tangible assets and the book value of equity

The Company performed an interim impairment test which indicated that goodwill and certain other intangibles were

impaired at December 31 2008 Therefore the Company recorded non-cash impairment charge of $435.7 million

during the fourth quarter of 2008 of which $84.6 million is included in continuing operations and $351.1 million is

included in discontinued operations

In 2006 the Company initiated litigation in the Delaware Chancery Court against Applica Incorporated Applica
and individuals and entities affiliated with Applicas shareholder Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund Ltd The

litigation alleged number of contract and tort claims against the defendants related to the Companys failed

transaction wi Applica which had been previously announced On February 14 2011 the parties to this litigation

entered into settlement agreement The settlement agreement provided for among other things the payment of $60

million to the Company and dismissal of the lawsuit with prejudice The payment was received in February 2011

Litigation costs related to this matter were $2.8 million $18.8 million $1.1 million and $0.8 million in 2011 2010

2009 and 2008 respectively

During 2012 NACCO spun-off Hyster-Yale former subsidiary The results of operations of Hyster-Yale are

reflected as discontinued operations in the table above

During 2009 NACoal completed the sale of certain assets of the Red River Mining Company Red River The

results of operations of Red River are reflected as discontinued operations in the table above

873.4 790.4 885.6 835.4 840.8

67.5 64.1 94.2 90.3 45.5

42.2 79.5 47.1 51.6 63.9

664 82.6 32.4 20.5 373.7

108.7 162.1 79.5 31.1 437.6
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Year Ended December

2Oi2 2011 2010 2009 2008

In millions except per share and employee data

Balance Sheet Data at December 311

Total assets3 776.3 1808.7 1670.9 1497.4 1702.3

Long-term debt3 1354 745 1398 1484 1706

Stockholders equity 281.4 576.2 447.4 396.6 356.7

Cash Flow Data

Provided by operating activities 143 155.2 1570 49

Provided by used for investing activities 74.2 32.7 5.8 23.1 71.4

Used for financing activities 123 42 43 64 63

Other Data

Per share data

Cash dividends 5.378 2.120 2.085 2.068 2.045

Market value at December 31 60.69 89.22 108.37 49.80 37.41

Stockholders equity at December31 33.69 68.81 53.69 47.82 43.05

Actual shares outstanding at December 31 8.353 8.3 74 8.333 8.294

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 8.384 8.383 8.328 8.290 8.28

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 8.414 8.408 344 8.296 8.281

Total employees at December 312 4300 4000 3900 4100 3800

During the fourth quarter of 2008 the Companys stock price significantly declined compared with previous periods

and the Companys market value of equity was below its book value of tangible assets and the book value of equity

The Company performed an interim impairment test which indicated that goodwill and certain other intangibles were

impaired at December 31 2008 Therefore the Company recorded non-cash impairment charge of $435.7 million

during the fourth quarter of 2008 of which $84.6 million is included in continuing operations and $351.1 million is

included in discontinued operations

Includes employees of Reed Minerals in 2012 and the unconsolidated mines for all years presented Excludes

employees of Hyster-Yale and Red River for all years presented

During 2012 the Company spun-off Hyster-Yale former subsidiary

2012 cash dividends includes one-time special cash dividend of $3.50 per share The 25 cent dividend paid in the

fourth quarter of 2012 was the first regular quarterly dividend following the spin-off of Hyster-Yale

Includes both continuing operations and discontinued operations
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OVERVIEW

NACCO Industries Inc the parent company or NACCO and its wholly owned subsidiaries collectively the Company

operate in the following principal industries mining small appliances and specialty retail Results of operations and financial

condition are discussed separately by subsidiary which corresponds with the industry groupings

The North American Coal Corporation and its affiliated coal companies collectively NACoal mine and market steam and

metallurgical coal for use in power generation and steel production and provide selected value-added mining services for other

natural resources companies Hamilton Beach Brands Inc HBB is leading designer marketer and distributor of small

electric household appliances primarily in the United States Canada Mexico and Latin America as well as commercial

products for restaurants bars and hotels The Kitchen Collection LLC KC is national specialty retailer of kitchenware

and gourmet foods oprating under the Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef store names in outlet and traditional malls

throughout the United States

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Companys discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon the Companys

consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles The preparstion of these financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the

reported amounts of liabilities revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities if

any On an ongoing basis the Company evaluates its estimates based on historical experience actuarial valuations and

various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for

making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual

results may differ frori those estimates

The Company believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and estimates used in

the preparation of its consolidated financial statements

Revenue recognition Revenues are generally recognized when title transfers and risk of loss passes to the customer Under

its mining contracts the Company recognizes revenue as the coal or limerock is delivered Revenues at HBB are recognized

when customer orders are completed and shipped Revenues at KC are recognized at the point of sale when payment is made

and customers take possession of the merchandise in stores Reserves for discounts and returns are maintained for anticipated

future claims at HBB snd KC The accounting policies used to develop these product discounts and returns include

Product discounts The Company records estimated reductions to revenues for customer programs and incentive

offerings including special pricing agreements price competition promotions and other volume-based incentives At

HBB net sales represent gross sales less cooperative advertising other volume-based incentives estimated returns and

allowances for defective products At KC retail markdowns are incorporated into KCs retail method of accounting for

cost of sales If market conditions were to decline or if competition was to increase the Company may take actions to

increase customer incentive offerings possibly resulting in an incremental reduction of revenues at the time the incentive

is offered If the Companys estimates of customer programs and incentives were one percent higher than the levels

offered during 2012 the reserves for product discounts would increase and revenues would be reduced by $0.1 million

The Companys past results of operations have not been materially affected by change in the estimate of product

discounts and although there can be no assurances the Company is not aware of any circumstances that would be

reasonably likely to materially change its estimates in the future

Product returns Products generally are not sold with the right of return However based on the Companys historical

experience porl ion of products sold are estimated to be returned due to reasons such as buyer remorse duplicate gifts

received product failure and excess inventory stocked by the customer which subject to certain terms and conditions the

Company will
agree to accept The Company records estimated reductions to revenues at the time of sale based on this

historical experiece and the limited right of return provided to certain customers If future trends were to change

significantly from those experienced in the past incremental reductions to revenues may result based on this new

experience If the Companys estimate of average return rates for each type of product sold were to increase by one

percent over historical levels the reserves for product returns would increase and revenues would be reduced by less than

$0.2 million The Companys past results of operations have not been materially affected by change in the estimate of

product returns and although there can be no assurances the Company is not aware of any circumstances that would be

reasonably likely to materially change its estimates in the future
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Retirement benefit plans The Company maintains various defined benefit pension plans that provide benefits based on years

of service and
average compensation during certain periods Pension benefits are frozen for all employees other than certain

NACoaI unconsolidated mines employees All other eligible employees of the Company including employees whose pension

benefits are frozen receive retirement benefits under defined contribution retirement plans The Companys policy is to

periodically make contributions to fund the defined benefit pension plans within the range allowed by applicable regulations

The defined benefit pension plan assets consist primarily of publicly traded stocks and government and corporate bonds There

is no guarantee the actual return on the plans assets will equal the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets or that the

plans will not incur investment losses

The expected long-term rate of return on defined benefit plan assets reflects managements expectations of long-term rates of

return on funds invested to provide fir benefits included in the projected benefit obligations In establishing the expected long-

term rate of return assumption for plan assets the Company considers the historical rates of return over period of time that is

consistent with the long-term nature of the underlying obligations of these plans as well as forward-looking rate of return

The historical and forward-looking rates of return for each of the asset classes used to determine the Companys estimated rate

of return assumption were based upon the rates of return earned or expected to be earned by investments in the equivalent

benchmark market indices for each of the asset classes

Expected returns for pension plans are based on calculated market-related value of assets Under this methodology asset

gains and losses resulting from actual returns that differ from the Companys expected returns are recognized in the market-

related value of assets ratably over three years

The Company also maintains health care plans which provide benefits to eligible retired employees All health care plans of

the Company have cap on the Companys share of the costs These plans have no assets Under the Companys current policy

plan benefits are funded at the time they are due to participants Effective June 30 2010 the parent company eliminated its

subsidized retiree medical plan Effective September 2010 HBB eliminated its retiree life insurance plan The Company no

longer maintains
any

retiree life insurance plans

The basis for the selectiorL of the discount rate for each plan is determined by matching the timing of the payment of the

expected obligations under the defined benefit plans and health care plans against the corresponding yield of high-quality

corporate bonds of equivalent maturities

Changes to the estimate of any of these factors could result in material change to the Companys pension obligation causing

related increase or decrease in reported net operating results in the period of change in the estimate Because the 2012

assumptions are used to calculate 2013 pension expense amounts one percentage-point change in the expected long-term

rate of return on plan assets would result in change in pension expense for 2013 of approximately $0.6 million for the plans

one percentage-point change in the discount rate would result in change in pension expense for 2013 by approximately

$0.4 million one percentage-point increase in the discount rate would have lowered the plans projected benefit obligation

as of the end of 2012 by approximately $7.1 million while one percentage-point decrease in the discount rate would have

raised the plans projected benefit obligation as of the end of 2012 by approximately $8.6 million

See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K for further discussion of the Companys retirement

benefit plans

Self-insurance liabilities The Company is generally self-insured for product liability environmental liability medical claims

certain workers compensation claims and certain closed mine liabilities For product liability catastrophic insurance coverage

is retained for potentially significant individual claims An estimated provision for claims reported and for claims incurred but

not yet reported under the self-insurance programs is recorded and revised periodically based on industry trends historical

experience and management judgment In addition industry trends are considered within managements judgment for valuing

claims Changes in assumptions for such matters as legal judgments and settlements inflation rates medical costs and actual

experience could cause estimates to change in the near term Changes in any of these factors could materially change the

Companys estimates for these self-irtsurance obligations causing related increase or decrease in reported net operating

results in the period of change in the estimate

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations The Companys asset retirement obligations are principally for costs to

dismantle certain mining quipment as well as for costs to close its surface mines and reclaim the land it has disturbed as

result of its normal mining activities Under certain federal and state regulations the Company is required to reclaim land

disturbed as result of mining The Company determined the amounts of these obligations based on estimates adjusted for

34



Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amounts in Millions Except Per Share and Percentage Data

inflation projected to the estimated closure dates and then discounted using credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate Changes

in any of these estimates could materially change the Companys estimates for these asset retirement obligations causing

related increase or decrease in reported net operating results in the period of change in the estimate The accretion of the

liability is being recognized over the estimated life of each individual asset retirement obligation The Company has

capitalized an assets cost as part of the cost of the related long-lived asset These capitalized amoUnts are

subsequently allocated to expense using systematic and rational method

Bellaire Corporation Bellaire is non-operating subsidiary of the Company with legacy liabilities relating to closed mining

operations primarily former Eastern U.S underground coal mining operations These legacy liabilities include obligations for

water treatment and other environmental remediation that arose as part of the normal course of closing these underground

mining operations The Company determined the amounts of these obligations based on estimates adjusted for inflation and

then discounted using credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate The accretion of the liability is recognized over the estimated life

of the asset retirement obligation Since Bellaires properties are no longer active operations no associated asset has been

capitalized Changes in any of these estimates could materially change the Companys estimates for these asset retirement

obligations causing related increase or decrease in reported net operating income in the period of change in the estimate

Inventory reserves The Company writes down its inventory to the lower of cost or market which includes an estimate for

obsolescence or excess inventory based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions If actual market

conditions are less favorable than those projected by management additional inventory write-downs may be required Upon

subsequent sale or disposal of the impaired inventory the corresponding reserve for impaired value is relieved to ensure that

the cost basis of the inventory reflects any write-downs An impairment in value of one percent of net inventories would result

in additional expense of approximately $1.7 million

Allowances for doubtful accounts The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting

from the inability of iis customers to make required payments These allowances are based on both recent trends of certain

customers estimated tD be greater credit risk as well as general trends of the entire customer pool If the financial condition

of the Companys customers were to deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments additional

allowances may be required An impairment in value of one percent of net accounts receivable would require an increase in the

allowance for doubtful accounts and would result in additional expense of approximately $1.5 million

Income taxes Tax law requires certain items to be included in the tax return at different times than the items are reflected in

the financial statements Some of these differences are permanent such as expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes

and some differences are temporary reversing over time such as depreciation expense These temporary differences create

deferred tax assets and liabilities The objective of accounting for income taxes is to recognize the amount of taxes payable or

refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences
of events that have been

recognized in the financial statements or tax returns

The Companys tax assets liabilities and tax expense are supported by historical earnings and losses and the Companys best

estimates and assumptions of future earnings When the Company determines based on all available evidence that it is more

likely than not that deferred tax assets will not be realized valuation allowance is established

Since significant judgment is required to assess the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the

Companys financial statements or tax returns the ultimate resolution of these events could result in adjustments to the

Companys financial tatements and such adjustments could be material The Company believes the current assumptions

judgments and other considerations used to estimate the current year accrued and deferred tax positions are appropriate If the

actual outcome of future tax consequences differs from these estimates and assumptions due to changes or future events the

resulting change to th provision for income taxes could have material impact on the Companys results of operations and

financial position

Valuation of acquisitions The allocation of the purchase price to the tangible assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible

assets acquired requires management to make significant estimates in determining the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities

assumed especially with respect to contingent consideration in the Reed Minerals acquisition These estimates are based on

information obtained from management ofthe acquired companies future coal prices and future volume forecasts These estimates

can include but are not limited to the cash flows that the acquisition is expected to generate in the future and the appropriate

weighted-average cos of capital These estimates are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and if different estimates were used

the purchase price for the acquisition may have been allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities assumed differently from the
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current allocation Although the Company believes the assumptionsjudgments and estimates used are reasonable and appropriate

different assumptions judgments and estimates could materially affect the value ascribed to an acquired asset and potentially

the Companys results of operations and financial position if changes to the contingent consideration or impairment charges were

required to be recorded

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SIJMMARY

Selected consolidated results of the Company were as follows

2012 2011 2010

Consolidated results

Income from continuing operations 42.2 79.5 47.1

Discontinued operations net of tax 82.6 32.4

Net income 108.7 162.1 79.5

Basic earnings per share

Income from continuing operations 5.04 9.49 5.66

Discontinued operations 7.93 9.85 389

Basic earnings per share 12.97 19.34 9.55

Diluted earnings per share

Income from continuing operations 5.02 9.46 5.65

Discontinued operations 7.90 9.82 3.88

Diluted earnings per
share 12.92 19.28 9.53

In 2006 the Company initiated litigation in the Delaware Chancery Court against Applica and individuals and entities

affiliated with Applicas shareholder Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund Ltd The litigation alleged number of

contract and tort claims against the defendants related to the Companys failed transaction with Applica which had

been previously announced On February 14 2011 the parties to this litigation entered into settlement agreement

The settlement agreement provided for among other things the payment of $60 million to the Company and

dismissal of the lawsuit with prejudice The payment was received in February 2011 Litigation costs related to this

matter were $2.8 million and $18.8 million in 2011 and 2010 respectively

During 2012 the Company spun-off Hyster-Yale former subsidiary The results of operations of Hyster-Yale are

reflected as discontinued operations in the table above

The following table identifies the components of change for 2012 compared with 2011 by subsidiary

Operating

Revenues Profit Net Income

2011 790.4 64.1 162.1

Increase decrease in 201

NAoal 50.6 8O 3.4

HBB 28.6 2.0 2.8

KC net of eliminations 3.8 6.9 4.2

NACCO and Other 0.3 39.3

Dscontinuedopcstions ______ ______ _______
2012 873.4 67.5 108.7
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THE NORTH AMERICAN COAL CORPORATION

NACoa1 mines and markets steam and metallurgical coal for use in power generation and steel production and provides

selected value-added mining services for other natural resources companies Coal is surface mined from NACoa1s developed

mines in North Dakota Texas Mississippi Louisiana and Alabama Total coal reserves approximate 2.2 billion tons with

approximately 1.1 billion tons committed to customers pursuant to long-term contracts NACoaI has two consolidated mining

operations Mississippi Lignite Mining Company MLMC and Reed Minerals Inc Reed Minerals NACoa1 has ten

unconsolidated subsidiaries The Coteau Properties Company Coteau The Falkirk Mining Company Falkirk The

Sabine Mining Company Sabine Demery Resources Company LLC Demery Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC

Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Mining Company LLC Coyote Creek Camino Real Fuels LLC Camino Real
Liberty Fuels Company LLC Liberty NoDak Energy Services LLC NoDak and North American Coal Corporation

India Private Limited NACC India Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Camino Real and Liberty are in the development stage

and do not currently mine or deliver coal NACoa1 also provides dragline mining services for independently owned limerock

quarries in Florida NoDak was formed to operate and maintain coal processing facility NACC India was formed to provide

technical advisory services to the third-party owners of mine in India NACoa1 also provides dragline mining services for

independently owned limerock quarries in Florida At the end of 2010 NACoa1s contract at the San Miguel Lignite Mine

San Miguel expired and its mining operations were transitioned to another company

The contracts with th unconsolidated operations customers provide for reimbursement at price based on actual costs plus an

agreed pre-tax profit per ton of coal sold or actual costs plus management fee The unconsolidated operations each meet the

definition of variable interest entity and are accounted for using the equity method

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Tons delivered by NACoa1s operating mines were as follows for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

rCoteau 131 j35 146

Falkirk 8.0 7.5 7.6

3.8 4.2 4.4

Other 0.1

WnoflsoUdated Ilimes 250 252 266

San Miguel 3.3

MLMC 31 36

Reed Minerals 0.3

Consolidated mmes 3.4 69

Total tons sold 28.4 27.9 33.5

The limerock dragline mining operations delivered 18.8 million 13.7 million and 17.9 million cubic yards of limerock for the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The decrease in limerock yards delivered in 2011 compared

with 2012 and 2010 was primarily from lower customer requirements

Total coal reserves were as follows at December 31

2012 2011 2010

Unconsolidated mines 1.0 1.0 1.0

mines 1.2 hI

Total coal reserves 2.2 2.3 2.1
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Operating Results

The results of operations for NACoa1 were as follows for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Revenues 132.4 81.8 156.8

Operating profit 43.2 35.2 53.3

Interest expense 2.9 3.0 3.3

Other income expense 1.5 1.7 0.4

Net income 32.8 29.4 39.6

Effective income tax rate 21.5% 13.3% 1.4%

The NACoal effective income tax rate is affected by the benefit of percentage depletion The effective tax rate in 2012 and

2010 is higher than the effective tax rate in 2011 primarily due to shift in mix of taxable income towards entities with

higher effective income tax rate and decrease in taxable income at entities eligible for percentage depletion in 2012 and

2010

2012 Compared with 2011

The following table identi lies the components of change in revenues for 2012 compared with 2011

2011

Increase in 2012 from

Reed Minerals

Other consolidated mining operations

Royalty and other income

2012

Revenues

81.8

29.3

15.8

5.5

132.4

2011

Increase decrease in 2012 from

Royalty and other income

Gain on sale of assets

Other consolidated mining operations

Reed Minerals

Other selling general and administrative expenses

Earnings of unconsolidated mines

2012

Revenues increased 61 .9/ in 2012 to $132.4 million from $81.8 million in 2011 due to the Reed Minerals acquisition higher

revenues at the consolidated mining operations and an increase in royalty and other income The increase at the consolidated

mining operations was primarily the result of an increase in tons delivered at MLMC due to improvements at customers

power plant in 2012 compared with 2011 and increased customer requirements at the limerock dragline mining operations in

2012 compared with 2011

The following table identifies the components of change in operating profit for 2012 compared with 2011

Operating Profit

35.2

5.9

5.8

4.7

1.5

9.6

0.3

43.2

Operating profit increased to $43.2 million in 2012 from $35.2 million in 2011 primarily as result of higher royalty and

other income gains on the sale of draglines and land recorded in 2012 an increase in consolidated mining operating results
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and operating profit contributed by the newly acquired Reed Minerals The increase in operating profit at the other

consolidated mining operations is attributable to increased deliveries as result of improvements at customers power plant

in 2012 compared with 2011 and higher limerock dragline mining operating profit due to increased customer requirements

These increases were partially offset by higher other selling general and administrative expenses primarily from an increase

in employee-related expenses and $2.6 million of acquisition-related costs including professional fees Employee-related costs

increased primarily due to incentives tied to the significant expansion of NACoals business through the new Coyote Creek

mining contract and the Reed Minerals acquisition

Net income increased to $32.8 million in 2012 from $29.4 million in 2011 primarily due to the factors affecting operating

profit partially offset by an increase in income tax expense due to shift in the mix of taxable income to entities with higher

effective income tax rates

2011 Compared with 2010

The following table identifies the components of change in revenues for 2011 compared with 2010

Revenues

2010 156.8

Decrease in 2011 from

San Miguel 45.8

Consolidated mining operations 16.9

Pre-development revenue 7.6

Royalty and other income

2011

2010

Increase decrease ir 2011 from

Consolidated mining operations

Pre-development revenue

Royalty and other income

Earnings of unconsolidated mines

2011

4.7

818

Revenues decreased 47.8% in 2011 to $81.8 million from $156.8 million in 2011 mainly due to the expiration of NACoa1s

contract at San Miguel at the end of 2010 In addition the decrease was the result of lower revenues at the consolidated mining

operations the absence of revenue recognized in 2010 related to the reimbursement from Mississippi Power Company for

previously recognized costs for pre-development activities and lower royalty and other income The decrease at the

consolidated mining operations was primarily due to decrease in tons delivered at MLMC as result of unplanned customer

power plant outages in 2011 and reduced customer requirements at the limerock dragline mining operations

The following table identifies the components of change in operating profit for 2011 compared with 2010

Operating Profit

53.3

11.7

7.4

1.1

2.1

Operating profit decreased to $35.2 million in 2011 from $53.3 million in 2010 primarily as result of decrease in

consolidated mining operating profit mainly from lower sales at MLMC the absence of revenue recognized in 2010 related to

the reimbursement from Mississippi Power Company and lower royalty and other income The decrease in operating profit

was partially offset by higher earnings at the unconsolidated mines due to income associated with the Liberty mine

Net income decreased to $29.4 million in 2011 from $39.6 million in 2010 primarily due to the factors affecting operating

profit
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows

The following tables detail the change in cash flow for the
years

ended December 31

2012 2011 Change

4.8 4.7 0.1

50.2 31.7 18.5

37.1 14.1 23.O

69.3 69.3

35.9 323

14.4 14.4

0.2 _________
56.3 10.7 45.6

6.1 21.0 27.1

The increase in net cash provided by operating activities was primarily the result of the change in deferred income taxes and

net income in 2012 compared with 2011 partially offset by gains on sale of assets recorded in 2012

The change in net cash used for investing activities was primarily attributable to the acquisition of Reed Minerals in 2012 and

an increase in expenditures for property plant and equipment including the purchase of two draglines in 2012 These items

were partially offset by proceeds received from the sale of land and two different draglines in 2012 and proceeds received

under long-term note related to the prior sale of dragline

2012 2011 Change

Net additions to long-tenn debt and revolving credit agreements 34.7 49.0 14.3

35$ fl9 473

Financing fees paid 0.8 0.8

_____
The increase in net cash provided by used for financing activities during 2012 compared with 2011 was primarily due to

decrease in the amount of cash dividends paid to NACCO in 2012 compared with 2011 partially offset by higher borrowings

under the NACoaI Facility to fund the acquisition of Reed Minerals and two draglines

Financing Activities

NACoaI has an unsecured revolving line of credit of up to $150.0 million the NACoal Facility that expires in December

2016 Borrowings outstanding under the NACoal Facility were $110.0 million at December 31 2012 Therefore at

32.8 29.4 3.4

10.9

12.2 1.8 14.0

6.8 1.0. 5.8

5.9 1.9 4.0

Net income

DcaV4m pisUon adamorization

Deferred income taxes

Gain on sale of assets

Other

Weddng capital changes

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

ECtfcrFQpty and equipment

Acquisition of business

kofass
Proceeds from note receivable

Net cash used for investing activities

Cash flow before financing activities

40



Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amonts in Millions Except Per Share and Percentage Data

December 31 2012 the excess availability under the NACoa1 Facility was $38.8 million which reflects reduction for

outstanding letters of credit of $1.2 million

The NACoa1 Facility has performance-based pricing which sets interest rates based upon achieving various levels of debt to

EBITDA ratios of NACoa1 as defined in the NACoa1 Facility Borrowings bear interest at floating rate plus margin based

on the level of debt to EBITDA ratio achieved as defined in the NACoa1 Facility The applicable margins effective

December 31 2012 for base rate and LIBOR loans were 0.75% and 1.75% respectively The NACoa1 Facility also has

commitment fee which is also based upon achieving various levels of debt to EBITDA ratios The commitment fee was 0.35%

on the unused commitment at December 31 2012 The floating rate of interest applicable to the NACoa1 Facility at

December 31 2012 ws 1.95% including the floating rate margin

The NACoaI Facility also contains restrictive covenants that require among other things NACoal to maintain certain debt to

EBITDA and interest
coverage ratios and provides the ability to make loans dividends and advances to NACCO with some

restrictions based on maintaining maximum debt to EBITDA ratio of 3.0 to 1.0 in conjunction with maintaining unused

availability thresholds of borrowing capacity under minimum interest coverage ratio as defined in the NACoa1 Facility of

4.0 to 1.0 The current level of availability required to pay dividends is $15.0 million At December 31 2012 NACoal was in

compliance with the financial covenants in the NACoaI Facility

During 2004 and 2005 NACoal issued unsecured notes totaling $45.0 million in private placement the NACoal Notes
which require annual principal payments of approximately $6.4 million that began in October 2008 and will mature on

October 2014 These unsecured notes bear interest at weighted-average fixed rate of 6.08% payable semi-annually on

April and October The NACoa1 Notes are redeemable at any time at the option of NACoa1 in whole or in part at an

amount equal to par plus accrued and unpaid interest plus make-whole premium if applicable NACoa1 had $12.9 million

of the private placement notes outstanding at December 31 2012 The NACoaI Notes contain certain covenants and

restrictions that require among other things NACoa1 to maintain certain net worth leverage and interest coverage ratios and

limit dividends to NACCO based upon maintaining maximum debt to EBITDA ratio of 3.5 to 1.0 At December 31 2012
NACoa1 was in compliance with the financial covenants in the NACoaI Notes

NACoa1 has demand note payable to Coteau which bears interest based on the applicable quarterly federal short-term interest

rate as announced from time to time by the Internal Revenue Service At December 31 2012 the balance of the note was $3.5

million and the interest rate was 0.23%

NACoa1 believes funth available from the NACoa1 Facility and operating cash flows will provide sufficient liquidity to

finance its operating needs and commitments arising during the next twelve months and until the expiration of the NACoa1

Facility in December 016

Contractual Obligations Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Following is table which summarizes the contractual obligations of NACoal as of December 31 2012

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

NACoal acifIty 110 22 874

Variable interest payments on NACoal Facility 6.9 2.0 1.7 1.7 1.5

NACoa1 Notes 12.9 6.4 6.5

Interest payments on NACoal Notes 1.1 0.7 0.4

Other debt 3.5 3.5

Capital lease obligations including principal

and interest 13.3 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 6.5

Operating leases 41.4 12.8 8.7 6.9 5.7 2.8 4.5

Purchase and other obligations 21.4 21.4

Total contractual cash obligations 210.5 67.1 18.7 10.0 96.0 4.2 14.5
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NACoaI has long-term liability of approximately $0.7 million for unrecognized tax benefits including interest and penalties

as of December 2012 At this time the Company is unable to make reasonable estimate of the timing of payments due to

among other factors the uncertainty of the timing and outcome of its audits

An event of default as defined in the NACoal Facility NACoa1 Notes and NACoa1s lease agreements could cause an

acceleration of the payment schedule No such event of default has occurred or is anticipated to occur

NACoals variable interest payments are calculated based upon NACoa1s anticipated payment schedule and the December

2012 base rate and applicable margins as defined in the NACoa1 Facility 1/8% increase in the base rate would increase

NACoa1s estimated total interest payments on the NACoa1 Facility by $0.4 million

The purchase and other obligations are primarily for accounts payable open purchase orders and accrued payroll and incentive

compensation

Pension and postretirement funding can vary significantly each
year

due to plan amendments changes in the market value of

plan assets legislation and the Companys funding decisions to contribute any excess above the minimum legislative funding

requirements As result pension and postretirement funding has not been included in the table above NACoal does not

expect to contribute to its pension plan in 2013 NACoa1 maintains one supplemental retirement plan that pays monthly

benefits to participants directly out olcorporate funds and expects to pay benefits of approximately $0.5 million in 2013 and

$0.4 million per year from 2014 through 2022 Benefit payments beyond that time cannot currently be estimated All other

pension benefit payments are made from assets of the pension plan NACoal also expects to make payments related to its other

postretirement plans of approximately $0.2 million per year from 2013 through 2022 Benefit payments beyond that time

cannot currently be estimated

NACoal has long-term liability for mine closing reserves primarily asset retirement obligations of approximately $14.2

million that is not included in the table above due to the uncertainty of the timing of payments to settle these liabilities

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

NACoal has not entered into any off balance sheet financing arrangements other than operating leases which are disclosed in

the contractual obligations table above

Capital Expenditures

Following is table which summarizes actual and planned capital expenditures

Planned Actual Actual

2013 2012 2011

NACoal 40.5 37.1 14.1

Planned expenditures for 2013 include mine equipment and development at existing mines These expenditures are expected to

be funded from internally generated funds and bank borrowings The increase in capital expenditures in 2012 and 2013 from

2011 levels is due to dragline purchases in 2012 and dragline refurbishment and other capital expenditures related to

consolidated mines in 2013
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Capital Structure

NACoa1s capital structure is presented below

December 31

2012 2011 Change

Cash and cash equivalents 4.3 1.3 3.0

Other net tangible asets 166.3 130.9 35.4

Goodwill and coal supply agreements net 69.8 57.9 11.9

Net assets 240.4 190.1 50.3

Total debt 138.0 94.0 44.0

Total equity 102.4 96.1 6.3

Debt to total capitalization 57% 49% 8%

The increase in other net tangible assets during 2012 is primarily due to the acquisition of Reed Minerals and the purchase of

two draglines in 2012 partially offset by the sale of two different draglines and the collection of note receivable related to

the prior sale of dragline

Total debt increased $44.0 million primarily due to additional borrowings made during 2012 to fund the acquisition of Reed

Minerals

Total equity increased primarily due to net income of $32.8 million partially offset by dividends paid to NACCO of $25.6

million and $0.9 million decrease in accumulated other comprehensive loss in 2012

OUTLOOK

NACoa1 expects steady operating performance at its coal mining operations in 2013 Steam coal tons delivered in 2013 are

expected to increase over 2012 at both the consolidated and unconsolidated mining operations provided customers achieve

currently planned power plant operating levels However metallurgical coal sales for Reed Minerals are expected to be below

the companys initial expectations as demand for steel is down and customers are reducing inventories Limerock deliveries

are expected to decrease in 2013 compared with 2012 as customer requirements are expected to decline moderately Demery
Resources Companys Five Forks Mine commenced delivering coal to its customer in 2012 and is expected to increase

production in 2013 wth full production levels expected to be reached in late 2015 or 2016 Royalty income is expected to be

lower in 2013 compared with 2012

Unconsolidated mines currently in development are expected to continue to generate modest income in 2013 The companys

four mines in development are also not expected to be at full production for several years Liberty Fuels is eventually

expected to produce approximately 4.5 million tons of lignite coal annually for Mississippi Power Companys new Ratcliffe

power plant currently being built in Mississippi The project is on track for initial coal deliveries in mid-2014 In February

20 13 the mining permit needed to commence mining operations at the Caddo Creek Resources Companys project in Texas

was issued Caddo Creek expects to mine approximately 650000 tons of coal annually and initial deliveries are expected in

early 2014 In January 2013 the mining permit needed to commence mining operations at the Camino Real Fuels project in

Texas was issued Camino Real Fuels expects initial deliveries in the third quarter of 2014 and expects to mine approximately

2.7 million tons of coal annually when at full production In addition in October 2012 NACoals subsidiary Coyote Creek

Mining Company entered into new agreement with the co-owners of the Coyote Station generation plant to develop lignite

mine in Mercer County North Dakota Coyote Creek Mining Company expects to deliver approximately 2.5 million tons of

coal annually beginning in May 2016

NACoaI also has new Droject opportunities for which it expects to continue to incur additional expenses in 2013 In particular

the company continues to move forward to obtain permit for its Otter Creek reserve in North Dakota in preparation for the

anticipated construction of new mine

Overall NACoal expects net income in 2013 to decrease slightly from 2012 primarily due to the absence of pre-tax gains of

approximately $7.0 million from asset sales during 2012 Excluding the effect of the asset sales operating results are expected
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to increase compared with 2012 mainly as result of increased deliveries and lower operating expenses Cash flow before

financing activities for 2013 is expected to be higher than 2012 but not at the levels of 2011 due to an anticipated increase in

capital expenditures to support the Reed Minerals operations

Over the longer term NACoal expects to continue its efforts to develop new mining projects The company is actively

pursuing domestic opportunities for new or expanded coal mining projects which include prospects for power generation

coal-to-liquids coal-to-chemicals coal gasification coal drying and other clean coal technologies Also the company views

its acquisition of Reed Minerals as the first step in metallurgical coal strategic initiative which includes coal exports

NACoal also continues to pursue addLitional non-coal mining opportunities principally in aggregates and international value-

added mining services projects particularly in India

HAMILTON BEACH BRANDS INC

HBBs business is seasonal and majority of revenues and operating profit typically occurs in the second half of the year

when sales of small electric appliances to retailers and consumers increase significantly for the fall holiday-selling season

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating Results

The results of operations UBB were as follows for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Revenues 521.6 493.0 515.7

operating profit 35.8 33.8 45.9

Interestexpense 2.7 5.2 72

Other
expense

0.3 0.8 0.3

Net income 21.2 18.4 24.4

Effective income tax rate 35.4% 33.8% 36.5%

2012 Compared with 2011

The following table identifies the components of change in revenues for 2012 compared with 2011

Revenues

2011 493.0

Increase decrease in 2Cl2 from

Unit volume and product mix 28.5

Average sales price 2.2

Foreign.curreney 2.i

2012 521.6

Revenues increased 5.8A to $521.6 million in 2012 compared with $493.0 million in 2011 primarily due to an increase in

sales volumes of higher-priced products in the U.S consumer retail market mainly at HBBs mass market retail customers

and higher prices on comparable products sold The increase in revenues was partially offset by unfavorable foreign currency

movements in 2012 compared with 2011
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The following table identifies the components of change in operating profit for 2012 compared with 2011

Operating Profit

2011 i38

Increase decrease in 2012 from

Qrossprofit

3.2Other selling general and administrative expenses

Foreign currency

2012

2011 Compared with 2010

2011

T7
35.8

HBBs operating profit increased to $35.8 million in 2012 compared with $33.8 million in 2011 Operating profit increased

primarily as result of higher gross profit caused by shift in sales mix to higher-margin and higher-priced products partially

offset by increased product and transportation costs In addition operating profit was favorably affected by the absence of

$1.3 million charge during 2011 for the write-off of capital lease asset no longer being leased and $0.9 million of costs

related to moving the FIBB distribution center into larger facility during 2011 The increase in operating profit was partially

offset by an increase in other selling general and administrative
expenses mainly due to higher employee-related expenses and

unfavorable foreign currency movements

HBB recognized net income of$21.2 million in 2012 compared with $18.4 million in 2011 The change was mainly due to the

increase in operating profit in 2012 lower interest expense primarily due to lower levels of borrowings and lower average

interest rates during 2012 compared with 2011

The following table identifies the components of change in revenues for 2011 compared with 2010

Re enues

2010

Increase decrease in 2011 from

Unit volume and product mix .. 22.9

Average sales price 1.5

Foreign currency
________________

493.0

Revenues decreased 44% to $493.0 million in 2011 compared with $515.7 million in 2010 primarily due to decrease in sales

volumes in the U.S consumer retail market mainly at HBBs mass market retail customers and lower prices on comparable

products sold The decrease in revenues was partially offset by improved international and commercial sales and favorable

foreign currency movements in 2011 compared with 2010

The following table identifies the components of change in operating profit for 2011 compared with 2010

Operating Profit

2010

Increase decrease in 2011 from

01t0$SpIUflt

Foreign currency 2.1

.Q.the selIp general and administrative expenses _______________
2011 33.8

HBBs operating profit decreased to $33.8 million in 2011 compared with $45.9 million in 2010 Operating profit declined

primarily as result of higher product costs reduced sales volumes and higher transportation costs In addition operating
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profit decreased as result of $1.3 million charge during 2011 for the write-off of capital lease asset no longer being leased

and $0.9 million of costs related to moving the HBB distribution center into larger facility during 2011 The decrease in

operating profit was partially offset by favorable foreign currency movements and decrease in other selling general and

administrative expenses mainly due to lower employee-related expenses

HBB recognized net income of $18.4 million in 2011 compared with $24.4 million in 2010 The change was mainly due to the

decrease in operating profit in 2011 partially offset by lower interest expense primarily as result of $60.0 million of

voluntary repayments under the HBB term loan agreement in 2011

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows

The following tables detail the change in cash flow for the years
ended December 31

2012 2011 Change

Operating activities

Net income 21.2 18.4 2.8

Depreciation and amortization 3.1 4.9 1.8

Other 1.9 1.7 0.2

Working capital changes 1.2 0.8 2.0

Net cash provided by operating activities 27.4 24.2 3.2

Investing activities

Expenditures for property plant and equipment 3.2 3.7 0.5

Net cash used for investing activities 3.2 3.7 0.5

Cash flow before financing activities 24.2 20.5 3.7

Net cash provided by operating activities increased $3.2 million in 2012 compared with 2011 primarily due to the increase in

net income and the change in working capital partially offset by reduction in depreciation and amortization expense The

change in working capita was primarily the result of an increase in accounts payable and accrued payroll in 2012 compared

with decrease in 2011 partially offset by an increase in inventory and accounts receivable in 2012 compared with decrease

in 2011 mainly due to lower levels cf inventory and accounts receivable in 2011 from reduced sales volume Depreciation

expense
for 2011 includes charge of $1.3 million for capital lease asset no longer being leased

2012 2011 Change

Financing activities

Net reductions of long-term debt and revolving credit agreements 14.5 60.6 46.1

Cash dividends paid to NACCO 15.0 15.0

Financing fees paid 1.2 1.2

Capital contribution from NACCO 4.0 40
Other 0.2 0.2

Net cash used far financing activities 30.7 56.8 26.1

The decrease in net cash used for financing activities was primarily the result of repaying $60.6 million of the HBB term loan

agreement during 2011 This was partially offset by cash dividends paid to NACCO in 2012 of $15.0 million and the absence

of $4.0 million capital contribution from NACCO in 2011
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Financing Activities

HBB has $115.0 million senior secured floating-rate revolving credit facility the HBB Facility that expires in July 2017

The obligations under the HBB Facility are secured by substantially all of HBBs assets The approximate book value of

HBBs assets held as collateral under the HBB Facility was $215.5 million as of December 31 2012

The maximum availability under the HBB Facility is governed by borrowing base derived from advance rates against

eligible accounts receivable inventory and trademarks of the borrowers as defined in the HBB Facility Adjustments to

reserves booked against these assets including inventory reserves will change the eligible borrowing base and thereby impact

the liquidity provided by the HBB Facility portion of the availability is denominated in Canadian dollars to provide funding

to HBBs Canadian subsidiary Borrowings bear interest at floating rate which can be base rate or LIBOR as defined in the

HBB Facility plus an applicable margin The applicable margins effective December 31 2012 for base rate loans and LIBOR

loans denominated in U.S dollars were 0.00% and 1.50% respectively The applicable margins effective December 31 2012

for base rate loans and bankers acceptance loans denominated in Canadian dollars were 0.00% and 1.50% respectively The

HBB Facility also reqJires fee of 0.375% per annum on the unused commitment The margins and unused commitment fee

under the HBB Facility are subject to quarterly adjustment based on average excess availability and average usage

respectively

At December 31 2012 the borrowing base under the HBB Facility was $112.0 million Borrowings outstanding under the

HBB Facility were $39.7 million at December 31 2012 Therefore at December 31 2012 the excess availability under the

HBB Facility was $72.3 million The floating rate of interest applicable to the HBB Facility at December 31 2012 was 1.98%

including the floating rate margin

The HBB Facility includes restrictive covenants which among other things limit the payment of dividends to NACCO
subject to achieving availability thresholds Dividends are limited to $15.0 million from the closing date of the HBB

Facility through December 31 2012 so long as HBB has excess availability as defined in the HBB Facility of at least $30.0

million ii the greater of $20.0 million or excess cash flow from the most recently ended fiscal year in each of the two

twelve-month periods following the closing date of the HBB Facility so long as HBB has excess availability under the HBB

Facility of not less than $25.0 million and maintains minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.0 to 1.0 as defined in the

HBB Facility and iii in such amounts as determined by HBB subsequent to the second anniversary of the closing date of the

HBB Facility so long as HBB has excess availability under the HBB Facility of not less than $25.0 million The HBB Facility

also requires HBB to achieve minimum fixed charge coverage ratio in certain circumstances as defined in the HBB Facility

At December 31 2012 HBB was in compliance with the financial covenants in the HBB Facility

HBB believes funds available from cash on hand at HBB and the Company the HBB Facility and operating cash flows will

provide sufficient liquidity to meet its operating needs and commitments arising during the next twelve months and until the

HBB Facility expires July 2017

Contractual Obligations Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Following is table which summarizes the contractual obligations of HBB as of December 31 2012

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

HBB Facility 39.7 12.7 27.0

Variable interest payments on HBB Facility 10.0 1.7 2.1 2.4 2.5 1.3

Purchase azd other obligations
163

Operatingleases 29.8 3.6 4.0 4.1 3.7 3.0 11.4

Total contractual cash obligations 242 1742 I$ 94 31 11

HBB has long-term liability of approximately $1.8 million for unrecognized tax benefits including interest and penalties as

of December 31 2012 At this time the Company is unable to make reasonable estimate of the timing of payments due to

among other factors the uncertainty of the timing and outcome of its audits
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An event of default as defined in the HBB Facility and in HBBs operating agreements could cause an acceleration of the

payment schedule No such event of default has occurred under these agreements

HBBs interest payments are calculated based upon HBBs anticipated payment schedule and the December 31 2012 LIBOR

rate and applicable margins as defined in the HBB Facility 1/8% increase in the LIBOR rate would increase HBBs

estimated total interest payments on HBBs Facility by $0.2 million

The purchase and other obligations are primarily for accounts payable open purchase orders and accrued payroll and incentive

compensation

Pension funding can vary significantly each year due to plan amendments changes in the market value of plan assets

legislation and the Companys funding decisions to contribute any excess above the minimum legislative funding

requirements As result pension and postretirement funding has not been included in the table above Pension benefit

payments are made from assets of the pension plans HBB does not expect to contribute to its pension plans in 2013

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

HBB has not entered into any off balance sheet financing arrangements other than operating leases which are disclosed in the

contractual obligations table above

Capital Expenditures

Following is table which summarizes actual and planned capital expenditures

Planned Actual Actual

2013 2012 2011

HBB 4.8 3.2 3.7

Planned expenditures for 2013 are primarily for tooling for new products These expenditures are expected to be funded from

internally generated funds and bank borrowings

Capital Structure

HBBs capital structure is presented below

December 31

2012 2011 Change

Caahaa4casheqwv1ents 2.8 93 6.5

Other net tangible assets 80.1 79.9 0.2

Net assets 82.9 89.2 6.3

Total debt 39.7 54.2 14.5

Total equity
431 350

Debt to total capitalization
48% 61% 13%

OUTLOOK

HBBs target consumer the middle-market mass consumer continues to struggle with financial and economic concerns As

result sales volumes in the middle-market portion of the U.S small kitchen appliance market in which HBB participates are

projected to grow only moderately in 2013 compared with 2012 International and commercial product markets are expected

to continue to grow reasonably in 2013 compared with 2012

HBB continues to focus on strengthening its North American consumer market position through product innovation

promotions increased placements and branding programs together with appropriate levels of advertising for the companys

highly successful and innovative product lines with particular focus on single-serve coffee products such as The Scoop and

FlexBrewTM HBB expects The Scoop the Two-Way Brewer and the DurathonTM iron product line all introduced in late
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2011 as well as the FexBrewlM launched in late 2012 to continue to gain market position as broader distribution is attained

over time The company is continuing to introduce innovative products in several small appliance categories In the first

quarter of 2013 HBB expects to launch the Hamilton Beach Breakfast Sandwich Maker which provides an innovative and

convenient way for consumers to cook breakfast sandwiches quickly at home These products as well as other new product

introductions in the pipeline for 2013 are expected to increase both revenues and operating profit As result of these new

products the companYs improving position in commercial and international markets and execution of the companys strategic

initiatives HBB expects to increase volumes and revenues in 2013 compared with 2012 at more than the 2013 market forecast

rate of increase

Overall HBB expects fill year 2013 net income to be comparable to 2012 as anticipated increases in profit from increased

revenues are forecasted to be largely offset by expected increases in operating expenses to support HBBs strategic initiatives

Product and transportation costs are currently expected to remain comparable to 2012 However HBB continues to monitor

commodity costs closely and will adjust product prices and product placements as appropriate if these costs increase more

than anticipated HBB expects 2013 cash flow before financing activities to be moderately lower than in 2012 due to

increased working capital

Longer term HBB will work to take advantage of the potential to improve return on sales through economies of scale derived

from market growth strategic partnerships and focus on its five strategic growth initiatives enhancing its placements in

the North America consumer business through consumer-driven innovative products and strong sales and marketing support

enhancing internet sales by providing best in class retailer support and increased consumer content and engagement

achieving further penetration of the global Commercial market through commitment to an enhanced global product line for

chains and distributors serving the global food service and hospitality markets expanding internationally in the emerging

Asian and Latin American markets by offering products designed specifically for those market needs and by expanding

distribution channels and sales and marketing capabilities and entering the only the best market with strong brand and

broad product line

THE KITCHEN COLLECTION LLC

KCs business is seasonal and majority of revenues and operating profit typically occurs in the second half of the year when

sales of small electric appliances to consumers increase significantly for the fall holiday-selling season

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating Results

The results of operations for KC were as follows for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Revenues 224.7 221.2 2196

Operating profit loss 4.6 2.5 5.9

Interest expense 0.5 0.5 0.3

Other expense 0.1 0.1

Net income loss 3.1 1.1 3.5

Effective income tax rate 39.2% 42.1% 36.4%

49



Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amounts in Millions Except Per Share and Percentage Data

2012 Compared with 2011

The following table identifies the components of change in revenues for 2012 compared with 2011

Revenues

2011 2212

Increase decrease in 2012 from

New store sales 17O

KC comparable store sales 0.4

Closeddores

LGC comparable store sales 1.5

Other 0.1

2012 224.7

Revenues increased to $224.7 million in 2012 compared with $221.2 million in 2011 primarily as result of opening new KC

stores during the past twelve months The increase in revenue was partially offset by the effect of closing unprofitable LGC

and KC stores since December 31 2011 and decrease in comparable store sales at LGC The decrease in comparable store

sales at LGC was mainly attributable to fewer customer visits and decline in store transactions partially offset by higher

average sales transaction value

At December 31 2012 KC operated 261 stores compared with 276 stores at December 31 2011 LGC operated 51 stores at

December 31 2012 compared with 61 stores at December 31 2011 The Kitchen Collection store count at December

2012 does not include 34 stores that were only open for the holiday-selling season The company did not utilize the seasonal

store format in 2011

The following table identifies the components of change in operating profit loss for 2012 compared with 2011

Operating Profit

Loss

2e14 2.5

Increase decrease in 2012 from

KC comparable stores 2.2

Selling general and admrnistrative expenses 2.2

Closed stores 1.5

LGC comparable stores 1.1

Leasehold impÆnafflcharge 0.7

New stores 0.1

Warehouse combination costs

2012

0.7

4.6

KC recorded an operating loss of $4.6 million in 2012 compared with operating profit of $2.5 million in 2011 The operating

loss in 2012 was primarily due to lower comparable store results as result of shift in sales to lower margin products at both

KC and LGC comparable stores and higher employee-related costs at both KC and LGC stores Higher selling general and

administrative expenses were primarily due to an increase in employee-related expenses professional fees and real estate

taxes Unfavorable margins at closed stores from the liquidation of inventory contributed to the 2012 operating loss In

addition KC recorded an impairment charge for leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures at certain stores in 2012

The operating loss was favorably afficted by the absence of costs incurred in 2011 for the relocation of KCs two distribution

centers into one larger facility

KC reported net loss of $3.1 million in 2012 compared with net income of $1.1 million in 2011 primarily due to the factors

affecting the change in operating profit
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2011 Compared with 2010

The following table icentifies the components of change in revenues for 2011 compared with 2010

Revenues

2010

Increase decrease in 2011 from

NewtórØSa1es

KC comparable store sales

C1oed stores

LGC comparable store sales

2011 _______________

Revenues increased tc $221.2 million in 2011 compared with $219.6 million in 2010 primarily as result of opening new KC
stores during the past twelve months and an increase in comparable store sales at KC The increase in comparable store sales

was mainly due to higher average sales transaction value partially offset by decline in store transactions and fewer

customer visits The increase in revenue was partially offset by the effect of closing unprofitable LGC and KC stores since

December 31 2010 and decrease in comparable store sales at LGC The decrease in comparable store sales at LGC was

mainly attributable to fewer customer visits and decline in store transactions partially offset by higher average sales

transaction value

At December 31 2011 KC operated 276 stores compared with 268 stores at December 31 2010 LGC operated 61 stores at

December 31 2011 compared with 72 stores at December 31 2010 The Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chet store

counts at December31 2010 included 34 stores and stores respectively that were only open for the holiday-selling season

The company did not utilize the seasonal store format in 2011

The following table identifies the components of change in operating profit for 2011 compared with 2010

2010

Increase decrease ir 2011 from

KC comparable stores

Selling general and administrative expenses

Warehouse combmation costs

LGC comparable stotes

KC recorded lower operating profit of $2.5 million in 2011 compared with $5.9 million in 2010 The decrease was primarily

due to lower comparable store results primarily at KC stores as result of shift in sales to lower margin products higher

selling general and administrative expenses and costs incurred in the first quarter of 2011 for the relocation of KCs two

distribution centers into one larger facility The increase in the operating loss was partially offset by the favorable effect of

closing unprofitable LGC stores during 2011

KC reported net income of $1.1 million in 2011 compared with $3.5 million in 2010 primarily due to the factors affecting the

change in operating profit

219.6

18.3

16.7
IJ

221.2

Operating Profit

5.9

1.7

0.7

0.6

Closedstores 1H
2011 2.5
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows

The following tables detail the change in cash flow for the
years

ended December 31

2012 2011 Change

ac$vkks

Net income loss 3.1 1.1 4.2

Depreciation and amortization 3.6 3.1

Other 0.3 0.3

Wozkingcapitai cbanges 3.6 0.7 2.9

Net cash provided by operating activities 3.8 4.9 1.1

Investing activities

Expenditures for property plant and equipment 3.9 2.3 1.6

Net cash used for investing activities 3.9 2.3 1.6

Cash flow before financing activities 0.1 2.6 2.7

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $1.1 million during 2012 compared with 2011 primarily due to the net loss

reported in 2012 partially offset by the change in working capital The change in working capital was primarily the result of

decrease in inventory in 2112 compared with an increase in inventory in 2011 partially offset by decrease in accounts

payable in 2012 compared with an increase in 2011 as result of the lower levels of inventory in 2012

Expenditures for property plant and equipment increased primarily due to the addition of new KC stores and the remodeling

of certain KC stores during 2012

2012 2011 Change

Financing activities

Cash dividends paid to NACCO 2.5 2.5

Financing fees paid 0.2 0.2

Net cash used for financing activities 0.2 2.5 2.3

Net cash used for financing activities decreased $2.3 million in 2012 compared with 2011 primarily from the absence of

dividends paid to NACCC in 2012

Financing Activities

KC has $30.0 million secured revolving line of credit that expires in August 2017 the KC Facility The obligations under

the KC Facility are secured by substantially all assets of KC The approximate book value of KCs assets held as collateral

under the KC Facility was $81.0 million as of December 31 2012

The maximum availability under the KC Facility is derived from borrowing base formula using KCs eligible inventory and

eligible credit card accounts receivable as defined in the KC Facility Borrowings bear interest at floating rate plus margin

based on the excess availability under the agreement as defined in the KC Facility which can be either base rate plus

margin of 1.00% or LIBOR plus margin of 2.00% as of December 31 2012 The KC Facility also requires fee of 0.375%

per annum on the unused commitment

At December 31 2012 the borrowing base under the KC Facility was $27.0 million There were no borrowings outstanding

under the KC Facility at 31 2012 Therefore at December 31 2012 the excess availability under the KC Facility

was $27.0 million
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The KC Facility allows for the payment of dividends to NACCO subject to certain restrictions based on availability and

meeting fixed charge coverage ratio as described in the KC Facility Dividends are limited to $6.0 million in any twelve-

month period so long as KC has excess availability as defined in the KC Facility of at least $7.5 million after giving effect to

such payment and maintaining minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio of 1.1 to 1.0 as defined in the KC Facility ii $2.0

million in any twelve-month period so long as KC has excess availability as defined in the KC Facility of at least $7.5

million after giving effect to such payment and iii in such amounts as determined by KC so long as KC has excess

availability under the KC Facility of $15.0 million after giving effect to such payment

KC believes funds available from cash on hand at KC and the Company the KC Facility and operating cash flows will provide

sufficient liquidity to meet its operating needs and commitments arising during the next twelve months and until the KC

Facility expires in August 2017

Contractual Obligations Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Following is table which summarizes the contractual obligations of KC as of December 31 2012

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Purcheseandotherobligations 42.8 42.8

Operating leases 84.2 21.9 16.5 12.8 9.5 6.6 16.9

Total contractual cash obllgatlQns 1270 647 165 18 9.5 6.6 169

Debt repayments are not included in the table above as there were no borrowings outstanding under the KC Facility at

December 31 2012 An event of default as defined in KCs operating lease agreements could cause an acceleration of the

payment schedule Nc such event of default has occurred under these agreements

The purchase and other obligations are primarily for accounts payable open purchase orders accrued payroll and incentive

compensation

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

KC has not entered into any off balance sheet financing arrangements other than operating leases which are disclosed in the

contractual obligations table above

Capital Expenditures

Following is table which summarizes actual and planned capital expenditures

Planned Actual Actual

2013 2012 2011

$L 3.9

Planned expenditures in 2013 for property plant and equipment are primarily for store fixtures and equipment at new or

existing stores and improvements to KCs information technology infrastructure These expenditures are expected to be funded

from internally generated funds and bank borrowings
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Capital Structure

KCs capital structure is presented below

December

2012 2011 Change

CaSh and cash eqvaIents 11 11 03
Other net tangible assets 32.1 34.9 2.8

Net assets 43.6 46.7 3.1

Total debt

Total equity 43 467

Debt to total capitalization

Debt to total capitalization is not meaningful

OUTLOOK

Consumer traffic to outlet mall locations declined in 2012 especially in the fourth quarter Prospects for 2013 remain

uncertain but are expected to improve over 2012 levels The middle market consumer remains under pressure due to financial

and economic concerns and those concerns are expected to continue to dampen consumer sentiment and limit consumer

spending levels for Kitchen Collections target customer in 2013 As result Kitchen Collection expects 2013 revenues to be

comparable to 2012 although the company expects to maintain lower number of stores through much of 2013 than in 2012

Overall KC expects modest net income for the 2013 full year and positive cash flow before financing activities compared with

net loss and essentially break even cash flow before financing in 2012 The net effect of the anticipated closing of number

of stores early in 2013 and the anticipated opening of new stores during the second halfof20l3 are expected to contribute to

improved results Also enhanced sales per store and product margins are expected as result of improvements in store

formats and layouts and further refinements of promotional offers and merchandise mix at both the Kitchen Collection and

Le Gourmet Chef stores During 2012 KC reformatted many of its stores to promote value and trend message at the front

of its stores which is expected with some further adjustments to drive an increased number of customers into its locations

The company completed fDrmat changes at all of its Le Gourmet Chef stores in the first half of 2012 and completed the

remodeling of total of 82 Kitchen Collection stores in 2012 Feedback to date on these changes is favorable but reduced

traffic in 2012 made it difficult to determine their longer-term impact In addition these changes resulted in higher up-front

costs during 2012 and the liquidation of substantial amount of inventory both of which are not expected to recur in 2013 As

these new formats gain traction they are expected to improve margins and income in 2013

Longer term KC plans to focus on comparable store sales growth and creating solid store portfolio KC expects to

accomplish these goals through enhartcing sales volume and profitability through refinement of its formats and ongoing review

of specific product offerings merchandise mix store displays and appearance while improving inventory efficiency and store

inventory controls The company will also continue to evaluate and as lease contracts permit close underperforming and

loss-generating stores In the near term KC expects to concentrate its growth on increasing the number of Kitchen Collection

stores with store expansion expected to be focused on identifying the best positions in the best outlet malls for Kitchen

Collection stores At such time as adequate profit prospects are demonstrated by the Le Gourmet Chef format the

companys expansion focus will shift to increasing the number of these stores as well KC also expects to explore other

growth opportunities in textiles and gourmet foods as well as in e-commerce

54



Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular AmoAnts in Millions Except Per Share and Percentage Data

NACCO AND OTHER

NACCO and Other includes the parent company operations and Bellaire Corporation Bellaire non-operating subsidiary

of NACCO Although Bellaires operations are immaterial it has long-term liabilities related to closed mines primarily from

former Eastern U.S underground coal mining activities

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating Results

The results of operations at NACCO and Other were as follows for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Revenues

Operating loss 7.0 7.3 10.8

Other meome expense 46 561 207

Net income loss 7.7 30.7 20.4

2012 Compared with 2011

NACCO and Other recognized an operating loss of $7.0 million in 2012 compared with an operating loss of $7.3 million in

2011 The change was primarily due to lower professional fees partially offset by an increase in employee-related costs in

2012 compared with 2011

The change in other income expense in 2012 compared with 2011 was primarily due to the settlement of the Applica

litigation as discussec in the Applica Transaction section below NACCO and Other recognized net loss of $7.7 million in

2012 compared with net income of $30.7 million in 2011 primarily due to the factors affecting the operating loss and other

income expense

2011 Compared with 2010

NACCO and Other recognized an operating loss of $7.3 million in 2011 compared with $10.8 million in 2010 The change

was primarily due to decrease in employee-related costs in 2011 compared with 2010

The change in other icome expense in 2011 compared with 2010 was primarily due to the settlement of the Applica

litigation as discussed in the Applica Transaction section below NACCO and Other recognized net income of $30.7 million in

2011 compared with net loss of $20.4 million in 2010 primarily due to the factors affecting the operating loss and other

income expense

Hyster-Yale Spin-Off

On September 28 2012 the Company completed the spin-off of Hyster-Yale former subsidiary To complete the spin-off

the Company distributed one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock and one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock

to NACCO stockholders for each share of NACCO Class common stock or Class common stock they owned As result

of the spin-off the financial position results of operations and cash flows of Hyster-Yale are reflected as discontinued

operations for all periods presented through the date of the spin-off in the Consolidated Financial Statements

In connection with the spin-off of Hyster-Yale NACCO and Other recognized expenses
of $3.4 million $3.0 million after-tax

in 2012 which are reflected as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

In connection with the spin-off of Hyster-Yale the Company and Hyster-Yale entered into Transition Services Agreement

TSA Under the terms of the TSA the Company will obtain various services from Hyster-Yale including accounting and

tax services and provide various services to Hyster-Yale on transitional basis as needed for varying periods after the spin

off
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None of the transition services is expected to exceed one year The Company or Hyster-Yale may extend the initial transition

period for period of up to three months for any service upon 30 days written notice to the other party prior to the initial

termination date The Company expects to pay net aggregate fees to Hyster-Yale of no more than $0.6 million over the initial

term of the TSA The Company recognized $0.2 million of expense for transition services in 2012

In addition the Company entered into an office services agreement pursuant to which Hyster-Yale will provide certain office

services to NACCO under certain mutually agreed upon conditions The Company expects to pay approximately $0.2 million

annually to Hyster-Yale for these services The office services agreement will have an initial term of one year
and will

automatically renew for additional one year periods until terminated by either the Company or Hyster-Yale

Share Repurchase Program

On November 2011 the Company announced that the Companys Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $50

million of the Companys outstanding Class common stock The timing and amount of any repurchases will be determined at

the discretion of the Companys management based on number of factors including the availability of capital other capital

allocation alternatives and market conditions for the Companys Class common stock The original authorization for the

repurchase program expired on December 31 2012 however in November 2012 the Companys Board of Directors approved

an extension of the stock repurchase program through December 31 2013 The share repurchase program does not require the

Company to acquire any specific number of shares It may be modified suspended extended or terminated by the Company at

any time without prior notice and may be executed through open market purchases privately negotiated transactions or

otherwise All or part of the repurchases may be implemented under Rule 10b5-1 trading plan which would allow

repurchases under pre-set terms at times when the Company might otherwise be prevented from doing so As of December 31

2012 the Company had repurchased $5.2 million of Class common stock under this program

Applica Transaction

In 2006 the Company initiated litigation in the Delaware Chancery Court against Applica Incorporated Applica and

individuals and entities affiliated with Applicas shareholder Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund Ltd The litigation

alleged number of contract and tort claims against the defendants related to the failed transaction with Applica which had

been previously announced On February 14 2011 the parties to this litigation entered into settlement agreement The

settlement agreement provided for among other things the payment of $60 million to the Company and dismissal of the

lawsuit with prejudice The payment was received in February 2011

Litigation costs related to the failed transaction with Applica were $2.8 million and $18.8 million in 2011 and 2010

respectively

Management Fees

The management fees charged to operating subsidiaries represent an allocation of corporate overhead of the parent company

Management fees are allocated among all subsidiaries based upon the relative size and complexity of each subsidiary The

Company believes the allocation method is consistently applied and reasonable

Following are the parent company management fees included in each subsidiarys selling general and administrative expenses

for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

NACoaI 4.1 38 41

HBB 2.5 3.3 4.0

KC
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Although NACCOs subsidiaries have entered into substantial borrowing agreements NACCO has not guaranteed any

borrowings of its subsidiaries The borrowing agreements at NACoal HBB and KC allow for the payment to NACCO of

dividends and advances under certain circumstances Dividends to the extent permitted by its subsidiaries borrowing

agreements advances and management fees from its subsidiaries are the primary sources of cash for NACCO

The Company believes funds available from cash on hand its subsidiaries credit facilities and anticipated funds generated

from its subsidiaries operations are sufficient to finance all of its subsidiaries scheduled principal repayments operating needs

and commitments arising during the next twelve months and until the expiration of its subsidiaries credit facilities

Contractual Obligations Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Following is table which summarizes the contractual obligations of NACCO and Other as of December 31 2012

Contractual Obligations Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Operatingleases 28 03 03 03 03 03 13

Purchase and other obligations 8.4 8.4

Total contractual cash obligations 11 03 03 03 03

Pension and postretirement funding can vary significantly each
year

due to plan amendments changes in the market value of

plan assets legislation and the Companys funding decisions to contribute any excess above the minimum legislative funding

requirements As result pension and postretirement funding has not been included in the table above NACCO and Other

maintains one supplemental retirement plan that
pays monthly benefits to participants directly out of corporate funds Annual

benefit payments are expected to be less than $0.1 million
per year over the next ten years

Benefit payments beyond that time

cannot currently be estimated All other pension benefit payments are made from assets of the pension plan NACCO does not

expect to contribute to its pension plan during 2013

The purchase and other obligations are primarily for accounts payable open purchase orders accrued payroll and incentive

compensation

NACCO and Other has long-term liability for mine closing reserves primarily asset retirement obligations of approximately

$19.9 million that is nDt included in the table above due to the uncertainty of the timing of payments to settle these liabilities

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

NACCO has not entered into any off balance sheet financing arrangements other than operating leases which are disclosed in

the contractual obligations table above
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Capital Structure

NACCOs consolidated capital structure is presented below

December

2012 2011 Change

Cash and cash equivalents
139.9 153.7 13.8

Other net tangible assets 264.4 231.1 33.3

Goodwill and coal supply agreemnts iet 693 57 L9

Net assets continuing operations 474.1 442.7 31 .4

Net assets discontinued operations __________
53.t 523.l

Total net assets 474.1 965.8 491.7

Debt continuing operations 177.7 148.2 29.5

Debt discontinued operations 226 2O
Total debt 177.7 374.2 196.5

Closed mine obligations net of tax 15.0 14.6 0.4

Total equity
21.4 5770 2996

Debt to total capitalization continuing operations 39% 35% 4%

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

On January 2012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB on fair value measurement The guidance resulted in consistent definition of fair value and common requirements

for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between U.S generally accepted accounting principles and International

Financial Reporting Standards The adoption of the guidance did not have material effect on the Companys financial

position results of operations cash flows or related disclosures

On January 2012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the FASB on the presentation of comprehensive

income The guidance provides an entity with the option to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net

income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income

or in two separate but consecutive statements Under both options an entity is required to present each component of net

income along with total net income each component of other comprehensive income along with total for other

comprehensive income and total amount for comprehensive income The guidance eliminates the option to present the

components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in equity As this guidance is related to

presentation only the adoption of this guidance did not have any effect on the Companys financial position results of

operations or cash flows

On January 2012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the FASB on testing goodwill for impairment The

revised accounting standard update is intended to simplify how an entity tests goodwill for impairment and will allow an entity

to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment

test An entity no longer will be required to calculate the fair value of reporting unit unless the entity determines based on

qualitative assessment that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less than its carrying amount The adoption of the

guidance did not have material effect on the Companys financial position results of operations cash flows or related

disclosures

On July 2012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the FASB on testing indefinite-lived intangible assets

other than goodwill for impairment This guidance provides entities with an option to perform qualitative assessment to

determine whether further impairment testing is necessary The adoption of the guidance did not have material effect on the

Companys financial position results of operations cash flows or related disclosures
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EFFECTS OF FOREIGN CURRENCY

HBB operates internationally and enters into transactions denominated in foreign currencies As result the Company is

subject to the variability that arises from exchange rate movements The effects of foreign currency on operating results at

HBB is discussed above The Companys use of foreign currency derivative contracts is discussed in Item 7A Quantitative

and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk of this Form 10-K

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Companys previous manufacturing operations like those of other companies engaged in similarbusinesses involved the

use disposal and cleanup of substances regulated under environmental protection laws The Companys NACoaI and Bellaire

subsidiaries are affected by the regulations of agencies under which they operate particularly the Federal Office of Surface

Mining the United States Environmental Protection Agency and associated state regulatory authorities In addition NACoaI

and Bellaire closely monitor proposed legislation concerning SMCRA CAA reauthorization of the Resource Conservation

and Recovery Act the Clean Water Act the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act the

Endangered Species Act and other regulatory actions

Compliance with these increasingly stringent standards could result in higher expenditures for both capital improvements and

operating costs The Companys policies stress environmental responsibility and compliance with these regulations Based on

current information management does not expect compliance with these regulations to have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial condition or results of operations See Item in Part of this Form 10-K for further discussion of these

matters

FORWARD-LOOKFG STATEMENTS

The statements contained in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and

elsewhere throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements within

the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These

forward-looking statements are made subject to certain risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ

materially from those Dresented Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements

which speak only as ofthe date hereof The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking

statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof Such risks and uncertainties with respect to each

subsidiarys operations include without limitation

North American Coat the successful integration of the Reed Minerals acquisition changes in the demand for and

market prices of metallurgical coal produced at the Reed Minerals operations changes in tax laws or regulatory

requirements including changes in mining or power plant emission regulations and health safety or environmental legislation

changes in costs related to geological conditions repairs and maintenance new equipment and replacement parts fuel or

other similar items 511 regulatory actions changes in mining permit requirements or delays in obtaining mining permits that

could affect deliveries to customers weather conditions extended power plant outages or other events that would change

the level of customers coal or limerock requirements which would have an adverse effect on results of operations weather

or equipment problems that could affect deliveries to customers changes in the power industry that would affect demand

for North American Coals reserves changes in the costs to reclaim current North American Coal mining areas 10 costs

to pursue and develop new mining opportunities 11 legal challenges related to Mississippi Powers Ratcliffe Plant in

Mississippi 12 changes or termination of long-term mining contract or customer default under contract and 13
increased competition including consolidation within the industry

Hamilton Beach changes in the sales prices product mix or levels of consumer purchases of small electric appliances

changes in consumer retail and credit markets bankruptcy of or loss of major retail customers or suppliers changes in

costs including transpDrtation costs of sourced products delays in delivery of sourced products changes in or

unavailability of quality or cost effective suppliers exchange rate fluctuations changes in the foreign import tariffs and

monetary policies and other changes in the regulatory climate in the foreign countries in which Hamilton Beach buys operates

and/or sells products product liability regulatory actions or other litigation warranty claims or returns of products

customer acceptance of changes in costs of or delays in the development of new products 10 increased competition
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including consolidation within the industry and 11 changes mandated by federal state and other regulation including health

safety or environmental legislation

Kitchen Collection changes in gasoline prices weather conditions the level of consumer confidence and disposable

income as result of economic conditions unemployment rates or other events or conditions that may adversely affect the

number of customers visiling Kitchen Collection and Le Gourmet Chef stores changes in the sales prices product mix

or levels of consumer purchases of kitchenware small electric appliances and gourmet foods changes in costs including

transportation costs of inventory delays in delivery or the unavailability of inventory customer acceptance of new

products the anticipated impact of the opening of new stores the ability to renegotiate existing leases and effectively and

efficiently close unprofitable stores increased competition and changes in health care benefits that could adversely

affect costs or required staffing levels
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Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

INTEREST RATE R1SK

The Companys subsid aries NACoa1 HBB and KC have entered into certain financing arrangements that require interest

payments based on flOating interest rates As such the Companys financial results are subject to changes in the market rate of

interest There is an inherent rollover risk for borrowings as they mature and are renewed at current market rates The extent of

this risk is not quantifiable or predictable because of the variability of future interest rates and business financing requirements

To reduce the exposure to changes in the market rate of interest the Company has entered into interest rate swap agreements

for portion of its floating rate financing arrangements The Company does not enter into interest rate swap agreements for

trading purposes Terms of the interest rate swap agreements require the subsidiaries to receive variable interest rate and pay

fixed interest rate See Note and Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K

In addition NACoa1 has fixed rate debt arrangements For purposes of risk analysis the Company uses sensitivity analysis to

measure the potential loss in fair value of financial instruments sensitive to changes in interest rates The Company assumes

that loss in fair value is an increase to its liabilities NACoa1s fixed rate debt arrangements have fair value based on

Company estimates of 13.7 million at December 31 2012 Assuming hypothetical 10% decrease in the effective interest

yield on this fixed rate debt the fair value of this liability would increase by less than $0.1 million compared with the fair value

of this liability at Decenber 31 2012 The fair value of the Companys interest rate swap agreements was liability of $0.5

million at December 31 2012 hypothetical 10% decrease in interest rates would cause an increase of less than $0.1 million

in the fair value of interest rate swap agreements and the resulting fair value would be liability of $0.5 million

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATE RISK

HBB operates internati3nally and enters into transactions denominated in foreign currencies principally the Canadian dollar

and to lesser extent the Mexican peso As such HBBs financial results are subject to the variability that arises from

exchange rate movements HBB uses forward foreign currency exchange contracts to partially reduce risks related to

transactions denominatud in foreign currencies and not for trading purposes These contracts generally mature within twelve

months and require the companies to buy or sell Canadian dollars See also Notes and Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements in this Form 10-K

For purposes of risk analysis the Company uses sensitivity analysis to measure the potential loss in fair value of financial

instruments sensitive to changes in foreign currency exchange rates The Company assumes that loss in fair value is either

decrease to its assets or an increase to its liabilities Assuming hypothetical 10% weakening of the U.S dollar compared with

the Canadian dollar at 1ecember 31 2012 the fair value of foreign currency-sensitive financial instruments which represents

forward foreign currency exchange contracts would be decreased by $1.0 million compared with its fair value at December 31
2012 It is important to note that the change in fair value indicated in this sensitivity analysis would be somewhat offset by

changes in the fair value of the underlying receivables and payables

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Company uses certain commodities including steel and diesel fuel in the normal course of its mining processes As such

the cost of operations is subject to variability as the market for these commodities changes The Company monitors this risk

and from time to time enters into derivative contracts to hedge this risk The Company does not currently have any such

derivative contracts outstanding nor does the Company have any significant purchase obligations to obtain fixed quantities of

commodities in the future

Item FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this Item is set forth in the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data contained in Part IV of

this Form 10-K and is hereby incorporated herein by reference to such information

Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL

DISCLOSURE

There were no disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure for the three-year period ended

December 31 2012

Item 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures An evaluation was carried out under the supervision and with the

participation of the Coripanys management including the principal executive officer and the principal financial officer of the
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effectiveness of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report Based on

that evaluation these officers have concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective

Management has excluded Reed Minerals from its assessment of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures because it

was acquired on August 31 2012

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting Management is responsible for establishing and

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting Under the supervision and with the participation of management

including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer the Company conducted an evaluation of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation under the

framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework management concluded that the Companys internal control over

financial reporting was effictive as of December 31 2012 As noted above in our evaluation of disclosure controls and

procedures management has excluded Reed Minerals from its assessment of the effectiveness of the Companys internal

control over financial reporting Reed Minerals represented 13% of the Companys total assets as of December 31 2012 and

3% of revenues for the year ended December 31 2012 The Companys effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

as of December31 2012 has been audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated

in its report which is included in Item 15 of this Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference

Changes in internal control There have been no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the fourth quarter of 2012 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the

Companys internal control over financial reporting The Company acquired Reed Minerals on August 31 2012 and is

currently in the process of integrating Reed Minerals operations processes and internal controls See Note 20 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding the acquisition

Item 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART III

Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information with respect to Directors of the Company will be set forth in the 2013 Proxy Statement under the subheadings

Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Director Nominee Information which information is incorporated

herein by reference

Information with respect to the audit review committee and the audit review committee financial expert will be set forth in the

2013 Proxy Statement under the heading Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Directors Meetings and

Committees which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information with respect to compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by the Companys Directors

executive officers and holders of more than ten percent of the Companys equity securities will be set forth in the 2013 Proxy

Statement under the subheading Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Section 16a Beneficial Ownership

Reporting Compliance which information is incorporated herein by reference

Information regarding ihe executive officers of the Company is included in this Form 10-K as Item 4A of Part as permitted by

Instruction to Item 401b of Regulation S-K

The Company has adopted code of ethics applicable to all Company personnel including the principal executive officer

principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or other persons performing similar functions The code of

ethics entitled the Code of Corporate Conduct is posted on the Companys website at www.nacco.com under Corporate

Governance Amendni ents and waivers of the Companys Code of Corporate Conduct for directors or executive officers of the

Company if any will be disclosed on the Companys website or on current report on Form 8-K

Item 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to executive compensation will be set forth in the 2013 Proxy Statement under the subheadings

Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Director Compensation and Executive Compensation which

information is incorpouted herein by reference

Item 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be set forth in the 2013 Proxy

Statement under the heading Beneficial Ownership of Class Common and Class Common which information is

incorporated herein by reference

Information with respect to compensation plans including individual compensation arrangements under which equity

securities are authorized for issuance will be set forth in the 2013 Proxy Statement under the subheading Business to be

Transacted Election of Directors Equity Compensation Plan Information which information is incorporated herein

by reference

The following table sets forth information as of December 31 2012 with respect to our compensation plans including

individual compensation arrangements under which equity securities are authorized for issuance
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Number of Securities

Remaining Available

for Future Issuance

Number of Securities to Weighted-Average Under Equity

Be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Compensation Plans

of Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Excluding Securities

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Columna

Class Sbares

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders N/A 489875

____________ N/A

Total 489875

CiiasBShares

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders N/A 80100

Equity compensation plans not

app.ovedby security holders ______________ N/A _____________
Total

_______________________
80100

Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information with respect to certain relationships and related transactions will be set forth in the 2013 Proxy Statement under the

subheadings Business to be Transacted Election of Directors Directors Meetings and Committees and Certain

Business Relationships which information is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information with respect to principal accountant fees and services will be set forth in the 2013 Proxy Statement under the

heading Business to be Transacted Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for

the Current Fiscal Year which information is incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

and The response to Item 15a1 and is set forth beginning at page F-i of this Form 10-K

Listing of Exhibits See the exhibit index beginning at page X-1 of this Form 10-K

The response to Item 15b is set forth beginning at page X-1 of this Form 10-K

Financial Statement Schedules The
response to Item 15c is set forth beginning at page F-45 of this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

NACCO Industries Inc

By Is J.C Butler Jr

J.C Butler Jr

Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer and

ChiefAdministrative Officer principal financial

officer and principal accounting officer

March 62013
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer March 2013

Is Alfred Rankin Jr principal executive officer Director

Alfred Rankin Jr

Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer and Chief March 2013

Administrative Officer principal financial officer

Is J.C Butler Jr and principal accounting officer

J.C Butler Jr

John Jumper Director March 2013

John Jumper

Dennis LaBarre Director March 2013

Dennis LaBarre

Richard de Osborne Director March 2013

Richard de Osborne

James Ratner Director March 2013

James Ratner

Britton Taplin Director March 2013

Britton Taplin

David Taplin Director March 2013

David Taplin

John Turben Director March 2013

John Turben

David Williams Director March 2013

David Williams

J.C Butler Jr by signing his name hereto does hereby sign this Form 10-K on behalf of each of the above named and

designated directors of the Company pursuant to Power of Attorney executed by such persons and filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commision

Is J.C Butler Jr March 2013

J.C Butler Jr Attorney-in-Fact
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ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

ITEM ITEM 15a1 AND AND ITEM 15c

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC

CLEVELAND OHIO
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FORM 10-K

ITEM 15a1 AND

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following conolidated financial statements of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries are incorporated by reference

in Item

Report of Ernst Youig LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm For each of the three
years

in the

period ended December 31 2012
F-3

Report of Ernst Youig LLP Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Year ended December 31 2012
F-4

Consolidated Statements of Operations Year ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
F-5

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Loss Year ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
F-6

Consolidated Balance Sheets December 31 2012 and December 31 2011
F-7

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Year ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
F-8

Consolidated Statements of Equity Year ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
F-9

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
F-b

The following consolidated financial statement schedules of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries are included in

Item 15c

Schedule Condensed Financial Information of the Parent

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifing Accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC are not required under

the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of NACCO Industries Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries collectively the

Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income

loss cash flows and equily for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 Our audits also included the

financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on

our audits

We conducted our audits iii accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries at December 31 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated results of

their operations and their cash flows thr each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedules when considered

in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all material respects
the information set forth

therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

NACCO Industries Inc arid Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission and our report dated March 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Cleveland Ohio

March 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of NACCO Industries Inc

We have audited NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012

based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Teadway Commission the COSO criteria NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries management is

responsible for mainta ning effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying managements report on internal control over financial

reporting in Item 9A ofthe Form 10-K Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the companys internal control over

financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audt in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and

operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

As indicated in the ace Dmpanying managements report on internal control over financial reporting managements assessment of

and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of Reed

Minerals which is included in the 2012 consolidated financial statements of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries and

constituted 13% of total assets as of December 31 2012 and 3% of revenues for the year then ended Our audit of internal control

over financial reporting of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over

financial reporting of Reed Minerals

In our opinion NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as cf December 31 2012 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the consolidated balance sheets of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related

consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income loss cash flows and equity for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31 2012 of NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries and our report dated March 2013 expressed

an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Cleveland Ohio

March 2013
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NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31

Cost of sales

Gross

Earnings of unconsolidated mines

OperatiqEzp

Selling general and administrative
expenses

Gain ca sale of assets

OperaProfit

Other income expense

Interest expense

Income from other unconsolidated affiliates

Applics.settlsmmt sodlitigation costs

Closed mine obligations

Other

Iacoae Rsfere lucerne Taxes

Income tax provision

lucerne From Ce.nulag Operations

Discontinued operations net of tax expense of $7.6 $18.9 and $1.8 in

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Net

per Share

Continuing operations

Basic Earnings per Share

Diluted Earnings per Share

Ctip.r
Discontinued operations

Dtiuted Earn per Share

Comprehensive Income

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2012 2011 2010

In millions except per share data

$73.4 790.4 885.6

647.5 580.8 639.2

225.9 209.6 246.4

45.2 45.5 43.4

210.4 192.0 195.8

6.8 1.0 0.2

203.6 191.0 195.6

67.5 64.1 94.2

6.1 8.7 10.8

1.6 1.4

57.2 18
4.6 1.0 1.9

0.4 0.7

9.5 48.2 31.5

58.0 1123 62.7

15.8 32.8 15.6

42.2 79.5 47.1

66.5 82.6 32.4

108.7 162.1 79.5

5.04 9.49 5.66

7.93 9.85 3.89

12.97 19.34 9.55

5.02 9.46 5.45

7.90 9.82 3.88

12.92 19.28 9.53

118.2 146.5 61.6
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NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS

Year Ended December31

Income

Other comprehensive income loss

Fciein cnrràtcv translation adjustment

Current period casF flow hedging activity net of $2.4 tax expense in

2012 $0.2 tax expcnse in 2011 and $3.3 tax benefit in 2010

Reclassification of hedging activities into earnings net of $2.7 tax

Wense1n12 $2.6 tax expense in 2011 and $4.2 tax expense in

OIO

Current period pension and postretirement plan adjustment net of

$1.6 tax benefit in 2012 $7.3 tax benefit in 2011 and $1.6 tax

benefit in 2010

Reclassification of pension and postretirement adjustments into

earnings neOf $2.0 tax expense in 2012 $1.8 tax expense in 2011

iauid S1 tatdlense in 2010

Comprehensive Income

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.7 19.0 3.8

5.9 5.1

118.2 146.5 61.6

2012 2011 2010

In millions

108.7 -162.1 79.5

04 14.9 6.7

7.7 2.4 3.7

2.8 9.2 8.8
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NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2012 2011

In millions except share data

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable net of allowances of$16.2 in 2012 and $14.3 in 2011

Accounts receivable from affiliates

Inventories net

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid expenses and other

Assets held for sale

Current assets of discontinued operations

Total Current Assets

Property Plant and Equipment Net

Goedwifi

Coal Supply Agreements and Other Intangibles Net

Other Non-current Assets

Long-term Assets of Discontinued Operations

Total Assets _________ _________
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Revolving credit agreements of subsidiaries not guaranteed by the parent company

Current maturities of long-term debt of subsidiaries not guaranteed by the parent company

Accrued payroll

Other current liabilities

Current liabilities of discontinued operations
_____________ _____________

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt of Subsidiaries not guaranteed by the parent company

Mine closing reserves

Pension and other Postretirement Obligations

Long-term Deferred Income Taxes

Other Long-term Liabilities

Long-term Liabilities of Discontinued Operations
_______________ _______________

Total Liabffities

Stockholders Equity

Common stock

Class par value $1 per share 6770689 shares outstanding 2011 6778346 shares outstanding

Class par value $1 per share convertible into Class on one-for-one basis 1582310 shares

outstanding 2011 1595581 shares outstanding

Capital in excess of par value

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Total Stockholders Equity

Noncontrolling Interest

Total Equity
__________ __________

Total Liabilities and Equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

139.9 153.7

121.2 96.7

lL1 4.0

169.4 161.3

153 24.5

11.4 10.6

IS

893.9

I76.1

183.0 07.2

6.4

63.4 57.9

4i9
218.6

776.3 hIL8O8.7

127.5

35.3

7.0

24.2

33.2

227.2

135.4

29.0

24.4

27.3

51.6

94.2

67.0

6.7

19.1

42.8

661.4

891.2

74.5

18.2

29.3

20.0

39.8

158.7

494.9 1231.7

6.8 6.8

14 1.6

24.5 22.7

313.6 619.7

65.1 74.6

281.4 576.2

0.8

281.4 577.0

776.3$ 1808.7
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NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

Operating Activities

Net income

DIscontinued operatiors

Income from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile rtet income to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation depletion and amortization

Amortization of deferred financing fees

Deferred income taxes

Gain loss on sale of assets

Other non-current liabilities

Other

Working capital changes excluding the effect of business acquisition

Accounts receivable

2012 2011 2010

In millions

108.7 162.1 79.5

66.5 82.6 32.4

42.2 79.5 47.1

18.0 16.4 18.3

1.1 1.2 1.2

14.6 0.1 9.6

6.8 1.0 0.2

1.3 6.2 7.0

11.8 24.1

19.1 10.2 18.5

2.8 4.4 26.2

1.0 2.0 2.6

23.9 11.4 20.6

8.8 2.8 7.8

74.4 100.6 15.6

68.7 54.6 47.5

44.7 20.2 15.8

69.3

Inventoris

Other current assets

Accounts payable

Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations

Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations

Investing Activities

Expenditures for property plant and equipment

Acquisition of business

roceeds from the sale of assets

Proceeds from note receivable

Other

Net cash provided by used for investing activities of continuing operations

Net cash used for Investing activities of discontinued operatlois

gActivItle

Reductions of long-terrri debt

Net additions to revolving credit agreements

Cash dividends paid

Cash dividends received from Hyster-Yale

Purchase of treasury shares

Financing fees paid

Other

Net cash used forfinancing activities of continuing operations

Net cash used for financing activities of discontinued operations

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash of discontinued operations

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Increase decrease for the year

Net increase dócóase related to discontinued operations

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance àtthe end of tIe year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

35.9 3.4 19.9

14.4

1.4

63.7 16.8 2.7

10.5 15.9 8.5

62.5 69.1 8.6

82.7 57.5 2.5

45.1 17.8 17.4

5.0 10.0 5.0

3.2 2.1

1.4 0.8 0.4

0.2
_____________

24.5 22.5 18.9

98.9 19.5 24.4

0.8 3.8 8.3

53.7 76.7 5.7

39.9 15.4 6.3

153.7 92.4 93.0

1399 153.7 92.4
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NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Balance Janaa1 12010 6.7

Stock-based compensation

Shares issued under stock compensatiOn plans

Net income attributable to stockholders

Cash dividends on Class and Class common

stock $2.0850 per share

Current period other comprehensive income loss

Reclassification adjustment to net income

Sale of certain Hyster-Yale operations

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Noncontrolling interest share of contributions to joint

venture

Balance December 312010

Stock-based compensation

Shares issued under stock compensation plans

Purchase of treasury shares

Net income attributable to stockholders

Cash dividends on Class and Class common
stock S2.1200 per share

Current period other comprehensive income loss

Reclassification adjustment to net income

Balance December 312011

Stock-based compensation

Shares issued under stock compensation plans

Purchase of treasury shares

Net income

Cash dividends on Class and Class common

stock 55.3775 per share

Stock dividend

Current period other comprehensive income loss

Reclassification adjustment to net income

Balance December 31 2012

0.1 6.4

0.5

79.5

17.4 17.4 17.4

7.1

3.7

7.1

0.1 0.1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Class

Common
Stock

Class

Common
Stock

Capital

in Excess

of Par

Value

Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income Loss

Foreign Deferred Pension and

Currency Gain Loss Postretirement

Retained Translation on Cash Flow Plan

Earnings Adjustment Hedging Adjustment

1.6 16.1 413.3 34.8

In millions except per share data

Total

Stockholders Noncontrolling Total

Equity Interest Equity

0.4

3.5 79.4 3%.6

6.5

0.5

79.5

0.5

7.1

397.1

6.5

0.5

79.5

3.7 3.8

8.8 5.1

7.1

3.7

7.1

0.4 0.4 0.4

6.8 1.6 22.6 475.4 28.1 9.0 78.1 447.4 0.8 448.2

1.7 1.7 1.7

0.5 0.5 0.5

2.1 2.1 2.1

162.1 162.1 162.1

17.8

14.9 2.4

9.2

19.0

6.7

17.8

31.5

15.9

17.8

31.5

15.9

6.8 1.6 22.7

4.2

u.7

3.1

619.7 13.2 2.6 90.4 576.2

4.2

0.7

3.1

0.8 577.0

4.2

0.7

3.1

108.7 108.7 108.7

45.1

369.7

0.4 7.7

2.0

1.7

5.9

45.1

369.7

6.4

31

8.1

45.1

370.5

6.4

3.1

6.8 1.6 24.5 313.6 13.6 7.5 86.2 281.4 281.4
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amounts in Millions Except Per Share and Percentage Data

NOTE 1Principles of Consolidation and Nature of Operations

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of NACCO Industries Inc the parent company or NACCO
and its wholly owned subsidiaries NACCO Industries Inc and Subsidiaries or the Company Intercompany accounts and

transactions are eliminated in consolidation The Companys subsidiaries operate in the following principal industries mining

small appliances and specialty retail The Company manages its subsidiaries primarily by industry

The North American Coal Corporation and its affiliated companies collectively NACoal mine and market steam and

metallurgical coal for use in power generation and steel production and provide selected value-added mining services for other

natural resources companies Hamilton Beach Brands Inc HBB is leading designer marketer and distributor of small

electric household appliances as well as commercial products for restaurants bars and hotels The Kitchen Collection LLC

KC is national specialty retailer of kitchenware and gourmet foods operating under the Kitchen Collection and Le

Gourmet Chef store names in outlet and traditional malls throughout the United States On September 28 2012 the Company

spun-off Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc Hyster-Yale former subsidiary The financial position results of operations

and cash flows of Hyster-Yale are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented through the date of the spin-off

See Note for further details regarding the spin-off

NACoal has two consolidated mining operations Mississippi Lignite Mining Company MLMC and Reed Minerals Inc

Reed Minerals NACoa1 has ten wholly owned unconsolidated subsidiaries that each meet the definition of variable

interest entity The Coteau Properties Company Coteau The Falkirk Mining Company Falkirk The Sabine Mining

Company Sabine and collectively with Coteau and Falkirk the project mining subsidiaries Demery Resources Company

LLC Demery Caddo Creek Resources Company LLC Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Mining LLC Coyote Creek
Camino Real Fuels Camino Real Liberty Fuels Company LLC Liberty NoDak Energy Services LLC

NoDak and North American Coal Corporation India Private Limited NACC India The project mining subsidiaries were

developed between 1974 and 1981 and operate lignite coal mines under long-term contracts with various utility customers

These project mining subsidiaries are capitalized primarily with debt financing which the utility customers have arranged and

guaranteed The obligations of the project mining subsidiaries are without recourse to NACCO and NACoal Demery Caddo

Creek Camino Real Liberty and NoDak were formed during 2008 and 2009 NACC India was formed during 2011 Coyote

Creek was formed during 2012 Demery Caddo Creek Coyote Creek Camino Real and Liberty collectively with the project

mining subsidiaries the unconsolidated mines were formed to develop construct and operate surface mines under long-term

contracts NoDak was formed to operate and maintain coal processing facility NACC India was formed to provide technical

advisory services to the third-party owners of coal mine in India The contracts with the unconsolidated operations customers

provide for reimbursement at price based on actual costs plus an agreed pre-tax profit per ton of coal sold or actual costs plus

management fee Although NACoal owns 100% of the equity and manages the daily operations of these entities the Company

has determined that the equity capital provided by NACoal is not sufficient to adequately finance the ongoing activities or

absorb any expected losses without additional support from the customers The customers have controlling financial interest

and have the power to direct the activities that most significantly affect the economic performance of the entities As result

NACoal is not the primary beneficiary and therefore does not consolidate these entities financial position or results of

operations The taxes resulting from the unconsolidated entities are solely the responsibility of the Company The pre-tax

income from the unconsolidated mines is reported on the line Earnings of unconsolidated mines in the Consolidated

Statements of Operations with related taxes included in the provision for income taxes The Company has included the pre-tax

earnings of the unconsolidated mines above operating profit as they are an integral component of the Companys business and

operating results The pre-tax income from NoDak is reported on the line Income from other unconsolidated affiliates in the

Other income expense section of the Consolidated Statement of Operations with the related income taxes included in the

provision for income trxes The net income from NACC India is reported on the line Income from other unconsolidated

affiliates in the Othet income expense section of the Consolidated Statements of Operations The unconsolidated mines are

accounted for under the equity method See Note 19 for further discussion

NOTE 2Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and judgments These estimates and judgments affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities if any at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amounts in Millions Except Per Share and Percentage Data

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less

Accounts Receivable Net of Allowances Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained against accounts receivable for

estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers to make required payments These allowances are based on both

recent trends of certain customers estimated to be greater credit risk as well as general trends of the entire customer pool

Accounts are written off against the allowance when it becomes evident collection will not occur

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market The weighted average method is used for coal inventory KC

retail inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market using the retail inventory method The first-in first-out FIFO
method is used with respect to all other inventories Reserves are maintained for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory

equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future

demand and market conditions Upon subsequent sale or disposal of the impaired inventory the corresponding reserve for

impaired value is relieved to ensure that the cost basis of the inventory reflects any write-downs

Property Plant and Equipment Net Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost Depreciation depletion and

amortization are provided in amounts sufficient to amortize the cost of the assets including assets recorded under capital leases

over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method Buildings and building improvements are depreciated using

40 year life or at NACoal over the lifu of the mine which is 30 years Estimated lives for machinery and equipment range

from three to 15 years Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the term of the

lease The units-of-production method is used to amortize certain tooling for sourced products and certain coal-related assets

based on estimated recoverable tonnages Repairs and maintenance costs are generally expensed when incurred Asset

retirement costs associated with asset retirement obligations are capitalized with the carrying amount of the related long-lived

asset and depreciated over the assets estimated useful life

Long-Lived Assets The Company periodically evaluates long-lived assets for impairment when changes in circumstances or

the occurrence of certain events indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Upon identification of

indicators of impairment the Company evaluates the carrying value of the asset by comparing the estimated future

undiscounted cash flows generated from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition with the assets net carrying value If

the carrying value of an asset is considered impaired an impairment charge is recorded for the amount that the carrying value of

the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value Fair value is estimated as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess purchase price paid over the fair value of the net assets acquired The Company

evaluates the carrying value of goodwill for impairment annually and between annual evaluations if changes in circumstances

or the occurrence of certain events indicate potential impairment When evaluating whether goodwill is impaired the Company

compares the fair value of the reporting unit to which the goodwill is assigned to the reporting units carrying amount

Impairment exists when the carrying amount of the goodwill exceeds its implied fair value

Coal Supply Agreements and Other Intangibles Net The coal supply agreements represent long-term supply agreements

with NACoals customers and are recorded based on the fair value at the date of acquisition The coal supply agreements are

amortized based on units of production or straight line over the life of the agreements which range from to 30 years The

Company reviews identified intangible assets for impairment when changes in circumstances or the occurrence of certain

events indicate potential impairment

Self-insurance Liabilities The Company is generally self-insured for product liability environmental liability medical certain

workers compensation claims and certain closed mine liabilities For product liability catastrophic insurance coverage
is

retained for potentially significant individual claims An estimated provision for claims reported and for claims incurred but not

yet reported under the self-insurance programs is recorded and revised periodically based on industry trends historical

experience and management judgment In addition industry trends are considered within managements judgment for valuing

claims Changes in assumptions for such matters as legal judgments and settlements inflation rates medical costs and actual

experience could cause estimates to change in the near term

Revenue Recognition Revenues are generally recognized when title transfers and risk of loss
passes

to the customer Under its

mining contracts the Company recognizes revenue as the coal or limerock is delivered Revenues at HBB are recognized when

customer orders are completed and shipped Revenues at KC are recognized at the point of sale when payment is made and

customers take possession of the merchandise in stores

F-il



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tabular Amounts in Millions Except Per Share and Percentage Data

The Companys products generally are not sold with the right of return Based on the Companys historical experience portion

of KC and HBB products sold are estimated to be returned due to reasons such as buyer remorse duplicate gifts received

product failure and excess inventory stocked by the customer which subject to certain terms and conditions the Company will

agree to accept The Company records estimated reductions to revenues at the time of the sale based upon this historical

experience and the limited right of return provided to the Companys customers

The Company also records estimated reductions to revenues for customer programs and incentive offerings including special

pricing agreements price competition promotions and other volume-based incentives At HBB net sales represent gross sales

less cooperative advertising other volume-based incentives estimated returns and allowances for defective products

Additionally the Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenues are recognized At KC
retail markdowns are ircorporated into KCs retail method of accounting for cost of sales

Advertising Costs Advertising costs except for direct response advertising are expensed as incurred Total advertising

expense was $16.5 million $13.5 million and $8.1 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Included in these advertising

costs are amounts related to cooperative advertising programs at HBB that are recorded as reduction of sales in the

Consolidated Statemen of Operations as related revenues are recognized Direct response advertising which consists

primarily of costs to produce television commercials for HBB products is capitalized and amortized over the expected period

of future benefits No assets related to direct response advertising were capitalized at December 31 2012 or 2011

Product Development Costs Expenses associated with the development of new products and changes to existing products are

charged to expense as incurred These costs amounted to $7.5 million $7.4 million and $7.6 million in 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively

Shipping and Handling Costs Shipping and handling costs billed to customers are recognized as revenue and shipping and

handling costs incurred by the Company are included in cost of sales

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities The Company collects various taxes and fees

as an agent in connection with the sale of products and remits these amounts to the respective taxing authorities These taxes

and fees have been presented on net basis in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and are recorded as liability until

remitted to the respective taxing authority

Stock Compensation The Company maintains long-term incentive programs at all of its subsidiaries The parent company has

stock compensation plans that allow the grant of shares of Class common stock subject to restrictions as means of

retaining and rewarding selected employees for long-term performance and to increase ownership in the Company Shares

awarded under the plans are fully vested and entitle the stockholder to all rights of common stock ownership except that shares

may not be assigned pledged or otherwise transferred during the restriction period In general the restriction period ends at the

earliest ofi five years after the participants retirement date ii ten years from the award date or iii the participants death or

permanent disability Pursuant to the plans the Company issued 72566 and 18805 shares related to the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively After the issuance of these shares there were 249882 shares of Class common

stock available for issuance under these plans Compensation expense related to these share awards was $4.4 million $2.8

million net of tax $1.7 million $1.1 million net of tax and $6.5 million $4.2 million net of tax for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Compensation expense represents fair value based on the market price of the

shares of Class common stock at the grant date

The Company also has stock compensation plan for non-employee directors of the Company under which portion of the

non-employee directors annual retainer is paid in restricted shares of Class common stock For the year ended December 31

2012 $69000 of the ncn-employee directors annual retainer of$125000 was paid in restricted shares of Class common
stock For the year endcd December 31 2011 $49500 of the non-employee directors annual retainer of $90000 was paid in

restricted shares of Clas sA common stock For the year ended December 31 2010 $29250 of the non-employee directors

annual retainer of $53626 was paid in restricted shares of Class common stock Shares awarded under the plan are fully

vested and entitle the stockholder to all rights of common stock ownership except that shares may not be assigned pledged or

otherwise transferred during the restriction period In general the restriction period ends at the earliest of ten years from the

award date ii the date of the directors death or permanent disability iiifive years or earlier with the approval of the Board

of Directors after the directors date of retirement from the Board of Directors or iv the date of the participants retirement

from the Board of Directors and the director has reached 70 years of age Pursuant to this plan the Company issued 8944

4938 and 3039 shares related to the
years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively In addition to the

mandatory retainer fee received in restricted stock directors may elect to receive shares of Class common stock in lieu of

cash for up to 100% of ihe balance of their annual retainer meeting attendance fees committee retainer and any committee
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chairmans fees These voluntary shares are not subject to any restrictions Total shares issued under voluntary elections were

1991 in 2012 1356 in 2011 and 944 in 2010 After the issuance of these shares there were 83814 shares of Class Acommon

stock available for issuance under this plan Compensation expense related to these awards was $0.8 million $0.5 million net

of tax $0.5 million $0.3 million net of tax and $0.3 million $0.2 million net of tax for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively Compensation expense represents fair value based on the market price of the shares of Class

common stock at the grant date

Foreign Currency Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into U.S dollars at the fiscal year-end exchange

rate The related translation adjustments are recorded as separate component of stockholders equity Revenues and expenses

of all foreign operations are translated using average monthly exchange rates prevailing during the year

Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments Financial instruments held by the Company include cash and

cash equivalents accounts receivable accounts payable revolving credit agreements long-term debt interest rate swap

agreements and forward foreign currency exchange contracts The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments or

derivative financial instruments for trading purposes

The Company uses forward foreign currency exchange contracts to partially reduce risks related to transactions denominated in

foreign currencies The Company offsets fair value amounts related to foreign currency exchange contracts executed with the

same counterparty These contracts hedge firm commitments and forecasted transactions relating to cash flows associated with

sales and purchases denominated in currencies other than the subsidiaries functional currencies Changes in the fair value of

forward foreign currency exchange contracts that are effective as hedges are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive

income loss OCI Deferred gains or losses are reclassified from OCI to the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the

same period as the gains or losses from the underlying transactions are recorded and are generally recognized in cost of sales

The ineffective portion of derivatives that are classified as hedges is immediately recognized in earnings and generally

recognized in cost of sales

The Company uses interest rate swap agreements to partially reduce risks related to floating rate financing agreements that are

subject to changes in the market rate of interest Terms of the interest rate swap agreements require the Company to receive

variable interest rate and pay fixed interest rate The Companys interest rate swap agreements and its variable rate financings

are predominately based upon the three-month LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate Changes in the fair value of interest

rate swap agreements that are effective as hedges are recorded in OCI Deferred gains or losses are reclassified from OCI to the

Consolidated Statement of Operations in the same period as the gains or losses from the underlying transactions are recorded

and are generally recognized in interest expense The ineffective portion of derivatives that are classified as hedges is

immediately recognized in earnings and included on the line Other in the Other income expense section of the

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Interest rate swap agreements and forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Company have been designated as

hedges of forecasted cash flows The Company does not currently hold any nonderivative instruments designated as hedges or

any derivatives designated as fair value hedges

The Company periodically enters into foreign currency exchange contracts that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting

These derivatives are used to reduce the Companys exposure to foreign currency risk related to forecasted purchase or sales

transactions or forecasted intercompany cash payments or settlements Gains and losses on these derivatives are included on the

line Other in the Other income expense section of the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Cash flows from hedging activities are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the same classification as the

hedged item generally as component of cash flows from operations

See Note for further discussion of derivative financial instruments

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Accounting Standards Adopted in 2012

On January 2012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB on fair value measurement The guidance resulted in consistent definition of fair value and common requirements

for measurement of and disclosure about fair value between U.S generally accepted accounting principles and International

Financial Reporting Standards The adoption of the guidance did not have material effect on the Companys financial position

results of operations cash flows or related disclosures
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On January 12012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the FASB on the presentation of comprehensive

income The guidance provides an entity with the option to present the total of comprehensive income the components of net

income and the components of other comprehensive income either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income

or in two separate but consecutive statements Under both options an entity is required to present each component of net

income along with total net income each component of other comprehensive income along with total for other comprehensive

income and total amount for comprehensive income The guidance eliminates the option to present the components of other

comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in equity As this guidance is related to presentation only the

adoption of this guidance did not have any effect on the Companys financial position results of operations or cash flows

On January 2012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the FASB on testing goodwill for impairment The

revised accounting standard update is intended to simplify how an entity tests goodwill for impairment and will allow an entity

to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is necessary to perform the two-step quantitative goodwill impairment

test An entity no longer will be required to calculate the fair value of reporting unit unless the entity determines based on

qualitative assessment that it is more likely than not that its fair value is less than its carrying amount The adoption of the

guidance did not have material effect on the Companys financial position results of operations cash flows or related

disclosures

On July 2012 the Company adopted authoritative guidance issued by the FASB on testing indefinite-lived intangible assets

other than goodwill for impairment This guidance provides entities with an option to perform qualitative assessment to

determine whether further impairment testing is necessary The adoption of the guidance did not have material effect on the

Companys financial position results of operations cash flows or related disclosures

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In February 2013 the FASB issued authoritative guidance on the presentation of comprehensive income which is effective for

the Company on January 12013 The guidance provides an entity with the option to present either on the face of the

statement where net income is presented or in the notes the effects on the line items of net income of significant amounts

reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income but only if the item reclassified is required under U.S GAAP to

be reclassified to net income in its entirety in the same reporting period and ii cross-reference to other disclosures currently

required under U.S GAAP for other reclassification items that are not required under U.S GAAP to be reclassified directly to

net income in their entirety in the same reporting period This would be the case when portion of the amount reclassified out

of accumulated other comprehensive income is initially transferred to balance sheet account e.g inventory for pension-

related amounts instead of directly to income or expense The Company does not expect the adoption of the guidance to have

material effect on its financial position results of operations cash flows or related disclosures

Reclassifications Ceramounts in the prior periods Consolidated Financial Statements have been reclassified to conform to

the current periods presentation

NOTE 3Other Tratisactions

During 2012 Coyote reek an indirect subsidiary of the Company entered into Lignite Sales Agreement the LSA with

Otter Tail Power Company OTP wholly owned subsidiary of Otter Tail Corporation and with OTPs co-owners in the

Coyote Station baseload generation plant Montana-Dakota Utilities Co division of MDU Resources Group Inc Northern

Municipal Power Agency and NorthWestern Corporation Under the LSA NACoa1 will develop lignite mine in Mercer

County North Dakota and deliver to the Coyote Station co-owners as an exclusive supplier the annual fuel requirements of the

Coyote Station plant expected to be approximately 2.5 million tons annually starting in 2016 The term of the LSA consists of

two periods the development period which is from October 10 2012 until on or around May 2016 and ii the

production period which is from the last day of the development period until December 31 2040 The production period is

subject to automatic 5-year extensions unless either party gives notice of its desire not to extend the LSA or the lignite at the

mine is exhausted Included in Accounts receivable from affiliates on the Consolidated Balance Sheet is $24.8 million due

from Coyote Creek primarily for the purchase of dragline from NACoal

During 2010 NACoa1 received and recorded $7.6 million which is included on the line Revenues in the Consolidated

Statement ofOperatiors related to the reimbursement from Mississippi Power Company for previously recognized costs for
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pre-development activities NACoaI also received $3.5 million related to Mississippi Power Companys purchase of capitalized

assets for activities related to obtaining mining permit which approximated NACoals book value

During 2010 and 2011 NACoal entered into agreements to sell $31.4 million of assets primarily two draglines During 2012

NACoaI sold the draglines for $31.2 million and recognized gain on the sale of one dragline of $3.3 million These assets

were previously reported as held for sale on the statement of financial position Also during 2012 NACoa1 recognized gain of

$3.5 million from the sale cf land

During 2010 NACoal sold the majority of the assets of its investment in Great American Energy for cash proceeds of $11.2

million which is included on the line Proceeds from the sale of assets in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

NACoaIs contract at San Miguel Lignite Mine San Miguel expired at the end of 2010 NACoal did not incur significant

costs or recognize any impairment of assets as result of the transition of the operations related to this contract during the last

six months of 2010

NACCO and Other In 2006 the Company initiated litigation in the Delaware Chancery Court against Applica Incorporated

Applica and individuals and entities affiliated with Applicas shareholder Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund Ltd The

litigation alleged number of contract and tort claims against the defendants related to the Companys failed transaction with

Applica which had been previously announced On February 14 2011 the parties to this litigation entered into settlement

agreement The settlement agreement provided for among other things the payment of $60.0 million to the Company and

dismissal of the lawsuit with prejudice The payment was received in February 2011 Litigation costs related to this matter were

$2.8 million and $18.8 million in 2011 and 2010 respectively

Hyster-Yale Spin-Off On September 28 2012 the Company spun-off Hyster-Yale former subsidiary To complete the spin

off the Company distributed one share of Hyster-Yale Class common stock and one share of Hyster-Yale Class common

stock to NACCO stockholders for each share of NACCO Class common stock or Class common stock owned In

accordance with the applicable authoritative accounting guidance the Company accounted for the spin-off based on the

carrying value of Hyster-Yale

In connection with the spin-off of Hyster-Yale the Company and Hyster-Yale entered into Transition Services Agreement

TSA Under the terms of the TSA the Company will obtain various services from Hyster-Yale including accounting and

tax services and provide various services to Hyster-Yale on transitional basis as needed for varying periods after the spin

off

None of the transition services is expected to exceed one year The Company or Hyster-Yale may extend the initial transition

period for period of up to three months for any service upon 30 days written notice to the other party prior to the initial

termination date The Company expects to pay net aggregate fees to Hyster-Yale of no more than $0.6 million over the initial

term of the TSA The Company recognized $0.2 million of expense for transition services in 2012

In addition the Company entered into an office services agreement pursuant to which Hyster-Yale will provide certain office

services to NACCO under certain mutually agreed upon conditions The fees the Company will pay to Hyster-Yale will be

determined on an arms-length basis The Company expects to pay approximately $0.2 million annually to Hyster-Yale for these

services The office services agreement will have an initial term of one year and will automatically renew for additional one

year periods until terminated by either the Company or Hyster-Yale

As result of the spin-off the financial position results of operations and cash flows of Hyster-Yale are reflected as

discontinued operations through the date of the spin-off in the Consolidated Financial Statements

In connection with the spin-off of Hyster-Yale NACCO and Other recognized expenses of $3 .4 million $3.0 million after-tax

for the year ended December 31 2012 which is reflected as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of

Operations
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Discontinued operations includes the following results of Hyster-Yale for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Revenues

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per
share

2012

1817.1

65.6

7.82

7.81

2011

2540.8

82.6

9.85

9.82

2010

1801.9

32.4

3.89

3.88

NOTE 4Inventories

Inventories are summarized as follows

December

Coal NACoal

Mining supplies NACoa1

Total inventories at weighted average

Sourced inventories HBB

Retail inventories KC
Total inventories at FIFO

NOTE 5Property Plant and Equipment Net

Property plant and equipment net includes the following

2012 2011

17.3 13.1

13.6 11.1

30.9 24.2

84.8 75.6

61.5

138.5 137.1

169.4 161.3

December 31

2012 2011

67.6 36.7

0.2 _________
67.8 36.9

149.9 99.7

429 410

29.5 29.1

226.6 176.3

94.4 213.2

111.4 106.0

1830$ 1072

Total depreciation depletion and amortization expense on property plant and equipment was $15.2 million $14.3 million and

$14.8 million during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Depreciation expense for 2012 includes an impairment charge of $0.7

million for leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures at KC Depreciation expense for 2011 includes charge of $1.3

million for capital lease asset no longer being leased at HBB

Proven and probable cDal reserves excluding the unconsolidated mines approximated 1.2 billion tons unaudited at

December 31 2012 and 1.3 billion tons unaudited at December 31 2011 These tons are reported on an as received by the

customer basis and are the equivalent of demonstrated reserves under the coal resource classification system of the U.S

Geological Survey Generally these reserves would be commercially mineable at year-end prices and cost levels using current

technology and mining practices

Coal lands and real estate

NACoa1

HBB

Plant and equipment

NACoa1

HBB

KC

NACCO and Other

Property plant and equipment at cost

Less allowances for depreciation depletion and amortization
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NOTE 6Intangible Assets

As described in Note 20 NACoa1 acquired Reed Minerals on August 31 2012 for preliminary purchase price of

approximately $73.3 million which includes preliminary estimated contingent consideration of up to $4.0 million Of the

preliminary purchase price $8.2 million was allocated to identifiable intangible assets including coal supply agreement of

$7.3 million and other intangibles of $0.9 million Preliminary goodwill is $6.4 million The allocation of the purchase price is

preliminary as the Company has not yet finalized its analysis of the fair value of the contingent consideration and income taxes

Changes in the assumptions used to calculate the preliminary fair values will affect the allocation of the purchase price to the

assets and liabilities of the acquisition Accordingly the preliminary amount allocated to goodwill is subject to change

Intangible assets other than goodwill which are subject to amortization consist of the following

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net

Amount Amortization Balance

BsInctrn2O12
Coal supply agreements 91.5 29.0 62.5

OtherbttuglNe 09 09

92.4 29.0 63.4

Balance atDecember3l 2011
__________ __________ __________

Coal supply agreement 84.2 26.3 57.9

During 2010 NACoaI finalized an agreement with Mississippi Power Company to provide lignite coal from its Liberty Mine to

the power plant currently being built in Mississippi Upon the execution of this agreement the Company determined that its

intangible asset at the Mississippi Lignite Mining Company was impaired Accordingly the Company recorded an impairment

charge of $0.7 million for other intangible assets at NACoal during 2010

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $2.8 million $2.1 million and $3.5 million in 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively Amortization expense for 2010 includes an impairment charge of $0.7 million for other intangible assets at

NACoaI

Expected annual amortization expense of other intangible assets for the next five years is as follows $3.8 million in 2013 $3.6

million in 2014 and $3.8 million in 2015 2016 and 2017 respectively The weighted average amortization period for intangible

assets is approximately 28 years

NOTE 7Asset Retirement Obligations

NACoals asset retirement obligations are principally for costs to dismantle certain mining equipment at the end of the life of

the mine as well as for costs to close its surface mines and reclaim the land it has disturbed as result of its normal mining

activities The Company determined the amounts of these obligations based on estimates adjusted for inflation projected to the

estimated closure dates and then discounted using credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate The accretion of the liability is being

recognized over the estimated life of each individual asset retirement obligation and is recorded in the line Cost of sales in the

accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations The associated asset is recorded in Property Plant and Equipment net

in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets

Bellaire Corporation Bellaire is non-operating subsidiary of the Company with legacy liabilities relating to closed mining

operations primarily former Eastern U.S underground coal mining operations These legacy liabilities include obligations for

water treatment and other environmental remediation that arose as part of the normal course of closing these underground

mining operations The Company determined the amounts of these obligations based on estimates adjusted for inflation and

then discounted using credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate The accretion of the liability is recognized over the estimated life

of the asset retirement obligation and is recorded in the line Other in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of

Operations Since Bellaires properties are no longer active operations no associated asset has been capitalized

In connection with Bellaires normal permit renewal with the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection DEP it

was notified during 2004 that in order to obtain renewal of the permit it would be required to establish mine water treatment

trust the Trust On October 2010 Bellaire executed Post-Mining Treatment Trust Consent Order and Agreement

Consent with the DEP which established the Trust to provide financial assurance mechanism in order to assure the long-

term treatment of post-mining discharges Bellaire agreed to initially fund the Trust with approximately $5.0 million Bellaire
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funded $2.5 million during 2010 upon execution of the Consent and the remaining $2.5 million in 2011 The fair value of the

trust assets are $5.4 million at December 31 2012 and are legally restricted for purposes of settling the Bellaire asset retirement

obligation The fair valje was obtained using quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or Level in the fair

value hierarchy

reconciliation of the Deginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of the asset retirement obligations are as follows

NACCO
NACoaI Bellaire Consolidated

5J 13.9 19.0

0.8 0.8

0.9 1.3

0.4 0.4

5.5 13.6 19.1

9.0 9.0

1.5 1.5

0.6 1.6 2.2

27

15.1 16.4 31.5

The revision of estimatd cash flows for the year ended December 31 2012 is due to increases in future estimated operating

costs including changes in state regulations related to water treatment

Ba1ace at January 2011

Liabilities settled during the period

Accretion expense

Revision of estimated cash flows

Balance at December 31 2011

Liabilities acquired with the Reed Minerals acquisition

Liabilities settled during the period

Accretion expense

Revision of estimated cash flows

Balance at December 31 2012

0.4
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NOTE 8Current and Long-Term Financing

Financing arrangements are obtained and maintained at the subsidiary level NACCO has not guaranteed any borrowings of its

subsidiaries

The following table summarizes the Companys available and outstanding borrowings

December

2012 2011

Total outstanding borrowings

Revolving credit agreements

HBB 39.7

NACoaI 110.0 67.0

$L497 67.0

Capital lease obligations and other term loans

HBB 542

NACoa1 15.2 7.7

619

Private Placement Notes- NACoal 12.8 19.3

Total debt oistanding

Current portion of borrowings outstanding

HBB 12.7

NACoaI 29.6 73.7

433 73.7

Long-term portion of borrowings outstanding

HBB 27.0 54.2

NACoaI 108.4 20.3

135.4 74.5

Total available borrowings net of limitations under revolving credit agreements

HBB 112.0 88.2

KC 27.0 27.0

NACoa1 148.8 148.8

287.8 264.0

Unused revolving credit agreements

HBB 72.3 88.2

KC 27.0 27.0

NACoaI 38.8 81.8

138.1 197.0

Weighted average stated interest rate on total borrowings

HBB 1.9% 2.8%

NACoaI 2.4% 2.8%

Weighted average effective interest rate on toti borrowings including interest rate swap

agreements

HBB 4.3% 5.7%

NACoal 2.4% 2.8%

Annual maturities of total debt excluding capital leases are as follows

2013 29.0

2014 6.4

2015

2016 87.4

2017 39.7

Thereafter 3.5

166.0
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Interest paid on total debt was $5.5 million $8.5 million and $10.8 million during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Interest

capitalized was $0.2 million in 2010 No interest was capitalized in 2012 or 2011

HBB HBB has $115.0 million senior secured floating-rate revolving credit facility the HBB Facility that expires in July

2017 The obligations under the HBB Facility are secured by substantially all of HBBs assets The approximate book value of

HBBs assets held as collateral under the HBB Facility was $215.5 million as of December 31 2012

The maximum availability under the HBB Facility is governed by borrowing base derived from advance rates against eligible

accounts receivable irventory and trademarks of the borrowers as defined in the HBB Facility Adjustments to reserves

booked against these assets including inventory reserves will change the eligible borrowing base and thereby impact the

liquidity provided by the HBB Facility portion of the availability is denominated in Canadian dollars to provide funding to

HBBs Canadian subsidiary Borrowings bear interest at floating rate which can be base rate or LIBOR as defined in the

HBB Facility plus an applicable margin The applicable margins effective December 31 2012 for base rate loans and LIBOR

loans denominated in U.S dollars were 0.00% and 1.50% respectively The applicable margins effective December 31 2012

for base rate loans and bankers acceptance loans denominated in Canadian dollars were 0.00% and 1.50% respectively The

HBB Facility also requires fee of 0.375% per annum on the unused commitment The margins and unused commitment fee

under the HBB Facility are subject to quarterly adjustment based on average excess availability and average usage respectively

At December 31 2012 the borrowing base under the HBB Facility was $112.0 million Borrowings outstanding under the HBB

Facility were $39.7 million at December 31 2012 Therefore at December 31 2012 the excess availability under the HBB

Facility was $72.3 million The floating rate of interest applicable to theHBB Facility at December 31 2012 was 1.98%

including the floating rate margin

The HBB Facility inclides restrictive covenants which among other things limit the payment of dividends to NACCO subject

to achieving availabiliiy thresholds Dividends are limited to $15.0 million from the closing date of the HBB Facility through

December 31 2012 Sc long as HBB has excess availability as defined in the HBB Facility of at least $30.0 million ii the

greater of $20.0 million or excess cash flow from the most recently ended fiscal year in each of the two twelve-month periods

following the closing date of the HBB Facility so long as HBB has excess availability under the HBB Facility of not less than

$25.0 million and maintains minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio of 1.0 to 1.0 as defined in the HBB Facility and iiiin

such amounts as detennined by HBB subsequent to the second anniversary of the closing date of the HBB Facility so long as

HBB has excess availability under the HBB Facility of not less than $25.0 million The HBB Facility also requires HBB to

achieve minimum fixed charge coverage
ratio in certain circumstances as defined in the HBB Facility At December 31

2012 HBB was in compliance with the financial covenants in the HBB Facility

HBB incurred fees anc expenses
of $1.2 million in the

year
ended December 31 2012 related to the HBB Facility These fees

were deferred and are eing amortized as interest
expense

in the Consolidated Statements of Operations over the term of the

HBB Facility

KC KC has $30.0 million secured revolving line of credit that expires in August 2017 the KC Facility The obligations

under the KC Facility are secured by substantially all assets of KC The approximate book value of KCs assets held as

collateral under the KC Facility was $81.0 million as of December 31 2012

The maximum availability under the KC Facility is derived from borrowing base formula using KCs eligible inventory and

eligible credit card accounts receivable as defined in the KC Facility Borrowings bear interest at floating rate plus margin

based on the excess availability under the agreement as defined in the KC Facility which can be either base rate plus

margin of 1.00% or LIBOR plus margin of 2.00% as of December 31 2012 The KC Facility also requires fee of 0.375%

per annum on the unused commitment

At December 31 2012 the borrowing base under the KC Facility was $27.0 million There were no borrowings outstanding

under the KC Facility at December 31 2012 Therefore at December 31 2012 the excess availability under the KC Facility

was $27.0 million

The KC Facility allow for the payment of dividends to NACCO subject to certain restrictions based on availability and

meeting fixed charge coverage ratio as described in the KC Facility Dividends are limited to $6.0 million in any twelve

month period so long KC has excess availability as defined in the KC Facility of at least $7.5 million after giving effect to

such payment and maiTltaining minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0 as defined in the KC Facility ii $2.0
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million in any twelve-month period so long as KC has excess availability as defined in the KC Facility of at least $7.5 million

after giving effect to such payment and iiiin such amounts as determined by KC so long as KC has excess availability under

the KC Facility of $15.0 million after giving effect to such payment

KC incurred fees and expenses of approximately $0.2 million and $0.4 million in 2012 and 2010 respectively related to the

KC Facility These fees were deferred and are being amortized as interest expense
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

over the term of the KC Facility No similar fees were incurred in 2011

NACoaI NACoal has an unsecured revolving line of credit of up to $150.0 million the NACoa1 Facility that expires in

December 2016 Borrowings outstanding under the NACoal Facility were $110.0 million at December 31 2012 Therefore at

December 31 2012 the excess availability under the NACoa1 Facility was $38.8 million which reflects reduction for

outstanding letters of credit of$1.2 million

The NACoa1 Facility has performance-based pricing which sets interest rates based upon achieving various levels of debt to

EBITDA ratios of NACoa1 as defined in the NACoal Facility Borrowings bear interest at floating rate plus margin based on

the level of debt to EBITDA ratio achieved as defined in the NACoal Facility The applicable margins effective December 31

2012 for base rate and LIBOR loans were 0.75% and 1.75% respectively The NACoal Facility also has commitment fee

which is also based upon achieving various levels of debt to EBITDA ratios The commitment fee was 0.35% on the unused

commitment at December 31 2012 The floating rate of interest applicable to the NACoal Facility at December 31 2012 was

1.95% including the floating rate margin

The NACoaI Facility also contains restrictive covenants that require among other things NACoal to maintain certain debt to

EBITDA and interest coverage ratios and provides the ability to make loans dividends and advances to NACCO with some

restrictions based on maintaining maximum debt to EBITDA ratio of 3.0 to 1.0 in conjunction with maintaining unused

availability thresholds of borrowing capacity under minimum interest coverage ratio as defined in the NACoa1 Facility of 4.0

to 1.0 The current level of availability required to pay dividends is $15.0 million At December 31 2012 NACoa1 was in

compliance with the financial covenants in the NACoa1 Facility

During 2004 and 2005 NACoaI issued unsecured notes totaling $45.0 million in private placement the NACoa1 Notes

which require annual principal payments of approximately $6.4 million that began in October 2008 and will mature on October

2014 These unsecured notes bear interest at weighted-average fixed rate of 6.08% payable semi-annually on April and

October The NACoal Notes are redeemable at any time at the option of NACoal in whole or in part at an amount equal to

par plus accrued and unpaid interest plus make-whole premium if applicable NACoal had $12.9 million of the private

placement notes outstanding at December 31 2012 The NACoal Notes contain certain covenants and restrictions that require

among other things NACoa1 to maintain certain net worth leverage and interest coverage ratios and limit dividends to

NACCO based upon maintaining maximum debt to EBITDAratio of 3.5 to 1.0 At December 31 2012 NACoal was in

compliance with the financial covenanis in the NACoal Notes

NACoaI has demand note payable to Coteau which bears interest based on the applicable quarterly federal short-term interest

rate as announced from time to time by the Internal Revenue Service At December 31 2012 the balance of the note was $3.5

million and the interest rate was 0.23%

NACoaI incurred fees and expenses of approximately $0.8 million in the year
ended December 31 2011 related to the NACoal

Facility These fees were deferred and are being amortized as interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations

over the term of the NACoal Facility No similar fees were incurred in 2012 or 2010

NOTE 9Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments

The cartying amounts of cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value due to the

short-term maturities of these instruments The fair values of revolving credit agreements and long-term debt excluding capital

leases were determined using current rates offered for similar obligations taking into account subsidiary credit risk which is

Level as defined in the fair value hierarchy At December 31 2012 the fair value of revolving credit agreements and long-

term debt excluding capital leases was $166.8 million compared with the book value of $166.0 million At December 31

2011 the fair value of revolving credit agreements and long-term debt excluding capital leases was $146.1 million compared

with the book value of $145.3 million
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Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist principally of accounts

receivable and derivatives HBB maintains significant accounts receivable balances with several large retail customers At

December 31 2012 and 2011 receivables from HBBs five largest customers represented 48.8% and 49.0% respectively of the

Companys net accounts receivable In addition under its mining contracts NACoal recognizes revenue and related receivable

as coal or limerock is delivered or predevelopment services are provided These mining contracts provide for monthly

settlements HBB and NACoa1s significant credit concentration is uncollateralized however historically minimal credit losses

have been incurred To further reduce credit risk associated with accounts receivable the Company performs periodic credit

evaluations of its customers but does not generally require advance payments or collateral The Company enters into derivative

contracts with high-quality financial institutions and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one institution

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company measures its derivatives at fair value on recurring basis using significant observable inputs which is Level as

defined in the fair value hierarchy The Company uses present value technique that incorporates the LIBOR swap curve

foreign currency spot rates and foreign currency forward rates to value its derivatives including its interest rate swap

agreements and foreign currency exchange contracts and also incorporates the effect of its subsidiary and counterparty credit

risk into the valuation

Foreign Currency Derivatives HBB held forward foreign currency exchange contracts with total notional amounts of$lO.5

million respectively at December 31 2012 denominated in Canadian dollars HBB held forward foreign currency exchange

contracts with total notonal amounts of$15.6 million respectively at December 31 2011 primarily denominated in Canadian

dollars The fair value of these contracts approximated net liability of less than $0.1 million and net asset $0.4 million at

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Forward foreign currency exchange contracts that qualify for hedge accounting are used to hedge transactions expected to occur

within the next twelve months The mark-to-market effect of forward foreign currency exchange contracts that are considered

effective as hedges has been included in OCT Based on market valuations at December 31 2012 less than $0.1 million of the

amount included in OCI is expected to be reclassified as expense
into the Consolidated Statement of Operations over the next

twelve months as the transactions occur

Interest Rate Derivatives HBB has interest rate swaps that hedge interest payments on its three-month LIBOR borrowings

The following table summarizes the notional amounts related rates and remaining terms of interest rate swap agreements active

at December 31

Notional Amount Average Fixed Rate Remaining Term at

2012 2011 2012 2011 December3l2012

11DB 25.0 40.0 4.6%

The fair value of all interest rate swap agreements was net liability of $0.5 million and $1.5 million at December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively The mark-to-market effect of interest rate swap agreements that are considered effective as hedges has been

included in OCT Based on market valuations at December 31 2012 $0.3 million of the amount included in OCT is expected to

be reclassified as expense into the Consolidated Statement of Operations over the next twelve months as cash flow payments

are made in accordance with the interest rate swap agreements The interest rate swap agreements held by HBB on

December 31 2012 are expected to continue to be effective as hedges
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The following table summarizes the fair value of derivative instruments at December 31 as recorded in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Balance sheet location 2012 2011 Balance sheet location 2012 2011

Derivativesdesignatedashedging

instruments

Interest rate swap agreements

Current Othercurrentliabilities Othercuitct4t4tiet 1.1

Long-term Other long-term liabilities Other long-term liabilities 0.4

Foreign currency exchange contracts

Current Prepaid expenses and other 0.4 Prepaid expenses and other

Total derivatives designated as hedging

instruments $j

The following table summarizes the pre-tax impact of derivative instruments for each
year

ended December 31 as recorded in

the Consolidated Statements of Operations

Location of Gain or

Loss Recognized

in Income on

Derivative

Location of Gain or Ineffective Amount of Gain or Loss
Amoint of Gain or Loss Loss Reclassified Amount of Gain or Loss Portion and Amount Recognized

Recognized in Oct on from OCI into Reclassified from OCI Excluded from in Income on Derivative

Derivatives in ash Flow Derivative Effective Income Effective into Income Effective Effectiveness Portion and Amount Excluded from

Hedging Relationships Portion Portion Portion Testing Effectiveness Testing

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Interest rate swap

agreements 0.1 0.4 2.1 nterestexpense 1.2 2.0 $3.7 jt4

Foreign currency

exchange contracts 0.3 01 Cost pf sales 0.1 09 OJ WA ______

Total 50.4 1.3 52.0 1.1 1.1 3.8

Amount of Gain or Loss
Recognized in Income on Derivative

Location of Gain or Loss
Recognized in Income on

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Derivative 2012 2011 2010

Interest rate swap agreements Other

Foreign currency exchange contracts Cost of sales or Other 0.2

Total 2$i.O1

NOTE 10Leasing Arrangements

The Company leases certain office manufacturing and warehouse facilities retail stores and machinery and equipment under

noncancellable capital and operating leases that expire at various dates through 2026 Many leases include renewal andlor fair

value purchase options

Future minimum capital arid operating lease payments at December 31 2012 are
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Capital Operating

Leases Leases

2013 1.2 38.6

2014 1.5 29.4

2015 1.5 24.0

2016 1.4 19.2

2017 1.4 12.6

Subsequent to 2017 6.5 34.1

Total minimum lease payments 13.5 157.9

Amounts representing interest 1.8

Present value of net minimum lease payments 11

Current maturities 0.5

Long-tenn capital lease obligation 11.2

Rental expense for all operating leases was $42.9 million $40.9 million and $41.3 million for 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively The Company also recognized $0.6 million $0.8 million and $0.9 million for 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

in rental income on subleases of equipment under operating leases in which it was the lessee

Assets recorded under capital leases are included in property plant and equipment and consist of the following

December 31

2012 2011

Plant and equipment 12.3 3.0

Less accumulated amortization 0.7 0.1

11.6$ 2.9

Amortization of plant and equipment under capital leases is included in depreciation expense in each of the years ended

December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Capital lease obligations of $9.3 million and $3.0 million were incurred in connection with lease agreements to acquire plant

and equipment during 2012 and 2011 respectively No capital lease obligations were incurred in 2010

NOTE 11Contingencies

Various legal and regulatory proceedings and claims have been or may be asserted against NACCO and certain subsidiaries

relating to the conduct of their businesses including product liability environmental and other claims These proceedings and

claims are incidental to the ordinary course of business of the Company Management believes that it has meritorious defenses

and will vigorously defend the Company in these actions Any costs that management estimates will be paid as result of these

claims are accrued when the liability is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated Although the ultimate

disposition of these proceedings is not presently determinable management believes after consultation with its legal counsel

that the likelihood is remote that material costs will be incurred in excess of accruals already recognized

HBB is investigating or remediating historical environmental contamination at some current and former sites operated by HBB

or by businesses it acquired Based on the current stage of the investigation or remediation at each known site HBB estimates

the total investigation and remediation costs and the period of assessment and remediation activity required for each site The

estimate of future investigation and remediation costs is primarily based on variables associated with site clean-up including

but not limited to physca1 characteristics of the site the nature and extent of the contamination and applicable regulatory

programs and remediation standards No assessment can fully characterize all subsurface conditions at site There is no

assurance that additional assessment and remediation efforts will not result in adjustments to estimated remediation costs or the

time frame for remedial ion at these sites

Past results of operations have not been materially affected by change in estimate of HBBs environmental exposure at known

sites HBBs estimates of investigation and remediation costs may change if it discovers contamination at additional sites or

additional contamination at known sites if the effectiveness of its current remediation efforts change if applicable federal or
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state regulations change or if HBBs estimate of the time required to remediate the sites changes HBBs revised estimates may

differ materially from original estimates

At December 31 2012 HBB had accrued approximately $4.7 million for environmental investigation and remediation

activities at these sites In addition HI3B estimates that it is reasonably possible that it may incur additional expenses in the

range of zero to $3.2 million related to the environmental investigation and remediation at these sites

NOTE 12Product Warranties

HBB provides standard warranty to consumers for all of its products The specific terms and conditions of those warranties

vary depending upon the product brand In general if product is returned under warranty refund is provided to the

consumer by HBBs customer the retailer Generally the retailer returns those products to HBB for credit The Company

estimates the costs which may be incurred under its standard warranty programs and records liability for such costs at the time

product revenue is recognized

The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary

Factors that affect the Companys warranty liability include the number of units sold historical and anticipated rates of warranty

claims and the cost per claim

Changes in the Companys current and long-term warranty obligations including deferred revenue on extended warranty

contracts are as follows

2012 2011

4.2 4.1

Warranties issued 6.4 5.7

64 5.6

Balance at December 31 4.2 4.2

NOTE 13Common Stock and Earnings per Share

NACCO Industries Inc Class common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol NC
Because of transfer restrictions on Class common stock no trading market has developed or is expected to develop for the

Companys Class common stock The Class common stock is convertible into Class common stock on one-for-one

basis at any time at the request of the holder The Companys Class common stock and Class common stock have the same

cash dividend rights per share The Class common stock has one vote per share and the Class common stock has ten votes

per share The total number of authorized shares of Class common stock and Class common stock at December 31 2012

was 25000000 shares and 6756176 shares respectively Treasury shares of Class common stock totaling 1430843 and

1409915 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively have been deducted from shares outstanding

Stock Options The 1975 and 1981 stock option plans as amended provide for the granting to officers and other key

employees of options to purchase Class common stock and Class common stock of the Company at price not less than the

market value of such stock at the date of grant Options become exercisable over four-year period and expire ten years from

the date of the grant During the three-year period ending December 31 2012 there were 80701 shares of Class common

stock and 80100 shares of Class common stock available for grant However no options were granted during the three-year

period ended December 31 2012 and no options remain outstanding at the end of any of the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 At present the Company does not intend to issue additional stock options

Stock Compensation See Note for discussion of the Companys restricted stock awards

Earnings per Share For purposes of calculating earnings per share no adjustments have been made to the reported amounts

of net income attributable to stockholders In addition basic and diluted earnings per share for Class common stock are the

same as Class common tock
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The weighted average number of shares of Class common stock and Class common stock outstanding used to calculate

basic and diluted earnings per
share were as follows

2012 2011 2010

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 8.384 8383

Dilutive effect of restricted stock awards 0.030 0.025 0.0 16

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 8.414 8.408 8344

Continuing operations 504 949 566

Discontinued operaticns 7.93 9.85 3.89

Basic earmngs per share 12 97 1934 55

Contmumg operations 02 946 65

Discontinued operations 7.90 9.82 3.88

Diluted earnings per share 12.92 19.28 953

NOTE 14Income Taxes

The components of income before income taxes and provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 are as

follows

2012 2011 2010

Income before income taxes

Domestic 53.1 107.0 59.6

Foreign 4.9 5.3 3.1

58.0 112.3 62.7

Income tax provision

Current tax provision benefit

Federal 1.8 28.7

State 1.5 2.5 1.4

Foreign 1.5 1.7 O7

Total current 1.2 32.9 6.0

Deferred tax provision benefit

Federal 14.1 0.2 9.3

State 0.6 0.3 0.3

Foreign 0.1 0.2
____________

Total deferred 146 96

15.8 32.8 15.6

The Company made income tax payments of $20.3 million $24.9 million and $5.6 million during 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively During the same periods income tax refunds totaled $0.8 million $0.5 million and $3.4 million respectively
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reconciliation of the federal statutory and effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31 is as follows

2012 2011 2010

Income before income taxes 5O 112.3 62.7

Statutory taxes at 35.0% 20.3 39.3 21.9

State income taxes 1.6 1.9 1.2

Non-deductible expenses 1.1 1.3 .2

Unremitted foreign earnings 0.1 0.1

Foreign statutory rate differences 0.3 1.2 0.4

Valuation allowance 0.1

Percentage depletion 5.0 6.9 7.2

RD and other federal credits 0.1 0.2 0.1

Tax controversy resolution 0.4 0.1 1.1

Domestic production deduction 0.7

Other 0.8 1.4
_____________

Income tax provision 15.8 32.8 15.6

Effective income tax rate 27.2% 29.2% 24.9%

As of December 31 2012 the cumulative unremitted earnings of the Companys foreign subsidiaries are approximately $9.0

million The Company has provided cumulative deferred tax liability in the amount of $0.1 million with respect to the

cumulative unrem itted earnings of the Company as of December 31 2012 which are expected to be repatriated The Company

has continued to conclude predominately all remaining foreign earnings in excess of this amount will be indefinitely reinvested

in its foreign operations and therefore the recording of deferred tax liabilities for such unremitted earnings is not required It is

impracticable to determine the amount of unrecognized deferred taxes with respect to these permanently reinvested earnings

however foreign tax credits would be available to reduce in part U.S income taxes in the event of distribution

detailed summary of the total deferred tax assets and liabilities in the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheets resulting from

differences in the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities follows

December 31

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets

Tax carryforwards 7.0 12.4

Inventories 3.1 4.0

Accrued expenses and reserves 24.0 23.3

Accrued pension benefits 7.4 9.9

Other employee benefits 8.0 5.8

Other 7.2 7.0

Total deferred tax assets 56.7 62.4

Less Valuation allowance 3.1 3.0

53.6 59.4

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and depletion 45.0 35.8

Partnership investment development costs 19.9 18.7

Unremitted foreign earnings 0.1 0.1

Total deferred tax liabilities 65.0 54.6

Net deferred tax asset liability 11.4 4.8
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The following table summarizes the tax carryforwards and associated carryforward periods and related valuation allowances

where the Company has determined that realization is uncertain

December 31 2012

Net deferred tax Valuation Carryforwards

asset allowance expire during

Non-U net opeatm toss 04 04 2019 2022

State losses 4.7 2.7 2013 2032

Alternative minimum tax credit Indefinite

Total 7.0 3.1

December 31 2011

Net deferred tax Valuation Carryforwards

asset allowance expire during

Non-U net operating loss 04 2019 2022

State losses 4.9 2.6 2012-2031

Alternatjveiiinimumtaxcredjt 5.0 Indefinite

Foreign tax credit 2.1 20 19-2020

Total 12.4

The Company continually evaluates its deferred tax assets to determine if valuation allowance is required valuation

allowance is required where realization is determined to no longer meet the more likely than not standard The establishment

of valuation allowance does not have an impact on cash nor does such an allowance preclude the Company from using its

loss carryforwards or other deferred tax assets in future periods

Based upon the review of historical earnings and the relevant expiration of carryforwards including utilization limitations in

the various state taxing jurisdictions the Company believes the valuation allowances are appropriate and does not expect to

release valuation allowances within the next twelve months that would have significant effect on the Companys financial

position or results of operations

The tax returns of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries are under routine examination by various taxing authorities The

Company has not been informed of any material assessment for which an accrual has not been previously provided and the

Company would vigorously contest any material assessment Management believes any potential adjustment would not

materially affect the Companys financial condition or results of operations

The following is recoTlciliation of the Companys total gross unrecognized tax benefits defined as the aggregate tax effect of

differences between tax return positions and the benefits recognized in the financial statements for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 Approximately $1.7 million and $1.9 million of these gross amounts as of December 31 2012

and 2011 respectively relate to permanent items that if recognized would impact the effective income tax rate This amount

differs from the
gross unrecognized tax benefits presented in the table below due to the decrease in U.S federal income taxes

which would occur upon the recognition of the state tax benefits included herein

2012 2011

Balance at Januaiy 3.0 3.3

Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 0.2

Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities and the lapse of th plicab1e
statute of limitations 0.5 0.4

Balance at December31 2.7 3.0

The Company records interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as component of the income tax provision The

Company recognized net benefit of $0.2 million and net expense of $0.2 million in interest and penalties related to uncertain

tax positions during 202 and 2010 respectively There were deminimus interest and penalties related to uncertain tax

positions recorded during 2011 The total amount of interest and penalties accrued was $1.0 million and $1.2 million as of

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively
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The Company expects the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change within the next twelve months however the change

in unrecognized tax benefits which is reasonably possible within the next twelve months is not expected to have significant

effect on the Companys financial position or results of operations

In general the Company operates in taxing jurisdictions that provide statute of limitations period ranging from three to five

years
for the taxing authorities to review the applicable tax filings The examination of the U.S federal tax returns for the 2007

and 2008 tax years was completed in 2011 except for one issue that was settled favorably in the Internal Revenue Service

Appeals process in November 2012 The examination of the 2009 and 2010 U.S federal tax returns commenced in February

2012 and is expected to be settled in the first quarter of 2013 subject to Joint Committee review which is expected in late

2013 The Company does not have any additional material taxing jurisdictions in which the statute of limitations has been

extended beyond the applicable time frame allowed by law

NOTE 15Retirement Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Plans The Company maintains various defined benefit pension plans that provide benefits based on years of

service and
average compensation during certain periods The Companys policy is to make contributions to fund these plans

within the range allowed by applicable regulations Plan assets consist primarily of publicly traded stocks and government and

corporate bonds

Pension benefits are frozen for all employees other than certain NACoa1 unconsolidated mine employees All other eligible

employees of the Company including employees whose pension benefits are frozen receive retirement benefits under defined

contribution retirement plans

The assumptions used in accounting for the defined benefit plans were as follows for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

United States Plans

Weighted average discount rates 3.50% 3.90% 4.30% 4.55% 5.10% 5.30%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.75% 8.25% 8.50%

Non-U.S Plan

Weighted average discount rate 4.00% 4.25% 5.25%

Rate of increase in compensation levels 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%

Expected long-term rate of return on assets 6.00% 6.25% 6.50%

Each year the assumptions used to calculate the benefit obligation are used to calculate the net periodic pension expense for the

following year

Set forth below is detail of the net periodic pension expense
for the defined benefit plans for the

years ended December

2012 2011 2010

United States Plans

Interest cost 3.1 3.4 3.6

Expected return on plan assets 4.3 4.4 5.0

Amortization of actuarial loss 2.8 2.3 1.6

Amortization of prior service credit 0.1 0.1

Net periodic pension expense 1.5 1.2 0.2

Non-U.S Plan

Interest cost 0.2 0.2 0.2

Expected return on plan assets 0.2 0.3 0.3

Amortization of actuarial loss 0.1

Net periodic pension benefit expense income 0.1 0.1 0.1
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Set forth below is detail of other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income

loss for the
years

ended December 31

United States Plans

Current year
actuarial loss

Amortization of acluarial loss

Current
year prior service credit

Amortization of prior service credit

Total recognized in other comprehensive income loss

Non-U.S Plan

Current year actuarial loss

Amortization of actuarial loss

Total recognized in other comprehensive income loss

2012 2011 2010

The following table sets forth the changes in the benefit obligation and the plan assets during the year and the funded status of

the defined benefit plans at December 31

7.1 0.4

5.2 0.1 4.2

0.1 0.1

60.0 5.0 51.6 4.6

13.0 0.2 18.2 0.3

0.5 0.7

12.5 0.2 17.5 0.3

13.0 0.2 18.2 0.3

32.2 2.3 31.8 2.5

0.2 0.1

13.3 0.9 12.2 1.0

19.1 1.4 19.7 1.5

3.1 7.0 1.6

2.8 2.3 1.6

0.2

0.1 0.1

0.4 4.8 0.2

1.2 0.3

0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 1.1 0.2

2012 2011

U.S Non-U.S Non-U.S

Plans Plan U.S Plans Plan

69.8 4.9

3.1 0.2

5.3 0.2

5.2 0.1

65.8

3.4

4.8

4.2

4.4

0.2

0.7

0.3

0.1

73.0 5.2 69.8 4.9

73.0 5.2 69.8 4.9

Change in benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year

Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Projected benefit obligation at end of year

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Benefits paid

Foreign currency exchange rate changes

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status at end of year

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Components of accumulated other comprehensive income loss consls of

Actuarial loss

Prior service credit

Deferred taxes

51.6

6.5

4.6 53.2

0.4 2.2

5.2

0.2

0.3
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The prior service credit and actuarial loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income loss expected to be

recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2013 are $0.1 million less than $0.1 million net oftax and $2.5 million $1.6 million

net of tax respectively No transition obligation is expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2013

The projected benefit obligation included in the table above represents the actuarial present value of benefits attributable to

employee service rendered to date including the effects of estimated future pay increases The accumulated benefit obligation

also reflects the actuarial present value of benefits attributable to employee service rendered to date but does not include the

effects of estimated future pay increases

The Company does not expect to contribute to its U.S or non-U.S pension plans in 2013

The Company maintains one supplemental defined benefit plan that pays monthly benefits to participants directly out of

corporate funds All other pension benefit payments are made from assets of the pension plans

Future pension benefit payments expected to be paid from assets of the pension plans are

U.S Plans Non-U.S Plan

2013 4.4 0.1

2014 4.5 0.2

2015 4.5 0.2

2016 4.5 0.2

2017 4.6 0.2

2018-2022 23.6 1.1

46.1 2.0

The expected long-term rale of return on defined benefit plan assets reflects managements expectations of long-term rates of

return on funds invested to provide for benefits included in the projected benefit obligations In establishing the expected long-

term rate of return assumption for plan assets the Company considers the historical rates of return over period of time that is

consistent with the long-term nature of the underlying obligations of these plans as well as forward-looking rate of return The

historical and forward-looking rates of return for each of the asset classes used to determine the Companys estimated rate of

return assumption were based upon the rates of return earned or expected to be earned by investments in the equivalent

benchmark market indices for each of the asset classes

Expected returns for pension plans are based on calculated market-related value of assets Under this methodology asset

gains and losses resulting from actual returns that differ from the Companys expected returns are recognized in the market-

related value of assets ratably over three years

The pension plans maintain an investment policy that among other things establishes portfolio asset allocation methodology

with percentage allocation bands for individual asset classes The investment policy provides that investments are reallocated

between asset classes as balances exceed or fall below the appropriate allocation bands

The following is the actual allocation percentage and target allocation percentage for the U.S pension plan assets at December

31

2012 2011

Actual Actual Target Allocation

Allocation Allocation Range

U.S equity securities 52.0% 526% 41.O% 62.0%

Non-U.S equity securities 12.5% 11.8% 10.0% 16.0%

Fixed income securities 344% 30.0%- 40.0%

Money market 1.0% 1.0% 0.0%- 10.0%
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The following is the actual allocation percentage and target allocation percentage for the HBB Canadian pension plan assets at

December 31

2012 2011

Actual Actual Target Allocation

Allocation Allocation Range

Canadian equity securities 34.0% 33.0% 28.0% 38.0%

Non-Canadian equity securities 37.0% 34.0% 27.0% 37.0%

Fixed income securities 29.0% 33.0% 25.0%- 45.0%

Cash and cash equivalents -% 0.0% 5.0%

The defined benefit pension plans do not have any direct ownership of NACCO common stock

The fair value of each major category of U.S plan assets for the Companys pension plans are valued using quoted market

prices in active markets for identical assets or Level in the fair value hierarchy The fair value of each major category of Non-

U.S plan assets for the Companys pension plans are valued using observable inputs either directly or indirectly other than

quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or Level in the fair value hierarchy Following are the values as of

December 31

Level Level

2012 2011 2012 2011

U.S equity securities 31.4 27.2

Non-U.S equity securities 7.4 6.1 3.5 3.1

Fixed income securities 20.6 17.9 1.5 1.5

Money market 0.6 0.4

Total 60.0 5L6 $.44

Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance The Company also maintains health care plans which provide benefits to

eligible retired employees All health care plans of the Company have
cap on the Companys share of the costs These plans

have no assets Under the Companys current policy plan benefits are funded at the time they are due to participants Effective

June 30 2010 the parent company eliminated its subsidized retiree medical plan Effective September 2010 HBB eliminated

its retiree life insurance plan and the Company no longer maintains any retiree life insurance plans

The assumptions used in accounting for the postretirement benefit plans are set forth below for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Weighted average discount rates 305% 90% 70%

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 7.0% 7.5% 7.5%

Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline ultimate trend ra4e 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2022 2018 2018

Each year the assumpt ons used to calculate the benefit obligation are used to calculate the net periodic benefit cost for the

following year

Assumed health care cost trend rates can have significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans one-

percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects at December 31 2012

1-Percentage-Point 1-Percentage-Point

Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost

Effect on postretiremeit benefit obligation 0.2 0.2
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Set forth below is detail of the net periodic benefit income for the postretirement health care and life insurance plans for the

years ended December 31

Service cost

Interest cost

Amortization of actuarial loss

Amortization of prior service credit

Plan amendments

Net periodic benefit income expense

2012 2011 2010

0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3

0.9

0.1 0.1 0.8

Set forth below is detail of other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income

loss for the years ended December 31

Current year actuarial loss

Amortization of actuarial loss

Amortization of prior service credit

Total recognized in other comprehensive income

2012 2011 2010

0.3 0.6

0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.3

0.4 0.2 0.8

The following sets forth the changes in benefit obligations during the year and the funded status of the postretirement health

care and life insurance plans at December 31

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of
year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year

Funded status at end of year

Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Components of accumulated other comprehensive income loss consist of

Actuarial loss

Prior service credit

Deferred taxes

The prior service credit included in accumulated other comprehensive income loss expected to be recognized in net periodic

benefit cost in 2013 is $0.1 million less than $0.1 million net of tax No transition obligation or actuarial loss is expected to be

recognized in net periodic benefit cost in 2013

2012 2011

3.1 3.2

0.1 0.1

0.1 0.2

0.3

0.3 0.4

3.3 3.1

3.3 3.1

0.2 0.2

3.1 2.9

3.3 3.1

0.7 0.2

0.7 0.3

0.5

0.5

0.2

0.7
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Future postretirement benefit payments expected to be paid are

2013 0.2

2014 0.3

2015 0.3

2016 0.3

2017 0.3

2018-2022 1.4

2.8

Defined Contribution Plans NACCO and its subsidiaries have defined contribution 40 1k plans for substantially all U.S

employees and similarplans for employees outside of the United States For NACCO and those subsidiaries other than HBB
the applicable company matches employee contributions based on plan provisions In addition NACCO and certain other

subsidiaries have defined contribution retirement plans that generally provide for stated minimum employer contribution

These plans also permit additional contributions whereby the applicable companys contribution to participants is determined

annually based on formula that includes the effect of actual compared with targeted operating results and the age and

compensation of the participants Total costs including Company contributions for these plans were $6.7 million $5.3 million

and $6.6 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

NOTE 16Business Segments

NACCO is holding company with the following principal subsidiaries NACoa1 HBB and KC See Note for discussion of

the Companys industries and product lines NACCOs non-operating segment NACCO and Other includes the accounts of the

parent company and Bellaire

Financial information fDr each of NACCOs reportable segments is presented in the following table The accounting policies of

the reportable segments are described in Note The line Eliminations in the revenues section eliminates revenues from HBB
sales to KC The amounts of these revenues are based on current market prices of similar third-party transactions No other

sales transactions occur among reportable segments Other transactions among reportable segments are recognized based on

current market prices ofsimilar third-party transactions

The majority of NACoaIs revenues is generated from its consolidated mining operations and dragline mining services

MLMCs customer Choctaw Generation Limited Partnership accounted for approximately 56% 77% and 49% of NACoaIs

revenues for the years ended December 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively NACoa1s former customer San Miguel Electric

Cooperative accounted for approximately 29% of NACoals revenues for the
year

ended December 31 2010 Wal-Mart

accounted for approximately 31% 30% and 36% of HBBs revenues in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively HBBs five largest

customers accounted for approximately 53% 50% and 55% of HBBs revenues for the
years ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively The loss of or significant reduction in sales to any key customer could result in significant decreases in

NACoaIs and HBBs revenue and profitability and an inability to sustain or grow its business

The management fees charged to operating subsidiaries represent an allocation of corporate overhead of the parent company

Management fees are are allocated among all subsidiaries based upon the relative size and complexity of each subsidiary The

Company believes the allocation method is consistently applied and reasonable Management fees included in the selling

general and administrative
expenses

of the subsidiaries were $6.9 million $7.2 million and $8.2 million for 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively In addition the parent company received management fees from Hyster-Yale prior to the spin-off of $9.6

million $9.7 million and $7.8 million for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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2012 2011 2010

Revenues from external customers

NACoa1 132.4 81.8 156.8

HBB 521.6 493.0 515.7

KC 224.7 221.2 219.6

Eliminations 5.3 5.6 6.5

Total 873.4 790.4 885.6

Groes profit

NACoaI 28.0 15.3 37.9

HBB 102.3 97.2 111.1

KC 95.8 97.4 97.7

NACCO and Other 0.3 0.2 0.2

Eliminations 0.1 0.1 0.1

Total 225.9 209 2464

Selling general and administrative expenses

NACoa1 36.8 26.6 28.2

HBB 66.5 63.4 65.2

KC 100.4 94.9 91.8

NACCO and Other 6.7 7.1 10.6

Total 210.4 192.0 195.8
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2012 2011 2010

Operating profit loss

NACoa1 43.2 35.2 53.3

HBB 35.8 33.8 45.9

KC 4.6 2.5 5.9

NACCO and Other 7.0 7.3 10.8

Eliminations 0.1 0.1 0.1

Total 67.5 64.1 94.2

Interest expense

NACoa1 2.9 3.0 3.3

HBB 2.7 5.2 7.2

KC 0.5 0.5 0.3

Total 6.1 8.7 10.8

Interest income

NACoa1 0.2 0.3 0.3

Total 0.2 0.3 0.3

Other income expetise

NACoa1 1.3 1.4 0.1

HBB 0.3 0.8 0.3

KC 0.1 0.1

NACCO and Other 4.6 56.1 20.7

Total 3.6 56.6 21.0

Income tax provision benefit

NACoal 9.0 4.5 10.8

HBB 11.6 9.4 14.0

KC 2.0 0.8 2.0

NACCO and Othe 3.0 18.1 11.1

Eliminations 0.2 0.1

Total 15.8 32.8 15.6

Income loss from continuing operations

NACoa1 32.8 29.4 39.6

HBB 21.2 18.4 24.4

KC 3.1 1.1 3.5

NACCOandOther 8.6 30.7 20.4

Eliminations 0.1 0.1

Total 42.2 79.5 47.1
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2012 2011 2010

Total assets

NACoaI 368.7 278.5 269.2

HBB 215.5 201.5 251.7

KC 84.0 89.0 86.6

NACCO and Other 154.6 169.5 71.8

Discontinued Operations 1117.0 1041.2

Eliminations 46.5 46.8 49.6

Total 776.3 1808.7 1670.9

Depreciation depletion and amortization

NACoa1 10.9 7.9 9.9

HBB 3.1 4.9 3.6

KC 3.6 3.1 3.5

NACCO and Other 0.4 0.5 1.3

Total 18.0 16.4 18.3

Capital expenditures

NACoa1 37.1 14.1 9.8

HBB 3.2 3.7 2.2

KC 3.9 2.3 2.7

NACCO and Other 0.5 0.1 1.1

Total 44.7 20.2 15.8

Data By Geographic Region

No single country outside of the United States comprised 10% or more of the Companys revenues from unaffiliated customers

United

States Other Consolidated

2012

Revenues from unafflilated customers based on the customers location 746.8 126.6 873.4

Long-lived assets 197.1 6.1 203.2

2011

Revenues from unaffihiated customers based on the customers location 662.0 128.4 790.4

Long-lived assets 124.2 5.0 129.2

2010

Revenues from unaffihiated customers based on the customers location 770.8 114.8 885.6

Long-lived assets 125.1 4.2 129.3
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NOTE 17Quarterly Results of Operations Unaudited

summary of the unaudited results of operations for the
year ended December 31 is as follows

NACoa1

HBB

KC

NACCO and Other

Eliminations

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Continuing operatiotis

Discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share

24.3 19.2 38.0 50.9

14.9 110.7 124.8 181.2

45.3 42.3 48.2 88.9

0.8 0.8 0.9 2.8

173.7 171.4 210.1 318.2

145.6 43.2 52.3 84.8

12.0 10.6 11.5 11.1

Fourth Quarter

21.6

1.5

2012

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Revenues

NACoaI

HBB

KC

Eliminations

Gross profit

Earnings of unconsolidated mines

Operating profit loss

NACoaI

HBB

KC

NACCO and Other

Eliminations

11.9

2.1

4.6

1.5

9.2

5.1

5.1

1.5

8.6

8.7

1.9

0.6

13.5

19.9

7.0

3.4

0.1

8.0 7.7 14.8 37.0

9.2 7.1 8.2 .5 8.3

1.0 2.2 5.3 12.7

2.8 3.2 1.2 4.1

1.4 1.7 1.1 4.4

1.2 0.9 1.0 3.0

4.8 3.5 10.2 23.7

0.4 18.3 27.8

25.2 21.8 38.0 23.7

0.57

2.44 2.18 3.31

.01 2.60 4.53 2.83

0.57 0.42 1.21 2.81

2.43 2.18 3.31

3.00 2.60 4.52 2.81

0.42 1.22 2.83

The significant increase in operating results in the fourth quarter of 2012 compared with the prior quarters of 2012 is primarily

due to the seasonal nature of HBBs and KCs businesses NACoa1 results include the following related to the Reed Minerals

acquisition

Revenues

Operating profit

Third Quarter

7.7
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Revenues

NACoa1

HBB

KC

Eliminations

Gross profit

Earnings of unconsolidated mines

Operating profit loss

NACoa1

HBB

KC

NACCO and Other

Eliminations

17.9 19.4 21.0 23.5

100.6 104.3 126.7 161.4

40.9 40.0 48.9 91.4

0.5 0.7 2.0 2.4

158.9 163.0 194.6 273.9

40.8 40.0 48.5 80.3

12.1 9.5 11.1 12.8

9.5 5.3 7.0 13.4

3.3 3.6 7.9 19.0

5.4 4.3 0.6 12.8

2.5 1.1 0.9 2.8

0.1 0.1 0.1

4.9 3.6 13.3 42.3

7.1 4.6 5.8 119

1.0 1.3 4.1 12.0

3.3 2.7 0.5 7.6

34.7 1.0 07 2.3

0.5 0.8 0.5 0.7

40.0 1.4 8.2 29.9

22.8 17.8 17.5 24.5

62.8 19.2 25.7 54.4

4.76 0.17 0.97 3.56

2.72 2.11 2.08 2.91

7.48 2.28 3.05 6.47

The significant increase in operating results in the fourth quarter of 2011 compared with the prior quarters of 2011 is primarily

due to the seasonal nature of HBBs and KCs businesses

Diluted earnings per share

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share

2011

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

NACoaI

HBB

KC

NACCO and Other

Eliminations

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share

4.78 0.17 0.98 3.56

2.73 2.12 2.08 2.92

7.51 2.29 3.06 6.48
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NOTE 18Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheets

The condensed balancc sheets of NACCO the parent company at December31 are as follows

2012 2011

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
120.7 130.7

Other current assets 4.2 6.3

Investment in subsidiaries

Hyster-Yale
296.3

HBB 43.1 35.0

KC 43.7 46.7

NACoa1 102.3 96.1

Other 14.3 16.6

203.4 490.7

Property plant and equipment net 1.6 1.9

Other non-current assets 4.2 6.8

Total Assets 334.1 636.4

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities 6.6 15.7

Current intercompany accounts payable net 12.9 9.3

Note payable to Bellaire 20.4 22.4

Other non-current liabilities 12.8 12.8

Stockholders equity 2814 576.2

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity
334.1 636.4

The credit agreements at NACoa1 HBB and KC allow the transfer of assets to NACCO under certain circumstances The

amount of NACCOs investment in NACoal HBB KC and NACCO and Other that was restricted at December 31 2012

totaled approximately 149.0 million The amount of unrestricted cash available to NACCO included in Investment in

subsidiaries was $4.9 million at December 31 2012 Dividends advances and management fees from its subsidiaries are the

primary sources of cash for NACCO

NOTE 19Related Party Transactions

Ten of NACoa1s wholly owned subsidiaries each meet the definition of variable interest entity See Note for discussion of

these entities The taxes resulting from the earnings of the unconsolidated entities are solely the responsibility of the Company

The pre-tax income from the unconsolidated mines is reported on the line Earnings of unconsolidated mines in the

Consolidated Statements of Operations with related taxes included in the provision for income taxes The Company has

included the pre-tax earnings of the unconsolidated mines above operating profit as they are an integral component of the

Companys business ard operating results The pre-tax income from NoDak is reported on the line Income from other

unconsolidated affiliates in the Other income expense section of the Consolidated Statement of Operations with the related

income taxes included in the provision for income taxes The net income from NACC India is reported on the line

Income from other unconsolidated affiliates in the Other income expense section of the Consolidated Statements of

Operations The investnent in the unconsolidated entities and related tax asset was $20.2 million and $22.0 million at

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively and is included on the line Other Non-current Assets in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets The Companys maximum risk of loss relating to these entities is limited to its invested capital which was $3.2 million

$6.3 million and $5.0 million at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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Summarized financial information for the unconsolidated mines is as follows

2012 2011 2010

Statement of Operations

Revenues 543.9 502.6 461.7

Gross profit 74.5 71.7 71.7

Income before income taxes 46.8 47.0 43.4

Income from continuing operations 35.6 36.5 33.1

Net income 35.6 36.5 33.1

Balance Sheet

Current assets 148.6 144.1

Non-current assets 836.3 685.2

Current liabilities 144.3 162.1

Non-current liabilities 837.4 660.9

NACoal received dividends of $38.8 million and $35.2 million from the unconsolidated mines in 2012 and 2011 respectively

Legal services rendered by Jones Day approximated $3.0 million $4.7 million and $13.7 million for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The significant increase in services rendered during 2010 related to the

Applica litigation discussed further in Note director of the Company is also partner of this law firm

NOTE 20Acquisition

On August 31 2012 NACoa1 acquired through wholly owned subsidiary four related companies Reed Minerals Inc Reed

Hauling Inc CH Mining Company Inc and Reed Management LLC from members of and entities controlled by the Reed

family These companies known as Reed Minerals are based in Jasper Alabama and are involved in the mining of steam and

metallurgical coal The results of Reed Minerals have been included in the Companys consolidated financial statements since

the date of acquisition

Reed Minerals mines and markets steam coal and metallurgical coal for sale primarily into the power generation and steel

markets Steam coal is primarily sold to cooperative association which provides fuel under long-term contract with

significant U.S utility Metallurgical coal is sold to several customers Reed Minerals operates three mines on leased reserves in

central Alabama For the year ended December 31 2011 Reed Minerals sold 0.9 million tons of coal and had revenue of

approximately $86.0 million and net income of approximately $4.0 million The Reed Minerals acquisition provides the

Company foundation to build metallurgical coal business

The acquisition was funded using borrowings under NACoa1s unsecured revolving line of credit The preliminary purchase

price included $69.3 milliLon cash payment and preliminary estimated contingent consideration of up to an additional $4.0

million based on the average coal selling price received on the first 15 million tons of coal sold by NACoa1 from the Reed

Minerals operations The preliminary estimated fair value of the contingent consideration $4.0 million was determined based

on the probability of future anticipated payouts and was recorded at the net present value of those future anticipated cash flows

using discount rate that appropriately captures market participants view of the risk associated with the liability This fair

value measurement is based on significant inputs not observable in the market and thus represents Level measurement

within the fair value hierarchy The liability for contingent consideration is included in other long-term liabilities in the

Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 2012 The earn-out payments if payable will be paid quarterly No earn-out

payments were made during 2012 Acquisition-related expenses of $2.6 million are included in selling general and

administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
year

ended December 31 2012

The allocation of the purchase price is preliminary as the Company has not yet finalized its analysis of the fair value of the

contingent consideration arid income taxes The goodwill arising from the acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax

purposes
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The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Reed

Minerals as of the acquisition date

Property plant and equipment including mineral rights 60.2

Other assets 15.0

Other intangible assets 8.2

Total assets acquired 83.4

Other current liabilities 8.3

Other long-term liabilities 8.2

Total liabilities assumed 16.5

66.9Net assets acquired

Purchase price

Goodwill

73.3

6.4

The results of Reed Minerals included in the Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations from the acquisition date

through December 31 2012 are as follows

29.3

1.5

1.0

Revenues

Operating profit

Net income
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Investment in subsidiaties

Hyster-Yale

HBB

KC

NACoaI

Oth

Property plant and equipment net

Other non-current assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current intercompany accounts payable net

Note payable to Bellaire

Other non-current liabilities

Stockholders equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

December 31

2012 2011

In millions

120.7 130.7

4.2 6.3

296.3

43.1 35.0

43.7 46.7

102.3 96.1

14.3 16.6

203.4 490.7

1.6 1.9

4.2 6.8

334.1 636.4

6.6 15.7

12.9 9.3

20.4 22.4

12.8 12.8

281.4 576.2

334.1 636.4

See Notes to Parent Company Condensed Financial Statements
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1.5 1.7

2.9 2.9 18.8

4.4 4.6 20.7

6.7 7.0 10.5

11.1 11.6 31.2

1.8 3.0 11.0

9.3 8.6 20.2

51.5 88.1 67.3

42.2 79.5 47.1

66.5 82.6 32.4

108.7 162.1 79.5

0.4 14.9 6.7

2.4 3.7

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

In millions

1.9

Income expense

Intercompany interest expense

Other net

Administrative and general expenses

Loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit

Net loss before equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Income from continuir operations

Discontinued operations net of tax

Net income

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Current period cash flow hedging activity net of $2.4 tax expense in 2012
$0.2 tax expense in 2011 and $3.3 tax benefit in 2010

Reclassification of hedging activities into earnings net of $2.7 tax expen
in

2012 $2.6 tax expense in 2011 and $4.2 tax expense in 2010

Current period pension and postretirement plan adjustment net of $1.6 tax

benefit in 2012 $7.3 tax benefit in 2011 and $1.6 tax benefit in 2010

Reclassification of pension and postret rement adjustments into earnings ret

of$2.Otaxexpensein2Ol2$1.8taxexpensein20ll and$L3taxexpeisin
2010

Comprehensive Income

See Notes to Parent Cotripany Condensed Financial Statements

7.7

2.8

1.7

9.2

19.0

8.8

3.8

5.9 6.7 5.1

118.2 146.5 61.6
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SCHEDULE ICONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December

42.2 79.5 47.1

51.5 88.1 67.3

9.3 8.6 20.2

4.5 12.1 9.1

4.8 3.5 29.3

114.4

10.0

1.6

2.0 2.8 2.6

4.0

3.2 2.1

45.1 17.8 17.4

4.7 97.7 11.2

10.0 101.1 19.2

130.7 29.6 48.8

120.7 130.7 29.6

2012 2011 2010

In millions

Operating Activities

Income from continuing operations

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries

Parent company only net loss

Net changes related to operating activities

Net cash provided by used for operating activities

Investing Activities

Expenditures for property plant and equipment

Net cash used for investing activities

Financing Activities

Dividends received from subsidiaries

Dividends received from Hyster-Yale

Proceeds from the sale of assets

Notes payable to Bellaire

Capital contributions to subsidiaries

Purchase of treasury shares

Cash dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash and cash equivaLents

Increase decrease for the period

Balance at the beginning of the period

Balance at the end of the period

See Notes to Parent Company Condensed Financial Statements

0.5 0.1 1.1

0.5 0.1 1.1

40.6

5.0

24.6

5.0
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SCHEDULE ICONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE PARENT

NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011 AND 2010

The notes to Consolidated Financial Statements incorporated in Item 15 of this Form 10-K are hereby incorporated by

reference into these Notes to Parent Company Condensed Financial Statements

NOTE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NACCO Industries Inc the parent company or NACCO is holding company with subsidiaries that operate in three

principal industries In the Parent Company Condensed Financial Statements NACCOs investment in subsidiaries is stated at

cost plus equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries since the date of acquisition NACCOs share of net income of

unconsolidated subsidaries is included in net income using the equity method Parent Company financial statements should be

read in conjunction with the Companys consolidated financial statements

NOTE LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS AND GUARANTEES

It is NACCOs policy not to guarantee the debt of its subsidiaries

NOTE UNRESTRICTED CASH

The amount of unrestrcted cash available to NACCO included in Investment in subsidiaries was $4.9 million at

December 31 2012 and was in addition to the $120.7 million of cash included in the Parent Company Condensed Balance

Sheet at December 31 2012
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SCHEDULE IlVALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
NACCO INDUSTRIES INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012 2011 AND 2010

Additions

Charged

Balance at to Charged to Balance at

Beginning Costs and Other Accounts Deductions End of

Description of Period Expenses Describe Describe Period

In millions

2012

Reserves deducted from asset accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1.0 1.0

Allowance for discounts adjustments and returns 13.3 19.9 0.4 18.4 15.2

2011

Reserves deducted from asset accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1.3 1.0 1.3 1.0

Allowance for discounts adjustments and returns 11.1 15.1 0.9 13.8 13.3

2010

Reserves deducted from asset accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1.5 0.2 1.3

Allowance for discounts adjustments and returns 11.5 14.9 15.3 11.1

Write-offs net of recoveries

Payments and customer deductions for product returns discounts and allowances

Balances which are not required to be presented and those which are immaterial have been omitted
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

3.1i Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3i to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1992 Commission File Number

1-9 172

3.1u Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on August 2008 Commission File Number
1-9 172

Instruments defining the rights of security holders including indentures

4.1 The Compny by this filing agrees upon request to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission the

instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its subsidiaries where the total

amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its

subsidiaries on consolidated basis

4.2 The Mortgage and Security Agreement dated April 1976 between The Falkirk Mining Company as Mortgagor

and Cooperative Power Association and United Power Association collectively as Mortgagee is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 4u to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 1992 Commission File Number 1-9172

4.3 Amendmert No ito the Mortgage and Security Agreement dated as of December 15 1993 between Falkirk

Mining Company as Mortgagor and Cooperative Power Association and United Power Association collectively

as Mortgagee is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4iii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended December 31 1997 Commission File Number 1-9172

4.4 Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 among the signatories thereto

NACCO Industries Inc as depository and NACCO Industries Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.4 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on October 2012 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10 Material Contracts

10.1 The NACCO Industries Inc 1975 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10i to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.2 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted after 1986 under The NACCO
Industries Inc 1975 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 0iii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31
1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.3 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under The NACCO Industries Inc 1975 Stock Option Plan as
amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10iv to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.4 The NACCO Industries Inc 1981 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10v to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.5 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under The NACCO Industries Inc 1981 Stock Option Plan as
amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10vi to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.6 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for incentive stock options granted after 1986 under The NACCO
Industries Inc 1981 Stock Option Plan as amended and restated as of July 17 1986 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit i0viii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended

December 31 1991 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.7 NACCO Industries Inc Supplemental Executive Long-Term Incentive Bonus Plan Amended and Restated

Effective as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.08 The Retirement Plan For Alfred Rankin Jr As Amended and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

December 2007 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.09 The NACCO Industries Inc Unfunded Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated Effective as of December 2007
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172
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10.10 The NACCO Industries Inc Excess Retirement Plan Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 19

2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.11 Amendment No to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred Rankin Jr As Amended and Restated as of

December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form

8-K filed by the Company on November 13 2008 Commission File Number 1-9172

10 12 Amendment No to the NACCO Industries Inc Unfunded Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated Effective as

of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on

Form S-K filed by the Company on November 13 2008 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.13 Amendment No to the Retirement Benefit Plan for Alfred Rankin Jr As Amended and Restated as of

December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.14 Amendment No to the NACCO Industries Inc Excess Retirement Plan Effective January 2008 is

incorporated herein by refirence to Exhibit 10.25 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.1 Amendment No to the NACCO Industries Inc Unfunded Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated Effective as

of December 2007 is irtcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Companys Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.16 NACCO Industries Inc Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan As Amended and Restated Effective

as of January 2010 is incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement

filed by the Company on March 26 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.17 NACCO Industries Inc Non-Employee Directors Equity Compensation Plan Amended and Restated Effective

May 2011 is incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement filed by

the Company on March 18 2011 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.18 NACCO Industries Inc Executive Excess Retirement Plan Effective as of September 28 2012 is incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 17

2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.19 The NACCO Industries Inc Annual Incentive Compensation Plan Effective as of September 28 2012
sponsored by NACCO Industries Inc is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 17 2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.20 Amendment No to the NACCO Industries Inc Executive Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Amended
and Restated Effective March 2012 is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Current

Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 17 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.2 Form Award Agreement for the NACCO Industries Inc Supplemental Executive Long-Term Incentive Bonus Plan

Amended and Restated Effective March 2012 is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September 17 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.22 Separation Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between NACCO Industries Inc and Hyster-Yale

Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.23 Transition Services Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between NACCO Industries Inc and

Hyster-Yale Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.24 Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between NACCO Industries Inc and Hyster

Yale Materials Handling Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 12012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.25 Credit Agreement dated as of October 27 2009 by and among The North American Coal Corporation the

Lenders party hereto and u.S Bank National Association and Regions Bank as Co-Syndication Agents and PNC

Bank National Association as Administrative Agent is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on November 2009 Commission File Number

1-9172

10.26 The North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan For Management Employees As Amended

and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.27 The North American Coal Corporation Excess Retirement Plan Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.28 The North American Coal Corporation Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan As Amended and Restated as of

January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-

filed by the Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172
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10.29 The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan For Years 2006 to 2015 Amended and Restated

Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Companys Current Report

on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 19 2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.30 Amendment No ito The North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan For Management

Employees As Amended and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on November 13 2008 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.31 Amendment No to the North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015

Amended and Restated Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 Commission File Number

1-9172

10.32 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015

Amended and Restated Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 2009 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.33 Amendment No ito The North America Coal Corporation Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan As Amended

and Restated as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.34 Amendment No to the North American Coal Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan for Management

Employees As Amended and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

10.42 to th Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 Commission

File Number 1-9 172

10.35 The North American Coal Corporation Annual Incentive Compensation Plan Effective January 2010 is

incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement filed by the Company on

March 26 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.36 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015

Amended and Restated Effective January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed by the Company on May 2010 Commission File Number

1-9172

10.37 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Value Appreciation Plan for Years 2006 to 2015 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company Ofl November 12 2010 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.3 Amendment No to The North American Coal Corporation Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan As Amended

and Restated as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year

ended December 31 2010 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.39 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation and the Lenders

party thereto and PNC Capital Markets LLC as Lead Arranger and Bookrunner PNC Bank National Association

as Administrative Agent and KeyBank National Association and Regions Bank as Co-Syndication Agents and

Union Bank N.A as documentation agent dated as of December 13 2011 is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 16 2011
Commission File Number 1-9172

10.40 Share and Membership Interest Purchase Agreement by and among TRU Energy Services LLC as Buyer the

sellers party thereto and the trustees and beneficiaries party thereto dated as of August 31 2012 is incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on September

2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.41 Amendment No ito The North American Coal Corporation Excess Retirement Plan Effective January 2008 is

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

September 17 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.42 Coteau Lignite Sales Agreement by and between The Coteau Properties Company and Dakota Coal Company
dated as of January 1990 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form l0-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.43 First Amendment to Coteau Lignite Sales Agreement by and between The Coteau Properties Company and Dakota

Coal Company dated as of June 1994 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Companys
Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9i72

10.44 Second Amendment to Coteau Lignite Sales Agreement by and between The Coteau Properties Company and

Dakota Col Company dated as of January 1997 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File

Number l-9l72
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10.45 Option and Put Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Dakota Coal Company and the

State of North dated as of January 1990 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.46 First Amendment to the Option and Put Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Dakota

Coal Company and the State of North Dakota dated as of June 1994 is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.15 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed by the Company on November 2012
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.47 Lignite Sales Agreement by and between Mississippi Lignite Mining Company and Choctaw Generation Limited

Partnership dated as of April 1998 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.48 Pay Scale Agreement by and between Mississippi Lignite Mining Company and Choctaw Generation Limited

Partnership dated as of September 29 2005 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.49 Second Restatement of Coal Sales Agreement by and between The Falkirk Mining Company and Great River

Energy dated January 2007 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9l72

10.50 Amendment No to Second Restatement of Coal Sales Agreement by and between The Falkirk Mining Company
and Great River Energy dated as of January 21 2011 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 12012 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.51 Restatement of Option Agreement by and among The Falkirk Mining Company Cooperative Power Association

United Power Association and the State of North Dakota dated as of January 1997 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November

12012 Commission File Number 1-9172

1052 Third Restatement of Lignite Mining Agreement by and between The Sabine Mining Company and Southwestern

Electric Power Company dated January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.53 Option Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric Power Company
and Longview National Bank dated as of January 15 1981 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to

the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed by the Company on November 2012 Commission File

Number 1-9172

10.54 Addendum to Cption Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric

Power Company and Longview National Bank dated as of January 15 1981 is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.23 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 12012
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.55 Amendment to Option Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric

Power Company and Longview National Bank dated as of December 1996 is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.24 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 2012
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.56 Second Amendment to Option Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern

Electric Power Company and Regions Bank dated as of January 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.25 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 12012
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.57 Agreement by and among The North American Coal Corporation Southwestern Electric Power Company Texas

Commerce Bank-Longview Nortex Mining Company and the Sabine Mining Company dated as of June 30 1988

is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the

Company on November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.58 Lignite Sales Agreement between Coyote Creek Mining Company L.L.C and Otter Tail Power Company
Northern Municipal Power Agency Montana-Dakota Utilities Co and Northwestern Corporation dated as of

October 10 2012
10.59 Credit Agreement dated as of April 29 2010 among The Kitchen Collection inc the borrowers and guarantors

thereto Wells Fargo Retail Finance LLC and the other lenders thereto is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.27 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed by the Company on November 12012
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.60 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of August 2012 among The Kitchen Collection LLC as

successor to The Kitchen Collection Inc the borrowers and guarantors thereto Wells Fargo Bank National

Association as successor to Wells Fargo Retail Finance LLC and the other lenders thereto is incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q filed by the Company on

November 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172
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10.61 Guaranty Agreement dated as of December 17 2002 executed by Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc in favor of

Wachovia National Association as Administrative Agent and ABN Amro Bank N.y Canadian Branch as

Canadian Agent and the Lenders for the benefit of Proctor-Silex Canada Inc is incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 0xcvii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2002
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.62 Pledge Agreement dated as of December 17 2002 by and among HB-PS Holding Company Inc and Wachovia

National Association as Administrative Agent 100% of stock of Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10xcviii to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2002 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.63 Pledge Agreement dated as of December 17 2002 by and among Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc and

Wachovia National Association as Administrative Agent 65% of stock of each of Proctor-Silex Canada Inc
Grupo HBPS S.A de CV Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex de Mexico S.A de CV and Proctor-Silex S.A de

C.V and 100% of Altoona Services Inc is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit l0xcix to the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2002 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.64 Credit Agreement dated as of December 17 2002 among Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex Inc and Proctor-Silex

Canada Inc as Borrowers each of the Financial Institutions initially signatory as Lenders Wachovia National

Association as Administrative Agent ABN Amro Bank NV Canadian Branch as Canadian Agent Key Bank
National Association as Syndication Agent Fleet Capital Corporation as Documentation Agent LaSalle Business

Credit Inc as Documentation Agent and National City Commercial Finance Inc as Documentation Agent is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit lOxciv to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2002 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.65 Security Agreement dated as of December 17 2002 between Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc and Wachovia

National Association as Administrative Agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 xcv to the

Company Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2002 Commission File Number
1-9172

10.66 Security Agreement dated as of December 17 2002 between Proctor-Silex Canada Inc Wachovia National

Associatioi as Administrative Agent and ABN Amro Bank NV Canadian Branch as Canadian Agent is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10xcvi to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December 31 2002 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.67 First Amendment dated as of June 29 2004 to the Credit Agreement dated as of December 17 2002 among
Hamilton Beach/Proctor-Silex Inc and Proctor-Silex Canada Inc as Borrowers each of the Financial Institutions

initially signatory as Lenders Wachovia National Association as Administrative Agent ABN Amro Bank NV
Canadian Branch as Canadian Agent Key Bank National Association as Syndication Agent Fleet Capital

Corporation as Documentation Agent LaSalle Business Credit Inc as Documentation Agent and National City

Business Credit Inc as Documentation Agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit l0cxxxvi to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2004 Commission File Number
1-9172

10.68 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of June 23 2005 among Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc
the Lenders named therein and Wachovia Bank as Agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 24 2005 Commission File Number
1-9172

10.69 Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May 17 2006 among Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc the

Lenders named therein and Wachovia Bank as Agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 26 2006 Commission File Number
1-9172

10.70 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of May 31 2007 among Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc
the Lenders named therein and UBS AG Stamford Branch as Administrative Agent KeyBank National

Association as Documentation Agent and Wachovia Bank National Association as Syndication Agent is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on June 2007 Commission File Number 1-9 172
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10.71 Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of May 31 2007 among Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex Inc the Lenders

named therein and UBS AG Stamford Branch as Administrative Agent KeyBank National Association as

Documentation Agent and Wachovia Bank National Association as Syndication Agent is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 2007
Commission File Number 1-9172

10.72 First Amendment to Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of July 62007 among Hamilton BeachlProctor-Silex

Inc the Lenders named therein and UBS AG Stamford Branch as Administrative Agent is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed by the Company on August

2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.73 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Excess Retirement Plan Effective January 12008 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 19
2007 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.74 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan For the Period From January 2003

Through December 31 2007 As Amended and Restated as of December 2007 is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.13 the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on December 19

2007 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.75 Amendment No ito The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan For the Period

From January 2003 Through December 31 2007 As Amended and Restated Effective as of December 2007
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed by the

Company on April 30 2008 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.76 Amendment No to the Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan for the Period

from January 2003 through December 31 2007 As Amended and Restated Effective as of December 2007 is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.117 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal

year ended December31 2009 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.77 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc 2010 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on May 2010
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.78 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Effective January 2010 is

incorporated herein by reference to Appendix to NACCOs Definitive Proxy Statement filed by the Company on

March 26 2010 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.79 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc 2011 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 2011 Commission

File Number 1-9172

10.80 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Wells Fargo Bank National Association as

Administrative Agent Wells Fargo Capital Finance LLC as Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Lead Bookrunner the

Lenders that are Parties thereto as the Lenders Hamilton Beach Brands Inc as US Borrower and Hamilton

Beach Brands Canada Inc as Canadian Borrower as Borrowers dated as of May 31 2012 is incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on June 2012
Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.81 Amended and Restated Guaranty and Security Agreement dated as of May 31 2012 among Hamilton Beach

Brands Inc and Hamilton Beach Inc as Grantors and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as Administrative

Agent is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the

Company on June 2012 Commission File Number 1-9 172

10.82 Amended and Restated Canadian Guarantee and Security Agreement dated as of May 31 2012 among Hamilton

Beach Brands Canada Inc as Grantor and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as Administrative Agent is

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

June 2012 Commission File Number 1-9172

10.83 The Hamilton Beach Brands Inc 2012 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan is incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on March 15 2012
Commission File Number 1-9172

10.84 Amendment NC to the Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Effective

January l2010

21 Subsidiaries list of the subsidiaries of the Company is attached hereto as Exhibit 21

23 Consents of experts and counsel

23.1 Consents of experts and counsel
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24 Powers of Attorney

24.1 copy of power of attorney for John Jumper is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.1

24.2 copy of power of attorney for Dennis LaBarre is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.2

24.3 copy of power of attorney for Richard de Osborne is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.3

24.4 copy of power of attorney for James Ratner is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.4

24.5 copy of power of attorney for Britton Taplin is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.5

24.6 copy of power of attorney for David Taplin is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.6

24.7 copy of power of attorney for John Turben is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.7

24.8 copy of power of attorney for David B.H Williams is attached hereto as Exhibit 24.8

31 Rule 3a- 14a/i d- 14a Certifications

1i1 Certification of Alfred Rankin Jr pursuant to Rule 13a-14a/15d-l4a of the Exchange Act is attached hereto

as Exhibit 31

31i2 Certification of J.C Butler Jr pursuant to Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a of the Exchange Act is attached hereto as

Exhibit 31i2

32 Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002 signed and dated by Alfred Rankin Jr and J.C Butler Jr

95 Mine Safety Disclosure Exhibit is attached hereto as Exhibit 95

99 Other exhibits not otherwise required to be filed Audited Combined Financial Statements for the Unconsolidated

Mines of tie North American Coal Corporation dated December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 with Report of

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is attached hereto as Exhibit 99

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to Iteml5b
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Filed hereith

Confidential treatment requested for portions of this document Portions for which confidential treatment is

requested have been marked with three asterisks and footnote indicating Confidential treatment

requested Material omitted has been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARiES OF NACCO INDUSTRIES INC

The following is list of active subsidiaries as of the date of the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission of the

Annual Report on Form 10- to which this is an Exhibit Except as noted all of these subsidiaries are wholly owned directly

or indirectly

Name Incorporation

Altoona Services inc Pennsylvania

America Lignite Energy LLC Delaware 50%
Bellaire Corporation

Ohio

CH Mining Company Inc Alabama

Caddo Creek Resources Co LLC Nevada

Camino Real Fuels LLC Nevada

Coyote Creek Mining Company LLC Nevada

Demery Resources Company LLC Nevada

The Coteau Properties Company Ohio

The Faikirk Mining Company Ohio

GRENAC LLC Delaware 50%

Grupo HB/PS S.A de CV Mexico

Hamilton Beach Brands Canada Inc Ontario Canada

Hamilton Beach Brands de Mexico S.A de CV Mexico

Hamilton Beach Brands Inc Delaware

Hamilton Beach Brands HK Limited Hong Kong PRC
Hamilton Beach Electrical Appliances Shenzhen Company Limited China

Hamilton Beach Inc Delaware

HB Brands Guatemala S.A Guatemala

Housewares Holding Co Delaware

The Kitchen Collection LLC Ohio

Liberty Fuels Company LLC Nevada

Mississippi Lignite Mining Company Texas

NoDak Energy Services LLC Delaware

The North American Coal Corporation Delaware

North American Coal Corporation India Private Limited India

North American Coal Mumbai Branch India

North American Coal Royalty Company Delaware

Otter Creek Mining Co LLC Nevada

Red Hills Property Company LLC Mississippi

The Sabine Mining Company Nevada

TRU Global Energy Services LLC Delaware

TRU Energy Services LLC Nevada

Reed Hauling Inc Alabama

Reed Management LLC Alabama

Reed Minerals Inc Alabama



Exhibit 31i1

Certifications

Alfred Rankin Jr certif that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NACCO Industries Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-l5f and lsd-15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2013 Is Alfred Rankin Jr

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31i2

Certifications

J.C Butler Jr certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of NACCO Industries Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and lbr the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and

have

Iesigned such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

1esigned such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

lisclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants

board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2013 Is J.C Butler Jr

J.C Butler Jr

Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer

and ChiefAdministrative Officer Principal

Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF

THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of NACCO Industries Inc the Company on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report each of the

undersigned officers of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002 that to such officers knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report

Date March 2013 Is Alfred Rankin Jr

Alfred Rankin Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer Principal Executive Officer

Date March 2013 Is J.C Butler Jr

J.C Butler Jr

Senior Vice President Finance Treasurer

and ChiefAdministrative Officer Principal

Financial Officer



Exhibit 95

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

NACCO industries Inc and its wholly owned subsidiaries the Company believes that The North American Coal

Corporation and its affiliated coal companies collectively NACoal is an industry leader in safety NACoa1 has health and

safety programs in place that include extensive employee training accident prevention workplace inspection emergency

response accident investigation regulatory compliance and mm-by-mine health and safety analyses The objectives for

NACoals programs are to eliminate workplace incidents comply with all mining-related regulations and provide support for

both regulators and the industry to improve mine safety

Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act each operator of coal or other mine is required to

include certain mine safety results in its periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission The operation of

NACoals mines is subject to regulation by the Federal Mine Safety and Health Administration MSHA under the Federal

Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 the Mine Act MSHA inspects NACoa1s mines on regular basis and issues various

citations and orders when it believes violation has occurred under the Mine Act The Company has presented information

below regarding certain mining safety and health matters for NACoals mining operations for the year ended December 31

2012 In evaluating this information consideration should be given to factors such as the number of citations and orders

will vary depending on the size of the mine ii the number of citations issued will
vary

from inspector to inspector and from

mine to mine and iiicitations and orders can be contested and appealed and in that
process are often reduced in severity and

amount and are sometimes vacated

During the
year

ended December 31 2012 neither NACoa1s current mining operations nor Bellaires closed mines were

assessed
any

Mine Act section 104d citations or orders for an alleged unwarrantable failure i.e aggravated conduct

constituting more than ordinary negligence to comply with mining safety standard or regulation ii were assessed any Mine

Act section 11 0b2 penalties for failure to correct the subject matter of Mine Act section 104a citation within the specified

time period which failure was deemed flagrant i.e reckless or repeated failure to make reasonable efforts to eliminate

known violation that substantially and proximately caused or reasonably could have been expected to cause death or serious

bodily injury iiireceived any Mine Act section 107a imminent danger orders to immediately remove miners or iv
received any MSHA written notices under Mine Act section 104e of pattern of violation of mandatory health or safety

standards or of the potential to have such pattern In addition there were no fatalities at NACoa1s mining operations or

Bellaires closed mines during the
year

ended December 31 2012



The following table sets forth the total number of specific citations and orders the total dollar value of the proposed civil

penalty assessments that were issued by MSHA the total number of legal actions initiated and resolved before the Federal

Mine Safety and Health Review Commission FMSHRC during the year ended December 31 2012 and the total number of

legal actions pending before the FMSHRC at December 31 2012 pursuant to the Mine Act by individual mine at NACoa1

Number of

LealActions
Total Jnittated before Number of

Mine Act Value the PMSHRC Legal Actions

Sectsonlö4 Pr fortheyear Pendmgbefore

Sifict MS endedat theFMSCat
Substantial December31 December31

NameofMineotQuafll1 Chations2 2012 20123

MLMC Red Hills Mine

Coteau Freedom Mine 262

Falkirk Falldrk Mine

Sabine South HallsvilIe No Mine 2983

Demery Five Forks Mine

Caddo reek Marshall Mine

Camino Real Eagle Pass Mine

Liberty Liberty Mine

Reed Minerals

Fishtrap Mine 285

Jap Creek Mine 2i76

Burton Bend Mine 1521

Lindbergh Mine

Florida Limerock Operations

White Rock Quarry North

White Rock Quarry South

Kroine Quarry

Alico Quarry

FEC Quarry 10

SCL Quarry

Card Sound Quarry

Pennsuco Quarry

Total 12 7974

Bellaires closed mines are not included in the table above and did not receive any of the indicated citations

Mine Act section 14a significant and substantial citations are for alleged violations of mining safety standard or

regulation where there exists reasonable likelihood that the hazard contributed to or will result in an injury or illness of

reasonably serious nature

Sabine contested citation received in 2011 and $787 of the proposed assessments which related to proposed penalties

This matter was reby settlement in February 2013

On August 31 2012 NACoa1 acquired through wholly owned subsidiary four related companies Reed Minerals Inc

Reed Hauling Inc CH Mining Company Inc and Reed Management LLC from members of and entities controlled by

the Reed family All significant and substantial citations and proposed MSHA assessments related to the Fishtrap and Jap

Creek mines were incurred prior to August 31 2012 Of the significant and substantial citations and MSHA assessments at

the Burton Bend mine two citations totaling $768 were incurred prior to August 31 2012



The following information related to the Companys stock performance was not included in or incorporated by reference into and

shall not be deemed to constitute part of the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC

Stock Price Performance Presentation

The following graphs compare the Companys total annual stock price performance on Class Common Stock against the total stock

price performance of the Russell 2000 Index and in the case of Graph the New Russell 2000 Producer Durables Index and the Old

Russell 2000 Durables Index for the periods indicated The New Russell 2000 Producer Durables Index replaces the Old Russell 2000

Durables Index that was used until 2009 and was reconstituted by Russell Graph below includes data from the Old Russell 2000

Producer Durables Index for 2008 through 2009 and from the New Russell Producer Durables Index for 2009 through 2012 The

graphs present the year-end value of $100 investment at the base point for each index assuming the reinvestment of dividends

In accordance with the regulations promulgated by the SEC Graph compares the stock price performance based upon the difference

between the stock price at the beginning of each fiscal year and the stock price at the end of the fiscal year for the five-year period

commencing January 2008 base point December 31 2007 and ending December 31 2012

2008-2012 Stock Price Performance

Graph
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The Company believes that he measurement set forth in Graph which is based upon the stock price at single point in time in each

year does not adequately reflect the Companys stock price performance over the period because of the numerous periodic

fluctuations throughout the year in both the price of the Companys stock and the level of the Russell 2000 Index The Company

therefore has provided Graph which compares the returns for the Company and the Russell 2000 Index based upon the average of

the daily closing stock price compared with the corresponding information from Graph which is based upon the change in the stock

price for each fiscal year for the same period as in Graph

2008-20 12 Stock Price Performance

Graph

NACCO Russell 2000 NACCO 11-Mmlh MovingAvsragr Russell 2000 12-Month Musing Asetage

Assumes $100 insested at December31 2007 with dividends reinvested

12-month moving average data is based upon he daily closssg pnce

The Company believes that although sustained operating and financial performance will ultimately be reflected in stock price the

five-year period portrayed in the foregoing graphs is too brief period over which to measure the results of significant strategic

activities and that corporat2 financial and strategic performance will be reflected in stock price only when measured over the long

term The Company thereire has included Graph which compares the 10-year returns for the Company and the Russell 2000

Index based on the average stock price for the year computed using the same method as in Graph for the 10-year period

commencing January 2003 base point December 31 2002 and ending December 31 2012
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Officers and Directors

Officers and Directors of Officers of Subsidiaries Officers of Hamilton Beach

NACCO Industries Inc Brands Inc
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and Chief Executive Officer
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Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of

NACCO Industries Inc.wiII be held on

May 7201 3at 900 a.m.at the corporate

office located at 5875 Landerbrook Drive

Cleveland Ohio 44124

Form 10-K

Additional copies of the Companys Form

0-K filed with the Securities and Exchange

Commission are available free of charge

through NACCO Industries website

www.nacco.com or by request to

Investor Relations
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5875 Landerbrook Drive Suite 220
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Additional information on NACCO
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investors and other interested parties

Subsidiary Company Websites

The websites for NACCOs subsidiaries

are as follows

Hamilton Beach Brands-U.S

www.hamiltonbeach.com

www.proctorsllex.com

www.commercial.hamiltonbeach.com

Hamilton Beach BrandsMexico

www.hamiltonbeach.com.mx
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www.kitchencollectlon.com
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North American Coal

www.nacoal corn

MIX

Paper from

responsible sources

FSC C003191

Environmental Benefits
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